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GRM OVERSEAS LIMITED
CIN : L74899DL1995PLC064007

Regd. Office : 128, First Floor, Shiva Market, Pitampura, Delhi - 110 034.
Website: www.grmrice.com
Email: grmrice1@gmail.com

Phone : 011-47330330

NOTICE

Notice is hereby given that the 24thAnnual General Meeting of the Members of GRM Overseas Limited will be 
held on Saturday, the 29th September, 2018 at 11.00 A.M. at MH One Resort Hotel Bakoli Alipur, Main G.T. Karnal 
Road Delhi-110036, to transact the following business:

ORDINARY BUSINESS:

1. Adoption of Financial Statements of the Company:

To receive, consider and adopt:

a) the Audited Standalone and Consolidated Financial Statement of the Company for the financial year ended 
March 31, 2018 alongwith with the Reports of the Board of Directors and Auditors thereon; and

2. Declaration of  Dividend

To declare a final dividend of Rs. 5/- per equity share for the financial year ended March 31, 2018.

3. Re-appointment of Retiring Director:

To consider and if thought fit, to pass with or without modification, the following resolution as an ordinary 
resolution:

“RESOLVED THAT pursuant to the provisions of section 152 of the Companies Act, 2013 Mr. Hukam Chand Garg 
(DIN: 00673276), Director of the Company, who retires by rotation and being eligible, offers himself for re-
appointment as a director of the Company.”

4. Appointment of the Statutory Auditor of the Company:

To appoint Statutory Auditor and fix their remuneration and in this regard to consider and if thought fit, to pass, with 
or without modification(s), the following resolution as an Ordinary Resolution:

“RESOLVED THAT pursuant to the provisions of Section 139, 142 and other applicable provisions, if any, of the 
Companies Act, 2013, read with the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, (including any statutory 
modification(s) or reenactment (s) thereof for the time being in force),M/s.Vinod Kumar & Associates, Chartered 
Accountants (FRN- 002304N), be and is hereby appointed as Statutory Auditor of the Company, to hold office 
from the conclusion of this Annual General Meeting until the conclusion of the next Annual General Meeting of the 
Company, at such remuneration etc., as may be mutually agreed between the Board of Directors of the Company 
and the Auditors”

SPECIAL BUSINESS:-

5. Appointment of Mr. Nipun Jain as a Director

To consider and if thought fit, to pass the following Resolution as an Ordinary Resolution:
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“RESOLVED THAT Pursuant to the provisions of Section 161 of the Companies Act, 2013, applicable provisions 
of Articles of Association of the Company and any other provisions as may be applicable for the time being in 
force, Mr. Nipun Jain(DIN: 01075283), who was appointed as an Additional Director of the Company by the Board 
of Directors with effect from 14th August, 2018 and who holds office upto the date of this meeting and in respect of 
whom the Company has received a notice in writing under Section 160 of the Companies Act, 2013, proposing the 
candidature of Mr. Nipun Jain for the office of Director, be and is hereby appointed as a Director (non-executive 
non-independent) of the Company liable to retire by rotation.

“RESOLVED FURTHER THAT the Board of Directors of the Company be and is hereby authorised to do all acts 
and take all such steps as may be necessary, proper or expedient to give effect to this resolution.”

6. To appoint Mr. Raj Kumar Garg (DIN 0008213680) as Independent Director of the Company to pass, with or 
without modifications, the following resolution as an SPECIAL RESOLUTION:

“RESOLVED THAT pursuant to the provisions of Section 149, 150 and 152 of Companies Act, 2013 (as amended 
or re-enacted from time to time) read with the Companies (Appointment and Qualification of Directors) Rules, 
2014 read with Schedule IV of the Act and applicable provisions of SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure 
Requirements) Regulations, 2015, Mr. Raj Kumar Garg (DIN 0008213680), who has submitted a declaration that 
he meets the criteria for independence as provided in Section 149(6) of the Act, be and is hereby appointed as an 
Independent Director, not liable to retire by rotation, for a term not exceeding 5 (five) years, w.e.f. 29th September, 
2018 on the terms and conditions in the Letter of appointment to be issued by the Company.”

“RESOLVED FURTHER THAT the Board of Directors of the Company be and is hereby authorised to do all acts 
and take all such steps as may be necessary, proper or expedient to give effect to this resolution.”

7. To appoint Mr. Pardeep Kumar Singal (DIN 00910206) as Independent Director of the Company to pass, 
with or without modifications, the following resolution as a SPECIAL RESOLUTION:

“RESOLVED THAT pursuant to the provisions of Section 149, 150 and 152 of Companies Act, 2013 (as amended 
or re-enacted from time to time) read with the Companies (Appointment and Qualification of Directors) Rules, 
2014 read with Schedule IV of the Act and applicable provisions of SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure 
Requirements) Regulations, 2015, Mr. Pardeep Kumar Singal (DIN 00910206.), who has submitted a declaration 
that he meets the criteria for independence as provided in Section 149(6) of the Act, be and is hereby appointed as 
an Independent Director, not liable to retire by rotation, for a term not exceeding 5 (five) years, w.e.f. 29th 
September, 2018 on the terms and conditions in the Letter of appointment to be issued by the Company.”

“RESOLVED FURTHER THAT the Board of Directors of the Company be and is hereby authorised to do all acts 
and take all such steps as may be necessary, proper or expedient to give effect to this resolution.”

8. To approve the payment of remuneration to Mr. Rohit Garg, (DIN : 00673304),  Managing Director of the 
Company and in this regard to consider and if thought fit, to pass with or without modification(s), the following 
resolution as a Special Resolution:

“RESOLVED THAT pursuant to the provisions of Sections 196, 197 read with Schedule V and other applicable 
provisions, if any, of the Companies Act, 2013 read with the Companies (Appointment and Remuneration of 
Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014 (including any statutory modification(s) or re-enactment(s) thereof, for the 
time being in force), approval of the members be and is hereby accorded to payment of such remuneration to Mr. 
Rohit Garg (DIN: 00673304), Managing Director, for the period from April 1, 2018 to March 31, 2020 as set out in 
the statement annexed to the Notice convening this Meeting with the liberty to the Board of Directors (hereinafter 
referred to as “the Board” which term shall be deemed to include any Committee of the Board constituted to 
exercise its powers, including the powers conferred by this resolution) to alter and vary the said terms and 
conditions of appointment and / or remuneration, subject to the same not exceeding the limits specified under 
Schedule V to the Companies Act, 2013 or any statutory modification(s) or re-enactment thereof; 

“RESOLVED FURTHER THAT the Board of Directors of the Company be and is hereby authorised to do all acts 
and take all such steps as may be necessary, proper or expedient to give effect to this resolution.”
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9. To approve the payment of remuneration to Mr. Atul Garg, Joint Managing Director of the Company and in 
this regard to consider and if thought fit, to pass with or without modification(s), the following resolution as a 
Special Resolution:

“RESOLVED THAT pursuant to the provisions of Sections 196, 197 read with Schedule V and other applicable 
provisions, if any, of the Companies Act, 2013 read with the Companies (Appointment and Remuneration of 
Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014 (including any statutory modification(s) or re-enactment (s) thereof, for the 
time being in force), approval of the members be and is hereby accorded to payment of such remuneration to Mr. 
Atul Garg (DIN: 02380612), Joint Managing Director, for the period from April 1, 2018 to March 31, 2020 as set out 
in the statement annexed to the Notice convening this Meeting with the liberty to the Board of Directors 
(hereinafter referred to as “the Board” which term shall be deemed to include any Committee of the Board 
constituted to exercise its powers, including the powers conferred by this resolution) to alter and vary the said 
terms and conditions of appointment and / or remuneration, subject to the same not exceeding the limits specified 
under Schedule V to the Companies Act, 2013 or any statutory modification(s) or re-enactment thereof;

RESOLVED FURTHER THAT the Board of Directors of the Company be and is hereby authorised to do all acts 
and take all such steps as may be necessary, proper or expedient to give effect to this resolution.”

10.  To approve the continuation of Mr. Hukam Chand Garg as non-executive director on the Board of the 
Company and in this regard to consider and if thought fit, to pass the following Resolution as a Special Resolution :

RESOLVE THAT pursuant to clause 17 of the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) 
Regulations, 2015 read with Para 3(d)(ii)of SEBI (LODR) (Amendment) Regulations, 2018, approval of the 
Members of the Company be and is here by granted for continuation of holding of office of non-executive director 
by Mr. Hukam Chand Garg (DIN00673276) who has attained the age of 75 (Seventy Five)years as on (date)

“RESOLVED FURTHER THAT the Board of Directors of the Company be and is hereby authorised to do all acts 
and take all such steps as may be necessary, proper or expedient to give effect to this resolution.”

By Order of the Board of Directors

Place : Delhi 
Date : August 14, 2018

      S/d-
Rohit Garg
DIN:00673304
Chairman & Managing Director

ANNUAL REPORT 2017-2018.......03



GRM GRM OVERSEAS LIMITED

NOTES:

a) The relevant explanatory statement pursuant to section 102 of the companies Act 2013 ('Act') in respect of 
the business under item no. 5-10 set out above is annexed hereto.

b) A member entitled to attend and vote at the Annual General Meeting (AGM) is entitled to appoint a proxy to 
attend and vote instead of himself. A proxy need not be member of the company. The instrument appointing 
the proxy, in order to be effective, must be deposited at the Company's Registered Office, duly completed 
and signed, not less than FORTY-EIGHT HOURS before the meeting. Proxies submitted on behalf of limited 
companies, societies, etc., must be supported by appropriate resolutions/authority, as applicable. A person 
can act as proxy on behalf of Members not exceeding fifty (50) and holding in aggregate not more than 10 % 
of total share capital of the Company. In case a proxy is proposed to be appointed by a Member holding more 
than 10% of the total share Capital of the Company carrying voting rights, then such proxy shall not act as a 
proxy for any other person or shareholder.

c) Corporate members intending to send their authorized representatives to attend the Meeting are requested 
to send to the Company a certified copy of the Board Resolution authorizing their representative to attend 
and vote on their behalf at the Meeting.

d)  Members who have not registered their e-mail addresses so far are requested to register their e-mail 
addresses for receiving all communication including Annual Report, Notices, Circulars, etc. from the 
Company electronically.

e) In case of joint holders attending the Meeting, only such joint holder who is higher in the order of names will 
be entitled to vote.

f) The Register of Members and Transfer Books of the Company will be closed from Saturday, 22.09.2018 to 
Saturday, 29.09.2018(both days inclusive).

g) Relevant documents referred to in the Notice and Explanatory Statement are open for inspection at the 
Registered Office of the Company on all working days, (except Saturdays, Sundays and Public Holidays) 
between 11.00 a.m. and 1.00 p.m. upto the date of the Meeting.

h) Members/Proxies should bring their attendance slips duly completed for attending the Meeting.

(i) Members are requested to notify any change in their address, bank details, etc.:
(ii) To their Depository Participants (DPs) in respect of shares held in demat form; and
(iii)To the Registrar & Share Transfer Agent of the Company in respect of shares held in physical form, 

quoting their folio numbers.

j) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (SEBI) has mandated submission of Permanent Account 
Number (PAN) by every participant in securities market. Members holding shares in electronic form are 
therefore requested to submit the PAN to their Depository Participants with whom they are maintaining their 
demat accounts. Members holding shares in physical form can submit their PAN details to the Company or 
to Abhipra Capital Limited, Registrar and Share Transfer Agent of the Company.

k) The Ministry of Corporate Affairs has undertaken a 'Green Initiative in Corporate Governance' and allowed 
companies to share documents with its shareholders through an electronic mode. Members who have not 
yet registered their e-mail address are requested to support this green initiative by registering their e-mail 
addresses with Abhipra Capital Limited in case the shares are held in physical form and with the Depository 
Participant in case the shares are held in demat form.

l)  Voting through electronic means:

In terms of section 108 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Rule 20 of the Companies (Management and 
Administration) Rules, 2014 and Regulation 44 of the SEBI ((Listing Obligations and Disclosures requirements) 
Regulations, 2015, as amended from time to time, the Company is providing facility to exercise votes on the items 
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of business given in the notice through electronic voting system, to shareholders holding shares as on September 
nd  22 , 2018 being the cut-off date ("Record date" for the purpose of Rule 20(3)(vii) of the said Rules) fixed for 

 determining voting rights of shareholders entitled to participate in the e-voting process through the e-voting 
platform provided by National Securities Depository Limited (NSDL). The e-voting rights of the 

 shareholders/beneficiary owners shall be reckoned on the equity sharesheld by them as on Saturday, September 
22, 2018. The instructions for   e-voting are as under:

Instructions for the voting through electronic means

I.  In compliance with provisions of Section 108 of the Companies Act, 2013, Rule 20 of the Companies 
(Management and Administration) Rules, 2014 as amended by the Companies (Management and 
Administration) Amendment Rules, 2015 and Regulation 44 of the SEBI (Listing Obligations and 
Disclosures requirements) Regulations, 2015, as amended from time to time, the Company is pleased to 
provide members facility to exercise their right to vote on resolutions proposed to be considered at the 
ensuing Annual General Meeting (AGM) by electronic means and the business may be transacted through 
e-Voting Services. The facility of casting the votes by the members using an electronic voting system from a 
place other than venue of the AGM (“remote e-voting”) will be provided by National Securities Depository 
Limited (NSDL).

II. The facility for voting through ballot paper shall be made available at the AGM and the members attending 
the meeting who have not cast their vote by remote e-voting shall be able to exercise their right at the 
meeting through ballot paper.

III. The members who have cast their vote by remote e-voting prior to the AGM may also attend the AGM but 
shall not be entitled to cast their vote again.

thIV. The remote e-voting period commences on 26th September, 2018(9:00 am) and ends on 28 September, 
2018 (5:00 pm). During this period members’ of the Company, holding shares either in physical form or in 

nddematerialized form, as on the cut-off date of 22  September,2018, may cast their vote by remote e-voting. 
The remote e-voting module shall be disabled by NSDL for voting thereafter. Once the vote on a resolution is 
cast by the member, the member shall not be allowed to change it subsequently.

V. The process and manner for remote e-voting are as under:
A. In case a Member receives an email from NSDL [for members whose email IDs are registered with the 

Company/Depository Participants(s)] :
(i) Open email and open PDF file viz; “remote e-voting.pdf” with your Client ID or Folio No. as password. The 

said PDF file contains your user ID and password/PIN for remote e-voting. Please note that the password is 
an initial password.

(ii) Launch internet browser by typing the following URL: https://www.evoting.nsdl.com
(iii) Click on Shareholder – Login
(iv) Put user ID and password as initial password/PIN noted in step (i) above. Click Login.
(v) Password change menu appears. Change the password/PIN with new password of your choice with 

minimum 8 digits/characters or combination thereof. Note new password. It is strongly recommended not to 
share your password with any other person and take utmost care to keep your password confidential.

(vi) Home page of remote e-voting opens. Click on remote e-voting: Active Voting Cycles.
(vii) Select “EVEN” of “GRM Overseas Limited”.
(viii) Now you are ready for remote e-voting as Cast Vote page opens.
(ix) Cast your vote by selecting appropriate option and click on “Submit” and also “Confirm” when prompted.
(x) Upon confirmation, the message “Vote cast successfully” will be displayed.
(xi) Once you have voted on the resolution, you will not be allowed to modify your vote.
(xii) Institutional shareholders (i.e. other than individuals, HUF, NRI etc.) are required to send scanned copy 

(PDF/JPG Format) of the relevant Board Resolution/ Authority letter etc. together with attested specimen 
signature of the duly authorized signatory(ies) who are authorized to vote, to the Scrutinizer through e-mail 
to csdevesharora@gmail.com with a copy marked to evoting@nsdl.co.in
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B. In case a Member receives physical copy of the Notice of AGM [for members whose email IDs are not 
registered with the Company/Depository Participants(s) or requesting physical copy] :

(i) Initial password is provided as below/at the bottom of the Attendance Slip for the AGM : EVEN (Remote e  -
voting Event Number)       USER ID       PASSWORD/PIN
(ii) Please follow all steps from Sl. No. (ii)  to Sl. No. (xii) above, to cast vote

VI. In case of any queries, you may refer the Frequently Asked Questions (FAQs) for Members and remote e-
voting user manual for Members available at the downloads section of www.evoting.nsdl.com or call on toll 
free no.: 1800-222-990.

VII. If you are already registered with NSDL for remote e-voting then you can use your existing user ID and 
password/PIN for casting your vote.

VIII. You can also update your mobile number and e-mail id in the user profile details of the folio which may be 
used  for sending future communication(s).

IX. The voting rights of members shall be in proportion to their shares of the paid up equity share capital of the 
Company as on the cut-off date of 22nd September, 2018.

X. Any person, who acquires shares of the Company and become member of the Company after dispatch of 
the notice and holding shares as of the cut-off date i.e. 22nd September, 2018, may obtain the login ID and 
password by sending a request at evoting@nsdl.co.in or RTA.

However, if you are already registered with NSDL for remote e-voting then you can use your existing user ID and 
password for casting your vote. If you forgot your password, you can reset your password by using “Forgot User 
Details/Password” option available on www.evoting.nsdl.com or contact NSDL at the following toll freeno.: 1800-
222-990.

XI. A person, whose name is recorded in the register of members or in the register of beneficial owners 
maintained by the depositories as on the cut-off date only shall be entitled to avail the facility of remote e-
voting /voting at the AGM through ballot paper.

XII. M/sDeveshArora& Associates, Company Secretaries have been appointed as the Scrutinizer for providing 
facility to the members of the Company to scrutinize the voting at the AGM and remote e-voting process in a 
fair and transparent manner.

XIII. The Chairman shall, at the AGM, at the end of discussion on the resolutions on which voting is to be held, 
allow voting with the assistance of scrutinizer, by use of “Ballot Paper”/ “Poling Paper” for all those members 
who are present at the AGM but have not cast their votes by availing the remote e-voting facility.

XIV. The Scrutinizer shall after the conclusion of voting at the general meeting, will first count the votes cast at the 
meeting and thereafter unblock the votes cast through remote e-voting in the presence of at least two 
witnesses not in the employment of the Company and shall make, not later than three days of the conclusion 
of the AGM, a consolidated scrutinizer’s report of the total votes cast in favour or against, if any, to the 
Chairman or a person authorized by him in writing, who shall countersign the same and declare the result of 
the voting forthwith.

XV. The Results declared alongwith the report of the Scrutinizer shall be placed on the website of the Company 
www.grmrice.com and on the website of NSDL immediately after the declaration of result by the Chairman or 
a person authorized by him in writing. The results shall also be immediately forwarded to the BSE Limited, 
Mumbai.

Place : Delhi 
Date : August 14, 2018

      S/d-
Rohit Garg
DIN:00673304
Chairman & Managing Director

ANNUAL REPORT 2017-2018.......06

By Order of the Board of Directors



GRM GRM OVERSEAS LIMITED

Annexure to the Notice
Explanatory Statement pursuant to Section 102 of the Companies Act, 2013:

Item No.5

Pursuant to the provisions of Section 161 of the Companies Act, 2013, on the recommendation of Nomination and 
Remuneration Committee of the Company, Mr. Nipun Jain was appointed as an Additional Director w.e.f. 14th 
August, 2018 by the Board of Directors of the Company to strengthen the Board. Mr. Nipun Jain will hold office as 
an Additional Director upto the date of this Annual General Meeting. Mr. Nipun Jain was appointed in the category 
of non-executive non-independent Director. Accordingly, his appointment is proposed as a Director in the 
category of non-executive non-independent Director liable to retire by rotation. Mr. Nipun Jain has approximately 
29 years of rich and versatile experience, which includes extensive experience in specialty.

The Company has also received a notice proposing the candidature of Mr. Nipun Jain for the office of Director of 
the Company under section 160 of the Companies Act, 2013.
 
The Board of Directors considers that in view of the background and experience of Mr. Nipun Jain, it would be in 
the interest of the Company to appoint him as Director of the Company. 

The draft terms and conditions of appointment of Mr. Nipun Jain as Director shall be open for inspection at the 
Registered Office of the Company by any member during normal business hours (8.30 a.m. to 5.30 p.m.) on all 
working days until the date of the AGM. The Board recommends the resolutions under item no. 5 for approval by 
the Members. 

Except Mr. Nipun Jain, no other Director(s) or Key Managerial Personnel of the Company or their relatives is 
concerned or interested, financial or otherwise, in the Resolution set out at Item No. 5. Disclosure pursuant to 
regulation 36 of SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 is set out in the 
‘Annexure A’ to the Explanatory Statement. Other details as required under ICSI Secretarial Standard SS-2 are 
also included in the Corporate Governance Report of the Annual Report of the Company.

Item No. 6-7

The Company had, pursuant to the provisions of clause 17 of LODR, appointed Mr. Raj Kumar Garg and Mr. 
Pardeep Kumar Singal, as Independent Directors at various times, in compliance with the requirements of the 
clause.

Pursuant to the provisions of section 149 of the Act, which came in to effect from April 1, 2014, every listed public 
company is required to have at least one-third of the total number of directors as independent directors, who are 
not liable to retire by rotation. 
The Nominations Committee has recommended the appointment of these directors as Independent Directors for 
5 years w.e.f. 29th September 2018

Mr. Raj Kumar Garg and Mr. Pardeep Kumar Singal, non-executive directors of the Company, have given a 
declaration to the Board that they meet the criteria of independence as provided under section 149(6) of the Act. In 
the opinion of the Board, each of these directors fulfill the conditions specified in the Act and the Rules framed 
thereunder for appointment as Independent Director and they are independent of the management.

In compliance with the provisions of section 149 read with Schedule IV of the Act, the appointment of these 
directors as Independent Directors is now being placed before the Members for their approval. 
Accordingly the Board recommends the resolution appointment of Mr. Raj Kumar Garg and Mr. Pardeep Kumar 
Singal, as an Independent Director of the Company for a period for 5 years w.e.f. 29th September 2018 and seeks 
your approval to the said resolution.

Except Mr. Raj Kumar Garg and Mr. Pardeep Kumar Singal, none of the Directors or key managerial personnel of 
the Company or their relatives are concerned or interested, financially or otherwise, in this Resolution. A Copy of 
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the letter for appointment of Mr. Raj Kumar Garg and Mr. Pardeep Kumar Singal as an Independent Director 
would be available for inspection without any fee by the members at the Registered Office of the Company 
between 11:00 am and 1:00 pm on all working days except Saturdays till the date of Annual General Meeting

A brief profile of the Independent Directors to be appointed is given below:

Dr. Raj Kumar Garg is a MBBS and also hold MD degree. He has numerous senior positions as surgeon in 
various reputed private and government hospitals.

Mr. Pardeep Kumar Singal is a Graduate and his core area is management. He has a vast experience of over 29 
years in import and export business. Mr. Pardeep Kumar Singal is Innovative Executive with Professional 
experience in Multi Unit Business Operations. 

The Board of Director considers that in view of the background and experience of Mr. Pardeep Kumar, it would be 
in the interest of the Company to appoint him as a Director of the Company.

Item No. 8 – 9

Mr. Rohit Garg (DIN: 00673304) and Mr. Atul Garg (DIN: 02380612) was appointed as the Managing Director and 
Joint Managing Director of the Company respectively for a term of three (3) years w.e.f. September 1, 2017. The 
Board at its meeting held on August 14, 2018 has approved payment of remuneration for the period from April 1, 
2018 to March 31, 2020, for which approval the members is required. The remuneration proposed to be paid to Mr. 
Rohit Garg (DIN: 00673304) and Mr. Atul Garg (DIN: 02380612) the Managing Director and Joint Managing 
Director of the Company respectively has also been recommended by the Nomination and Remuneration 
Committee. The remuneration proposed will be within the limits permissible under Schedule V to the Act. Brief 
profile of Mr. Rohit Garg and Mr. Atul Garg is annexed to the notice. Keeping in view, the vast experience of Mr. 
Rohit Garg and Mr. Atul Garg, the Board of Directors has recommended the payment of remuneration for the 
period from April 1, 2018 to March 31, 2020 as set out herein below:

A. Period: Period of appointment is Three Years w.e.f. 1st September, 2017.

B. Salary: The gross Salary will be Rs 7,00,000/-per month including the Perquisites & Allowances

C. Perquisites & Allowances: The following Perquisites & Allowances are included in gross salary
i. House Rent Allowance: House Rent Allowance in accordance with the rules of the Company.
ii. Medical Reimbursement: Expenses incurred for the appointee and his family subject to a ceiling of one  month 
salary in one year.
iii. Leave Travel Concession: As per rules of the Company.
iv. Club Fees: Fees of club subject to maximum of two clubs. This will not include admission and life
membership fees.
v. Personal Accident Insurance: Personal Accident Insurance Cover as applicable in line with rules & policies of 
the Company.
vi. Contribution to Provident Fund: As per Company rules.
vii. Gratuity: As per Company rules subject to maximum of half months salary for each completed year of service.
viii. Encashment of leaves- As per rules of the Company at the end of tenure. D. 

General Information: i. Nature of Industry: Sale of Rice both in India and overseas markets. The company is 
engaged in the business of manufacturing and trading, both Export and Domestic, of rice. 

ii. Date of Commencement of Activity: 03rd January, 1995.

iii. Financial performance based on given indicators: The Company has grown rapidly in the recent years. Net 
Profit after Tax increase to 11,67,54,272.74 Rupees as compared to 5,59,09,247.8 Rupees in the previous year.
Foreign investments or collaborations, if any: Your Company has One subsidiary viz., GRM International 
Holdings Ltd. in overseas.
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E. Information about the appointee:

Background details

Past remuneration drawn

R e c o g n i t i o n  a n d  
Awards/Achievements

Job profile and suitability

Remuneration proposed

C o m p a r a t i v e  
remuneration profile with 
respect to industry, size of 
the Company, profile of 
the position and person (in 
case of expatriates the 
relevant details would be 
w.r.t. the country

Pecuniary relationship 
directly or indirectly with 
t h e  C o m p a n y  o r  
r e l a t i o n s h i p  w i t h  
managerial personnel, if 
any

Mr. Rohit Garg is a B.Com and has 
vast experience relating to rice 
industry and is capable of handling 
his responsibilities very efficiently. 
He is managing the day to day affairs 
of the Company with the assistance 
of the Board of Directors and 
executives of the Company.

250,000/- per month

None

Marketing

7,00,000/- per month

The remuneration payable to the 
Directors has been benchmarked 
with the remuneration being drawn 
by similar positions in the same 
industry and has been considered by 
the Nomination and Remuneration 
Committee of the Company at its 
Meeting held on August 14, 2018.

The Whole-time Directors have no 
pecuniary relationship directly or 
indirectly with the Company except 
to the extent of their remuneration 
and shareholdings in the Company

Mr. Atul Garg is a B.B.A. and has vast 
experience relating to rice industry and 
i s  c a p a b l e  o f  h a n d l i n g  h i s  
responsibilities very efficiently. He is 
managing the day to day affairs of the 
Company with the assistance of the 
Board of Directors and executives of the 
Company.

250,000/- per month

None

Marketing

7,00,000/- per month

The remuneration payable to the 
Directors has been benchmarked with 
the remuneration being drawn by similar 
positions in the same industry and has 
been considered by the Nomination and 
Remuneration Committee of the 
Company at its Meeting held on August 
14, 2018.

The Whole-time Directors have no 
pecuniary relationship directly or 
indirectly with the Company except to 
the extent of their remuneration and 
shareholdings in the Company

Particulars Rohit Garg Atul Garg

Save and except Mr. Rohit Garg and Mr Atul Garg and his relatives, none of the other Directors / Key Managerial 
Personnel of the Company / their relatives are in anyway, concerned or interested, financially or otherwise, in the 
resolution set out at Item No. 8 &9 of the Notice. 
The Board commends the Special Resolution set out at Item No. 8 & 9 of the Notice for approval by the members.

Item No. 10 

The shareholders are also informed that Securities and Exchange Board of India vide its notification dated 9th 
May 2018 has amended clause 17 of the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 
2015 which requires that “No listed entity shall appoint a person or continue the directorship of any person as a 
non-executive director who has attained the age of 75 years unless a special resolution is passed to that effect, in 
which case the explanatory statement annexed to the notice for such motion shall indicate the justification for 
appointing such a person.” This provision will come into force w.e.f. 1st April 2019.

The shareholders are further informed that the current age of Mr. Hukam Chand Garg is approximately 75 years. 
Mr. Hukam Chand Garg is having more than 40 years of experience in the field of Rice Industry. He is a Promoter 
and Director of GRM Overseas Limited.  He has steered the Company into a growth trajectory. He holds various 
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eminent positions in various reputed organization. He plays a key role on the project implementation of the 
Company.

The Board of Director considers that in view of the background and experience of Mr. Hukam Chand Garg, it 
would be in the interest of the Company to continue his guidance as the Director of the Company.

Save and except Mr. Hukam Chand Garg and his relatives, none of the other Directors / Key Managerial 
Personnel of the Company / their relatives are in anyway, concerned or interested, financially or otherwise, in the 
resolution set out at Item No. 10 of the Notice. 
The Board commends the Special Resolution set out at Item No. 10 of the Notice for approval by the members.

Disclosure Pursuant To Regulation 36 Of The SEBI Listing Regulations Regarding Appointment Or Re-
Appointment Of Directors At The Forthcoming  AGM

1. Mr. Hukam Chand Garg

Mr. Hukam Chand Garg, aged about 75 years, is a diploma holder in Engineering from Chandigarh 
University. He is one of the first director of the Company, named in the Articles of Association and has been 
appointed as Director since January 1995.

Nature of his expertise in specific functional areas:

Mr. Hukam Chand Garg is having more than 40years of experience in the field of Rice Industry. The 
Visionary behind the success of the Company, Mr. Hukam is the founder Chairman of GRM Overseas 
Limited. He has been instrumental, in turning the Company into a global brand and the leader in Indian 
Industry. He holds various eminent positions in various reputed organization. He plays a key role on the 
project implementation of the Company. He also formulates the marketing strategy of the Company and 
supervises the marketing functions.

Disclosure of relationship between directors inter-se:

Mr. Rohit Garg, Managing Director and Mr. Atul Garg,Joint Managing Directors are brothers and Mr. Hukam 
Chand Garg, Director is the Father of Mr. Rohit Garg and Mr. Atul Garg.

Listed Entities (other than GRM Overseas Limited) in which Mr. Hukam Chand Garg holds directorship and 
membership in committees are as follows:

Directorship:  Nil

Chairperson of Board Committees: Nil.

Member of Board Committees: Nil.

Shareholding in the Company: 10,00,200

2. Mr. Nipun Jain

Mr. Nipun Jain, aged about 52 years, is a Chartered Accountant and commerce graduate..

Nature of his expertise in specific functional areas:

Mr. Nipun Jain has approximately 29 years of rich and versatile experience, which includes extensive 
experience in specialty. Mr. Nipun is also a Director with The Panipat Urban co-operative Bank Ltd. for 10 
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years and associated with Youth Hostels Association of India since 15 years. Mr. Nipun have Expertise in 
Auditing, fund raising, corporate laws

Disclosure of relationship between directors inter-se:

Not related to any director of the Company.

Listed Entities (other than GRM Overseas Limited) in which Mr. Nipun Jain holds directorship and 
membership in committees are as follows:

Directorship: Nil

Chairperson of Board Committees: Nil.

Member of Board Committees: Nil.

Shareholding in the Company: Nil

3. Mr. Raj Kumar Garg

Mr. Raj kumar Garg, aged about 65 years, is a MBBS. Mr. Raj Kumar Garg has approximately 25 years of 
rich and versatile experience.

Nature of his expertise in specific functional areas:

Dr. Raj Kumar Garg is a MBBS and also holds MD degree. He has numerous senior positions as surgeon in 
various reputed private and government hospitals.

Disclosure of relationship between directors inter-se:

Not related to any director of the Company.

Listed Entities (other than GRM Overseas Limited) in which Mr. Raj Kumar Garg holds directorship and 
membership in committees are as follows:

Directorship:  Nil
Chairperson of Board Committees: Nil.

Member of Board Committees: Nil.

Shareholding in the Company: Nil

4. Mr. Pardeep Kumar Singal

Mr. Pardeep Kumar Singal, aged about 50 years, is a graduate. Mr.Pardeep Kumar Singal has 
approximately 29 years of rich and versatile experience, which includes extensive experience in specialty.

Nature of his expertise in specific functional areas:

Mr. Pardeep Kumar Singal is Graduate and his core area is management. He has a vast experience of over 
29 years in import and export business. Mr. Pardeep Kumar Singal is Innovative Executive with 
Professional experience in Multi Unit Business Operations. 
The Board of Director considers that in view of the background and experience of Mr. Pardeep Kumar, it 
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would be in the interest of the Company to appoint him as a Director of the Company.

Disclosure of relationship between directors inter-se:

Not related to any director of the Company.

Listed Entities (other than GRM Overseas Limited) in which Mr. Pradeep Kumar holds directorship and  
membership in committees are as follows:

Directorship: Nil

Chairperson of Board Committees: Nil.

Member of Board Committees: Nil.

Shareholding in the Company: Nil

Place : Delhi 
Date : August 14, 2018

      S/d-
Rohit Garg
DIN:00673304
Chairman & Managing Director
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BOARD REPORT

TO,

THE MEMBERS,
GRM OVERSES LIMITED

Your Directors have great pleasure in presenting their 24thAnnual Report together with 
the Audited Accounts of the Company for the Year ended March 31, 2018.

Particular

Revenue from 

Operations

Other Income

Total Income

Operating 

Expenditure

Earnings before 

Interest, Tax, 

Depreciation and

Amortization 

(EBITDA)

Depreciation and 

Amortization 

Expenses

Finance Costs

Profit before 

Exceptional Items and 

Tax

Exceptional Items

Tax expense

Current Year

Deferred Tax Credit

Mat Credit Entitlement

Profit After Tax (PAT)

Other Comprehensive 

Income

Total Comprehensive 

Income for the year

Balance as per the 

last Financial 

Statements

As at the end of 

current reporting 

period 

9,24,96,03,327.77

Nil

9,24,96,03,327.77

8,90,09,98,032.31

34,86,05,295.46

2,02,60,505.39

14,73,84,780.33

18,09,60,009.74

Nil

6,35,33,795.00

6,71,942.00

Nil

11,67,54,272.74

Nil

11,67,54,272.74

40,79,40,782.23

As at the end of 

previous reporting 

period

5,91,15,07,500.40

5,000.00

5,91,15,12,500.40

5,70,90,00,683.76

20,25,11,816.64

1,92,79,304.13

9,85,18,312.62

8,47,14,199.89

Nil

2,88,56,089.00

(51,137.00)

Nil

5,59,09,247.89

Nil

5,59,09,247.89

29,11,86,509.49

As at the end of 

current reporting 

period

9,44,15,30,170.77

7,15,464.00

9,44,22,45,634.77

9,09,15,38,493.31

35,07,07,141.46

2,02,88,503.39

14,75,51,767.33

18,28,66,870.24

Nil

6,36,32,291.00

6,87,902.00

Nil

11,85,46,677.74

Nil

11,85,46,677.74

40,96,92,291.23

As at the end of 

previous reporting 

period

5,91,15,07,500.40

5,000.00

5,91,15,12,500.40

5,70,93,45,442.76

20,21,67,057.64

1,92,79,304.13

9,82,14,449.62

8,46,73,303.89

Nil

2,88,56,089.00

(51,137.00)

Nil

5,58,68,351.89

Nil

5,58,68,351.89

29,11,45,613.49
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Appropriations

1. Dividends + Tax

2. Transfer to General 

Reserve

3. Prior period Items

Retained Earnings

Earning per equity 

share

1 Basic

2. Diluted

2,16,70,648.00

Nil

Nil

Nil

38,62,70,134.23

31.65

31.65

Nil

Nil

Nil

Nil

29,11,86,509.49

15.15

15.15

2,16,70,648.00

Nil

Nil

Nil

38,80,21,643.23

32.13

32.13

Nil

Nil

Nil

Nil

29,11,45,613.49

15.14

15.14

CURRENT YEAR WORKING:

Your Directors hereby inform you that in the current year the overall performance of the company are good as 
compare to the last financial year. During the current year the Company would make all efforts to accelerate its' 
pace of growth and overall performance.

DIVIDEND:

Based on Company’s performance in the current year, the Board of Directors of the Company has recommended 
a final dividend of Rs. 5 per equity share of face value of Rs. 10/- each, for the year ended March 31, 2018. The 
same shall be paid subject to the approval of shareholders in the ensuing Annual General Meeting of the 
Company
. 
TRANSFER TO RESERVES

The Company has not transferred any amount to reserves.

Changes in the nature of business, if any

There is no change in the nature of business of your company during the year under review.

SUBSIDIARY COMPANY AND CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Your Company has One subsidiary viz., GRM International Holdings Ltd. There are no associate companies 
within the meaning of Section2(6) of the Companies Act, 2013 (“Act”). Further there has been no material change 
in the nature of business of the subsidiaries during the financial year 2017-18.

The Consolidated Financial Statements of your Company for the financial year 2017-18 are prepared in 
compliance with applicable provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 read with the Rules issued thereunder, 
applicable Indian Accounting Standards (Ind As) and the provisions of SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure 
Requirements)Regulations, 2015 (hereinafter referred to as the “SEBI Listing Regulations”). The consolidated 
financial statements have been prepared by consolidating audited financial statements of your Company and its 
subsidiaries, as approved by the respective Board of Directors. Further, pursuant to the proviso of sub section (3) 
of section 129 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Companies (Accounts)Rules, 2014 a separate statement 
containing the salient features of the financial statements of Subsidiaries of the Company in the prescribed form 
AOC-1 is given in the Consolidated Financial Statements, forming part of this Annual report.

Consolidated Turnover is ̀  9,44,15,30,170 Rupees as compared to 5,91,15,07,500 Rupees in the same period ` 

ANNUAL REPORT 2017-2018.......14



GRM GRM OVERSEAS LIMITED

previous year. Consolidated Net Profit after Tax increase to 11,85,46,677 as compared to ̀  
5,58,68,351  in the previous year.

The financial statements of the subsidiary companies and related information are available for inspection by the 
members at the Registered Office of your Company during business hours on all days except Sunday and holiday 
upto the date of the Annual General Meeting(‘AGM’) as required under Section 136 of the Companies Act, 2013. 
Any member desirous of obtaining a copy of the said financial statements may write to the Company Secretary at 
the Registered Office / Corporate Office of your Company. The financial statements including the consolidated 
financial statements, financial statements of subsidiaries and all other documents shall also be available on 
Company’s website www.grmrice.com in downloadable format.

SHARE CAPITAL:

The paid up equity capital as on March 31, 2018 was Rs. 3,68,95,000.There has been no change in the Equity 
Share Capital of the Company during the year. The Company has no other type of securities except equity shares 
forming part of paid up capital.

TRANSFER OF AMOUNTS AND SHARES TO INVESTOR EDUCATION & PROTECTION FUND

Pursuant to the provisions of Section 124 of the, Audit, Companies Act, 2013 and Investor Education and 
Protection Fund Authority (Accounting Transfer and Refund) Amendment Rules, 2017, read with all relevant 
notifications as issued by the Ministry of Corporate Affairs from time to time all shares in respect of which dividend 
has remained unpaid or unclaimed for a period of seven years have been transferred by the Company, within the 
stipulated due date, to the Investor Education and Protection Fund (IEPF).

Your Company during the year 2017-18 has transferred a total amount aggregating to ` 358008 as Unpaid Final 
Dividend for FY 2009-10 to the Investor Education and Protection Fund. This amount was lying unclaimed/ unpaid 
with the Company for a period of seven years after Declaration of Dividend for the financial year 2009-10.

A list of shareholders alongwith their folio number or DP. ID. & Client ID., who have not claimed their dividends for 
the last seven consecutive years i.e. 2010-11 to 2016-17 and whose shares are therefore liable for transfer to the 
IEPF Demat account, has been displayed on the website of the Company at www.grmrice.com. 

MATERIAL CHANGES AND COMMITMENTS, IF ANY, AFFECTING THE FINANCIAL POSITION OF THE 
COMPANY WHICH HAVE OCCURRED BETWEEN THE END OF THE FINANCIAL YEAR OF THE COMPANY 
TO WHICH THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS RELATE AND THE DATE OF THE REPORT

No material changes and commitments affecting the financial position of the Company occurred between the end 
of the financial year to which this financial statements relates and till the date of this Report.

SEGMENT REPORTING

Your company is engaged and focused on single activity of ‘Rice Sheller’ to provide better results and to be leader 
in its core activity. 

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

As on March 31, 2018, your Company’s Board has a strength of 06 (Six) Directors including 1 (One) Woman 
Director. The Chairman of the Board is an Executive Director.

The composition of the Board is as below:

Category Number of Directors % to Total Number of Directors
Executive Directors 2 33.33
Non Executive, Non Independent Director 1 16.67
Independent Non-Executive 3 50.00
Directors

  ̀   
` 
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AUDIT COMMITTEE

As on March 31, 2018, the Audit Committee of GRM Overseas Limited comprises of following 3 (Three) Members, 
all are Independent Non-Executive Directors:

Name Designation
Mr.Chetan Kapoor Chairman
Mr. Vikram Malik Member
Ms. Kiran Dua Member

All the recommendation made by the Audit Committee was accepted by the Board of Directors. The Powers and 
role of the Audit Committee are included in report on Corporate Governance forming part of this Annual Report.

KEY MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL:

The following employees were designated as whole-time key managerial personnel by the Board of Directors 
during the year under review:

(i) Mr. Rohit Garg, Managing Director
(ii) Mr. Atul Garg Joint Managing Director
(iii) Mr. Rattan Lal Mittal, Chief Financial Officer
(v) Mr .Sumit Bajaj- Company Secretary

REMUNERATION POLICY

The Board has, on the recommendation of the Appointment & Remuneration Committee framed a policy for 
selection and appointment of Directors, Senior Management and their remuneration. The Remuneration Policy is 
stated in the Corporate Governance Report.

NUMBER OF MEETINGS OF THE BOARD

During the Financial Year 2017-18, 9 (Nine) Board meetings were held. For details thereof kindly refer to the 
section ‘Board Meeting and Procedures - Details of Board Meetings held and attended by the directors during the 
financial year 2017-18, in the report of Corporate Governance forming part of this Annual Report.

STATEMENT ON ANNUAL EVALUATION OF THE BOARD, COMMITTEES AND INDIVIDUAL DIRECTORS

The Board has laid down the manner and criteria of evaluation of the Board of its own, Committees and Individual 
Directors in which annual evaluation of the Board, Committees of the Board and Individual Directors would be 
evaluated. The said criteria are aligned with the SEBI circular dated 5th January 2017 on ‘Guidance Note on 
Board Evaluation’. The evaluation includes various criteria including performance, knowledge, roles and 
responsibilities etc.

The Board of Directors has evaluated its Committees, Individual Directors (i.e. Executive and Non-executive 
Director) and the Board itself. After evaluation, the Board found their performances upto the mark and 
satisfactory. The Nomination and Remuneration Committee has also evaluated the individual performance of 
each Director and found it satisfactory.

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY STATEMENT

Pursuant to the provisions under Section 134(5) of the Companies Act, 2013, with respect to Directors’ 
Responsibility Statement, the Directors confirm:

i) that in the preparation of the Annual Accounts for the year ended March 31, 2018, the applicable Indian 
Accounting standards (Ind AS) have been followed and that there are no material departures;

ii) that appropriate accounting policies have been selected and applied consistently and judgments and 
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estimates that are reasonable and prudent have been made so as to give a true and fair view of the state 
of affairs as at March 31, 2018 and of the profit of the Company for the Financial year ended March 31, 
2018;

iii) that proper and sufficient care has been taken for the maintenance of adequate accounting records in 
accordance with the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 for safeguarding the assets of the Company 
and for preventing and detecting fraud and other irregularities;

iv) that the annual accounts for the year ended March 31,2018 have been prepared on a going concern 
basis;

v) that they had laid down internal financial controls to be followed by the Company and that such internal 
financial controls are adequate and were operating effectively; and

vi) that they had devised proper systems to ensure compliance with the provisions of all applicable law sand 
that such systems were adequate and operating effectively.

DECLARATION BY INDEPENDENT DIRECTOR(S) AND RE-APPOINTMENT, IF ANY

All Independent Directors have submitted their disclosures to the Board that they fulfill all the requirements as 
stipulated in Section 149(6) of the Companies Act, 2013 read with SEBI Listing Regulations, so as to qualify 
themselves to be appointed as Independent Directors under the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 and SEBI 
Listing Regulations.

OPERATIONS, PERFORMANCE AND FUTURE OUTLOOK OF THE COMPANY

A detailed review of operations and performance and future outlook of the Company is given separately under the 
head ‘Management Discussion & Analysis’ pursuant to Regulation 34 read with Part B of Schedule V of SEBI 
Listing Regulations, and the same is annexed and forms part of this Annual Report.

PARTICULARS OF REMUNERATION OF DIRECTORS AND KMPs

A statement containing the details of the Remuneration of Directors and KMPs as required under Section 197(12) 
of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Rule 5 of the Companies (Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial 
Personnel) Rules, 2014 is attached as part of this Report.

EXTRACT OF ANNUAL RETURN

Pursuant to the provisions of Section 92(3) of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Rule 12 of the Companies 
(Management and Administration) Rules, 2014, an extract of the Annual Return in Form MGT-9 is attached as 
‘Annexure 1’ which forms part of this Report.

AUDITORS AND AUDITORS’ REPORT

i ) STATUTORY AUDITORS

Pursuant to the provisions of Section 139 of the Companies Act, 2013, and rules framed their under the tenure of 
current auditors M/s Vishal Malhotra & Co., Chartered Accountants, (FRN-012750N) shall come to an end at the 
conclusion of forthcoming AGM.

Further, subject to the approval of shareholders of the Company in the ensuing annual general meeting M/s. 
Vinod Kumar & Associates., Chartered Accountants, (Firm Registration No. 002304N) was recommended for 
appointment by the Audit Committee and approved by the Board as Statutory Auditors of the Company to hold 
office from the conclusion of the 24th Annual General Meeting till the conclusion of 25th Annual General Meeting 
of the Company to be held in the year 2019, at such remuneration as may be mutually agreed between the Board 
of Directors of the Company in consultation with statutory auditors.
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The Company has also received a certificate from the Auditors to the effect, interalia, that their appointment, if 
made, would be within the limits laid down by the Act and they are not disqualified for such appointment under the 
provisions of applicable laws. 

The present Statutory Auditors- M/s Vishal Malhotra & Co., Chartered Accountants, have submitted their Report 
on the Financial Statements of the Company for the FY 2017-18, which forms part of the Annual Report 2017-18. 
The Notes on financial statement referred to in the Auditors’ Report are self-explanatory and do not call for any 
further comments. The Auditors’ Report does not contain any qualification, reservation or adverse remark.

There have been no instances of fraud reported by the Statutory Auditors under Section 143(12) of Companies 
Act, 2013 read with rules framed thereunder, either to the Company or to the Central Government.

ii) SECRETARIAL AUDITORS

Pursuant to the provisions of Section 204 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Companies (Appointment and 
Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014, the Company has appointed M/s Devesh Arora & 
Associates, Company Secretaries, having their office at, WZ-466A Ground Floor Basai Darapur, New Delhi-
110015 to undertake the Secretarial Audit functions of the Company.

The Secretarial Audit Report submitted by M/s Devesh Arora & Associates, in the prescribed form MR- 3 is 
attached as ‘Annexure 2’ which forms part of this Report. The Secretarial Auditors’ Report does not contain any 
qualification, reservation or adverse remark.

EXPLANATIONS OR COMMENTS BY THE BOARD ON QUALIFICATION, RESERVATION OR ADVERSE 
REMARK OR DISCLAIMER MADE:

There is no other qualification, reservation or adverse remark or disclaimer made by the auditor in his report; and 
the company secretary in practice in his secretarial audit report.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE 
The Corporate Governance report which form an integral part of this Report, are set out as separate Annexures, 
together with the Certificate from the auditors of the Company regarding compliance with the requirements of 
Corporate Governance as stipulated in Listing Obligation and Disclosure Requirements) 2015.

CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY INITIATIVES:

The company has duly constituted CSR Committee, which is responsible for fulfilling the CSR objectives of the 
company.

The Annual Report on CSR activities is annexed herewith as: Annexure 3

ENERGY CONSERVATION, RESEARCH AND DEVELOPMENT, TECHNOLOGY ABSORPTION AND 
FOREIGN EXCHANGE EARNINGS AND OUTGO

Pursuant to provisions of Section 134 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Rule 8(3) of the Companies 
(Accounts) Rules, 2014 the details of activities in the nature of Energy Conservation, Research and 
Development, Technology Absorption and Foreign Exchange Earnings and Outgo is attached as ‘Annexure 4’ 
which forms part of this Report

INTERNAL CONTROL SYSTEMS AND THEIR ADEQUACY:

The Company has an Internal Control System, commensurate with the size, scale and complexity of its 
operations. The scope and authority of the Internal Audit function is defined in the Internal Audit Manual. To 
maintain its objectivity and independence, the Internal Audit function reports to the Chairman of the Audit 
Committee of the Board & to the Chairman & Managing Director.
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The Internal Audit Department monitors and evaluates the efficacy and adequacy of internal control system in the 
Company, its compliance with operating systems, accounting procedures and policies at all locations of the 
Company. Based on the report of internal audit function, process owners undertake corrective action in their 
respective areas and thereby strengthen the controls. Significant audit observations and recommendations along 
with corrective actions thereon are presented to the Audit Committee of the Board.

APPOINTMENT OF INTERNAL AUDITOR:

The Company has appointed Ms.Heena Aggarwal as an Internal Auditor of the Company. Ms. Heena 
Aggarwal,placed the internal audit report to the Company which is self explanatory and need no comments.

DISCLOSURE ON DEPOSITS UNDER CHAPTER V

The Company has neither accepted nor renewed any deposits during the Financial Year 2017-18 in terms of 
Chapter V of the Companies Act, 2013. Further, the Company is not having any Unpaid or Unclaimed Deposits at 
the end of the Financial Year.

POLICY ON PREVENTION OF SEXUAL HARASSMENT AT WORKPLACE

The Board of Directors of the Company has laid down a policy on prevention of sexual harassment at the 
workplace. A Complaint Committee has also been formed by the Board of Directors to look into the complaints 
received, if any. During the year, the Company did not receive any complaint under the said policy.

CHANGE IN CAPITAL STRUCTURE AND LISTING OF SHARES

During the year under review there was no Change in Capital Structure and Listing of Shares. The Company’s 
shares are listed and actively traded on the Bombay Stock Exchange.

PARTICULARS OF LOANS, GUARANTEES OR INVESTMENTS:

The company has not given any loans or guarantees covered under the provisions of section 186 of the 
Companies Act, 2013.The details of the investments made by company is given in the notes to the financial 
statements.

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS:

During the year under review, the Board has adopted a policy to regulate the transactions of the Company with its 
related parties. As per policy, all the related party transactions required prior approval of Audit Committee and 
Board of Directors of the Company. Prior approval of shareholders of the Company is also required for certain 
related party transactions as prescribed under Companies Act, 2013 and listing agreement. The said policy is 
available at the company website viz. http/www.grmrice.com.

All related party transactions that were entered into during the financial year were on arm’s length basis and were 
in the ordinary course of the business. There are no materially significant related party transactions made by the 
company with promoters, key managerial personnel or other designated persons which may have potential 
conflict with interest of the company at large.

DISCLOSURE ON VIGIL MECHANISM (WHISTLE BLOWER POLICY)

Pursuant to Regulation 22 of SEBI Listing Regulations, your Company has established a mechanism called Vigil 
Mechanism (Whistle Blower Policy)’ for directors and employees to report to the appropriate authorities of 
unethical behaviour, actual or suspected, fraud or violation of the Company’s code of conduct or ethics policy and 
provides safeguards against victimization of employees who avail the mechanism. The policy permits all the 
directors and employees to report their concerns directly to the Chairman of the Audit Committee of the Company.
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‘The Vigil Mechanism (Whistle Blower Policy)’ as approved by the Board, is uploaded on the Company’s website.

MATERIAL ORDERS BY GOVERNING AUTHORITIES

There were no significant or material orders passed by any governing authority of the Company including 
regulators, courts or tribunals, which could affect the going concern status and the Company’s operations in 
future.

FINANCE:

Cash and cash equivalents as at March 31, 2018 was Rs. 30,03,025 The company continues to focus on judicious 
management of its working capital, Receivables, inventories and other working capital parameters were kept 
under strict check through continuous monitoring.

INDUSTRIAL RELATIONS:
During the year under review, your Company enjoyed cordial relationship with workers and employees at all 
levels.

DIRECTORS:
In accordance with the Section 152 of the Companies Act, 2013 & Articles of Association of the Company, Mr. 
Hukam Chand Garg, Director of the Company, retire by rotation at the ensuing Annual General Meeting & being 
eligible offers herself for re-appointment and the Board of Directors recommends for his re-appointment.

BOARD EVALUATION

Pursuant to the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 and applicable provisions of the SEBI (LODR) 
Regulations, 2015 the Board has carried out an evaluation of its own performance, the directors individually as 
well as the evaluation of the working of its Audit, Appointment & Remuneration Committees. The manner in which 
the evaluation has been carried out has been explained in the Corporate Governance Report.

CODE OF CONDUCT:
The Board of Directors has approved a Code of Conduct which is applicable to the Members of the Board and all 
employees in the course of day to day business operations of the company. The Company believes in “Zero 
Tolerance” against bribery, corruption and unethical dealings / behaviors of any form and the Board has laid down 
the directives to counter such acts. The code laid down by the Board is known as “code of business conduct” 
which forms an Appendix to the Code. The Code has been posted on the Company’s website www.grmrice.com.
The Code lays down the standard procedure of business conduct which is expected to be followed by the 
Directors and the designated employees in their business dealings and in particular on matters relating to integrity 
in the work place, in business practices and in dealing with stakeholders. The Code gives guidance through 
examples on the expected behaviour from an employee in a given situation and the reporting structure.
All the Board Members and the Senior Management personnel have confirmed compliance with the Code. All 
Management Staff were given appropriate training in this regard.

PREVENTION OF INSIDER TRADING:

The Company has adopted a Code of Conduct for Prevention of Insider Trading with a view to regulate trading in 
securities by the Directors and designated employees of the Company. The Code requires pre-clearance for 
dealing in the Company’s shares and prohibits the purchase or sale of Company shares by the Directors and the 
designated employees while in possession of unpublished price sensitive information in relation to the Company 
and during the period when the Trading Window is closed. The Board is responsible for implementation of the 
Code.
All Board Directors and the designated employees have confirmed compliance with the Code.

ANNUAL REPORT 2017-2018.......20



GRM GRM OVERSEAS LIMITED

BUSINESS RISK MANAGEMENT:

Pursuant to section 134 (3) (n) of the Companies Act, 2013 & provisions of SEBI (LODR) Regulations, 2015, the 
company has constituted a business risk management committee. The details of the committee and its terms of 
reference are set out in the corporate governance report forming part of the Boards report.
At present the company has not identified any element of risk which may threaten the existence of the company.

PARTICULARS OF EMPLOYEES:

PARTICULARS PURSUANT TO SECTION 197(12) READ WITH RULE 5(1) OF THE COMPANIES 
(APPOINTMENT AND REMUNERATION OF MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL) RULES, 2014

• The ratio of the remuneration of each director to the median employee’s remuneration for the financial year 
and such other details as prescribed is as given below:

Name of Director Ratio
Shr iAtulGarg- (Whole-Time-Director)  24.27
ShriRohit Garg- (Whole-Time-Director)   24.27

• The percentage increase in remuneration of each director, Chief Financial Officer, Chief Executive Officer, 
Company Secretary or Manager, if any, in the financial year:-

S.No. Name Designation % Change

1. Mr. Rohit Garg Chairman & Managing Director 32.81

2. Mr. Atul Garg Whole-Time-Director 32.81

3. Mr. Hukam Chand Garg Director Nil

4. Mr. Sumit Bajaj Company Secretary NA

5. Mr. Rattan Lal Mittal Chief Financial Officer Nil

• The number of permanent employees on the rolls of company:-87

• The explanation on the relationship between average increase in remuneration and company performance:-

Year ended 2017 Year ended 2018 % increase

Employee benefit expenses 21,774,128 2,93,60,956.00 34.84

Sales 5,911,507,500.40 9,24,96,03,327.77 56.46

profit 55,909,247.89 11,67,54,272.74 108.82

EPS 15.15 31.65 108.91

• Average percentile increase already made in the salaries of employees other than the managerial personnel 
in the last financial year and its comparison with the percentile increase in the managerial remuneration and 
justification thereof and there are any exceptional circumstances for increase in the managerial remuneration:-
N.A
• The key parameters for any variable component of remuneration availed by the directors:-N.A
• The ratio of the remuneration of the highest paid director to that of the employees who are not directors but 
receive remuneration in excess of the highest paid director during the year:-N.A
• Affirmation that the remuneration is as per the remuneration policy of the company. YES
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS REPORT

As required by Regulation 34 read with Para B of Schedule Vof Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing 
Obligationsand Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 {‘SEBI (LODR)Regulations, 2015’}, a detailed 
‘Management Discussion and Analysis Report’ (MDA) is attached as a separate section forming part of the 
Annual Report. More details on operations and a view on the outlook for the current year are also given in the 
‘Management Discussion and Analysis Report’.

HEALTH, SAFETY AND ENVIRONMENT PROTECTION:

The Company has complied with all the applicable environmental law and labour laws. The Company has been 
complying with the relevant laws and has been taking all necessary measures to protect the environment and 
maximize worker protection and safety. 

ACKNOWLEDGMENTS:

Your Company and its Directors wish to extend their sincerest thanks to the Members of the Company, Bankers, 
State Government, Local Bodies, Customers, Suppliers, Executives, Staff and workers at all levels for their 
continuous co-operationand assistance.

Delhi 
August 14, 2018

      S/d-
Rohit Garg
DIN:00673304
Chairman & Managing Director

ANNUAL REPORT 2017-2018.......22

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors



GRM GRM OVERSEAS LIMITED

FORM No. MGT-9

EXTRACT OF ANNUAL RETURN AS ON THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED ON 31ST MARCH 2018

[Pursuanttosection92(3)oftheCompaniesAct,2013 andrule12(1)ofthe
Companies(ManagementandAdministration)Rules, 2014]

I. REGISTRATIONANDOTHERDETAILS:

i.

ii.

iii.

iv.

v.

vi.

vii.

CIN

RegistrationDate

NameoftheCompany

Category/Sub-CategoryoftheCompany

AddressoftheRegisteredofficeandcontac

tdetails

Whetherlistedcompany

Name, Address and Contact details of 

Registrar and TransferAgent,Ifany

L74899DL1995PLC064007

03/01/1995

GRM OVERSEAS LIMITED

COMPANY LIMITED BY SHARES

128, FIRST FLOOR, SHIVA MARKET, 

PITAMPURA, DELHI-110034.

TEL:011-47330330,                     

WEBSITE: WWW.GRMRICE.COM, 

Yes

ABHIPRA CAPITAL LIMITED,

A-387, ABHIPRA COMPLEX, G T KARNAL 

ROAD, DILKHUSH INDL. AREA, AZADPUR, 

DELHI-110033. PH: 011-42390783

II. PRINCIPAL BUSINESS ACTIVITIES OF THE COMPANY

Allthebusinessactivitiescontributing10%ormoreofthetotalturnoverofthecompanyshallbestated:-

Sr. No. Name and Description of 
main products/ services

NIC Code of the Product/ 
service

%  to total turnover of the 
company

1 RICE 10612 100%

III. PARTICULARS OF HOLDING, SUBSIDIARY AND ASSOCIATE COMPANIES

Sr. No. Name and Address Of 
The Company

CIN/GLN Holding/ Subsidiary
/Associate

1 GRM INTERNATIONAL 
HOLDINGS LTD

N.A. Subsidiary

%of shares held

100

Applicable
Section

Sec-2(87)(ii)

Annexure - 1
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IV. SHARE HOLDING PATTERN (Equity Share Capital Breakup as percentage of TotalEquity)

Category of

Shareholders

No. of Shares held at the 
beginning of the year

No. of Shares held at the end 
of the year

% Change 
during 

The year

Demat Physical Total % of 
Total 

Shares

Demat Physical Total % of 
Total 

Shares

i.  Category-wiseShareHolding

A. Promoter

1) Indian

a) Individual/ HUF 2716200 NIL 2716200 73.62 2716200 NIL 2716200 73.62 NIL

b) CentralGovt. NIL NIL NIL NIL NIL NIL NIL NIL NIL

c) State Govt(s) NIL NIL NIL NIL NIL NIL NIL NIL NIL

d) Bodies Corp NIL NIL NIL NIL NIL NIL NIL NIL NIL

e) Banks / FI NIL NIL NIL NIL NIL NIL NIL NIL NIL

f) Any Other NIL NIL NIL NIL NIL NIL NIL NIL NIL

Sub-total(A)(1):- 2716200 2716200 73.62 2716200 2716200 73.62 NIL

2) Foreign

g) NRIs-Individuals NIL NIL NIL NIL NIL NIL NIL NIL NIL

h) Other-Individuals NIL NIL NIL NIL NIL NIL NIL NIL NIL

i) Bodies Corp. NIL NIL NIL NIL NIL NIL NIL NIL NIL

j) Banks / FI NIL NIL NIL NIL NIL NIL NIL NIL NIL

k) Any Other…. NIL NIL NIL NIL NIL NIL NIL NIL NIL

Sub-total(A)(2):- NIL NIL NIL NIL NIL NIL NIL NIL NIL

Total share holding 

of  Promoter (A) = 

(A)(1)+(A)(2) 2716200 NIL 2716200 73.62 2716200 NIL 2716200 73.62 NIL

B. Public 

Shareholding

Institutions

a) Mutual Funds NIL 78300 78300 2.12 NIL NIL NIL NIL (2.12)

b) Banks / FI  124000 NIL 124000 3.36 124000 NIL 124000 3.36 NIL

c) Central Govt. NIL NIL NIL NIL NIL NIL NIL NIL NIL

d) State Govt.(s) 117192 NIL  117192 3.18 77192 NIL 77192 2.09 (1.09)

e) Venture Capital 

Funds NIL NIL NIL NIL NIL NIL NIL NIL NIL
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f) Insurance

 Companies NIL NIL NIL NIL NIL NIL NIL NIL NIL

g) FIIs NIL NIL NIL NIL NIL NIL NIL NIL NIL

h) Foreign Venture 

Capital Funds NIL NIL NIL NIL NIL NIL NIL NIL NIL

i) Others (specify) NIL NIL NIL NIL NIL NIL NIL NIL NIL

Sub-total(B)(1)  241192 78300 319492 8.66 201192 NIL 201192 5.45 (3.21)

2. Non Institutions

a) Bodies Corp.

(i) Indian 99285 100 99385 2.69 78030 NIL 78030 2.11 0.58

(ii) Overseas     NIL NIL NIL NIL NIL NIL NIL NIL NIL

b) Individuals

(i) Individual 

shareholders holding 

nominal share 

capital upto 

Rs. 2 lakh 204807  43400 248207 6.73 300233 27950 328183 8.90 2.17

(ii) Individual 

shareholders holding 

nominal share capital 

in excess of Rs 2 lakh 173900  NIL 173900 4.71 151104 NIL 151104 4.10 (0.61)

c) Others

i- NRI 2801 48300 51101 1.38 6690 16700 23390 0.63 (0.75)

ii- Clearing Members NIL NIL NIL NIL 200 NIL 200 0.01 0.01

iii- HUF 37315 NIL 37315 1.01 25199 NIL 25199 0.68 (0.33)

iv- NRI/OCBs NIL 43900 43900 1.19 NIL NIL NIL NIL 1.19

v- Investor NIL NIL NIL NIL 166002 NIL 166002 4.50 4.50

Education and 

Protection Fund 2801 Nil 37315 Nil Nil 48300 Nil Nil 43900

Sub-total(B)(2) 518108 135700 653808 17.72 727458 44650 772108 20.93 1.09

TotalPublic 

Shareholding (B)

=(B)(1)+ (B)(2) 759300 214000 973300 26.38 928650 44650 973300 26.38 0.00

C.Shares heldby 

Custodianfor GDRs

&ADRs NIL NIL NIL NIL NIL NIL NIL NIL NIL

GrandTotal

(A+B+C) 3475500 214000 3689500 100 3644850 44650 3689500 100 Nil
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ii. Shareholding of Promoters

Sr. No Shareholder’s Name
Shareholding at the 

beginning of the year
Shareholding at the 
end of the year

No. of 
Shares

% of total 
Shares of 
the 
company

%of 
Shares 
Pledged / 
encumber
ed to 

No. of 
Shares

% of total 
Shares 
of the 
company

%of 
Shares 
Pledged / 
encumbe
red to 

% change 
in share 
holding 

HUKAM CHAND  
GARG

ROHIT GARG

ATUL GARG

Total

1.

2.

3.

1000200

858000

858000

2716200

iii. Change in Promoters’ Shareholding (please specify, if there is change) NOT APPLICABLE

Sr. No.
Shareholding at the beginning of 
the year

Cumulative Shareholding during 
the year

At the beginning of 
the year

1.

2.

% of total 
shares of the 
company

No. of 
Shares

No. of 
Shares

% of total 
shares of the 
company

Date wise Increase / 
Decrease in 
Promoters Share 
holding during the 
year specifying the 
reasons for increase/ 
decrease (e.g. 
allotment / transfer / 
bonus/ sweat equity 
etc):

N.A. N.A. N.A. N.A.

N.A. N.A. N.A. N.A.

N.A. N.A. N.A. N.A.3.
At the End of the 
year

27.110

23.255

23.255

73.62

NIL

NIL

NIL

NIL

1000200

858000

858000

2716200

27.110

23.255

23.255

73.62

NIL

NIL

NIL

NIL

NIL

NIL

NIL

NIL
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(iv) Shareholding Pattern of top ten Shareholders (other than Directors, Promoters and Holders of 
GDRs and ADRs):

Sr. 
No

Shareholding at the beginning 
of the year

Shareholding at the end of the 
year

Particulars

1.

2.

3.

4.

5.

6.

7.

8.

9.

10.

0

118650

31250

24000

0

0

0

10140

0

9365

0

3.21588

0.84699

0.65049

0

0

 0

0.27

0

0.25

166002

73650

31250

24000

22204

15011

10628

10140

9950

9910

4.50

2.00

0.85

0.65

0.60

0.41

0.29

0.27

0.27

0.27

No. of shares % of total shares No. of shares % of total shares

V. INDEBTEDNESS

Indebtedness of the Company including interest outstanding/accrued but not due for payment

Secured Loans 
excluding 

Deposits

Indebtednessatthe 
beginningofthefinancial year

i) Principal Amount
ii) Interest due but not paid
iii) Interest accrued but not
Total(i+ii+iii)
Change in Indebtedness during 
the financial year
-  Addition

-  Reduction
Net Change
Indebtedness  at the
end  of the financial year

i) Principal Amount
ii) Interest due but notpaid
iii) Interest accrued but not due

Total (i+ii+iii)

1,50,56,08,840.88 
Nil
Nil

1,50,56,08,840.88 

84,22,04,151.01 
Nil

84,22,04,151.01

2,34,78,12,992.16
Nil
Nil

2,34,78,12,992.16

47,47,94,720
Nil
Nil

47,47,94,720

9,56,27,364.00 
NIL

9,56,27,364.00

57,04,22,084.00
             Nil

Nil

57,04,22,084.00

Unsecured
Loans

Total
Indebtedne

INVESTOR EDUCATION 

AND PROTECTION 

FUND AUTHOR ITY 

MINISTRY OF 

CORPORATE AFFAIRS

OM PARKASH 

MITTALDHEERAJ MITTAL 

KISHNI DEVI

OM PRAKASH 

ANIL KUMAR BANSAL

PROMILA GUPTA

SUMANGLA 

SINGALASHISH

MRIDULA

NIL
NIL
NIL
NIL

NIL
NIL

NIL

NIL
NIL
NIL

NIL

1,98,04,03,560.88
Nil
Nil

1,98,04,03,560.88
 

93,78,31,515.01 
NIL

93,78,31,515.01

2,91,82,35,076.16 
Nil
Nil

2,91,82,35,076.16 
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VI. REMUNERATIONOFDIRECTORSANDKEYMANAGERIAL PERSONNEL
A. RemunerationtoManagingDirector,Whole-time-Directorsand/orManager: (Rs. In Rupees)

Sr. 
No

Name of 
MD/WTD/Manager

Particulars of Remuneration Total
Amount

HUKAM 
CHAND 
GARG
DIRECOTTR

ROHIT 
GARG-
WTD

ATUL 
GARG-
WTD

*Mr. Hukam Chand Garg designated on the post of Managing Director till 28th August 2017 and received 

B.Remunerationtootherdirectors:

Sr. 
No

Name of 
MD/WTD/Manager

Particulars of Remuneration Total
Amount

Independent Directors
•Fee for attending board and 
committee meetings - - - -
•Commission
•Others, please specify

- - - - - -

Other Non-Executive Directors
•Fee for attending board and 
 committee meetings
•Commission
•Others, please specify

- - - - -

Total(2) Nil NIL NIL NILNIL

Total(B)=(1+2) NIL NIL NIL NILNIL

Total Managerial Remuneration NIL NIL NIL NILNIL

Overall Ceiling as per the Act NIL NIL NIL NILNIL

1. Gross alary

(a)Salary as per provisions containedinsection
17(1) of the Income-tax Act,1961

(b)Value of perquisites u/s 17 (2)
Income-tax Act,1961

(c)Profits in lieu of salary undersection17
(3)Income- taxAct,1961

2. Stock Option
3. Sweat Equity
4. Commission

-  as%ofprofit
-  others,specify…

5. Others, please specify
6. Total(A)

25,50,000

NIL

NIL

NIL

NIL

NIL

NIL

25,50,000

25,50,000

NIL

NIL

NIL

NIL

NIL

NIL

25,50,000

9,00,000

NIL

NIL

NIL

NIL

NIL

NIL

9,00,000

60,00,000

NIL

NIL

NIL

NIL

NIL

NIL

60,00,000
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C. RemunerationtoKeyManagerialPersonnelOtherThan MD/Manager/WTD:(Rs. In Rupees)

Sr. 
No

KeyManagerialPersonnelParticulars of Remuneration

Total
Company
Secretary

CFO

1 Gross salary

(a)Salary as per provisions contained in section

17(1)of the Income-tax Act,1961

(b)Value of perquisites u/s 17(2)Income-tax

Act,1961

(c)Profitsinlieuof salary under section17(3)Income-tax

Act,1961

2 Stock Option

3 Sweat Equity

4 Commission-  as%of profit -others, specify…

5 Others, please specify

6 Total

VII. PENALTIES/PUNISHMENT/COMPOUNDING OF OFFENCES:

A. Company
Penalty
Punishment
Compounding

B. Directors
Penalty
Punishment
Compounding

C. Other Officers In Default
Penalty
Punishment
Compounding

Type

Section of 
the 

companies 
Act

Brief 
description

Details of Penalty/
Punishment/Com

pounding fees 
imposed

Authority[RD
/NCLT/Court]

Appeal made. 
If any(give 

details)

Date: 14.08.2018

Rohit Garg

For GRM Overseas Limited

Sd/-

Chairman Cum Managing Director

60,000

NIL

NIL

NIL

NIL

NIL

NIL

60,000

3,00,000

NIL

NIL

NIL

NIL

NIL

NIL

3,00,000

3,60,000

NIL

NIL

NIL

NIL

NIL

NIL

3,60,000
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Form No. MR-3
SECRETARIAL AUDIT REPORT

For The Financial Year Ended 31st March, 2018
[Pursuant to section 204(1) of the Companies Act, 2013 and Rule No.9 of the Companies (Appointment 

and Remuneration Personnel) Rules, 2014]

To,
The Members of GRM OVERSEAS LIMITED

We have conducted the secretarial audit of the compliance of applicable statutory provisions and the adherence 
to good corporate practices by GRM Overseas Limited (hereinafter called “the Company”). Secretarial Audit was 
conducted in a manner that provided us a reasonable basis for evaluating the corporate conducts/ statutory 
compliances and expressing our opinion thereon.

Based on our verification of the Company’s books, papers, minute books, forms and returns filed and other 
records maintained by the Company and also the information provided by the Company, its officers, agents and 
authorized representatives during the conduct of secretarial audit, we hereby report that in our opinion, the 
Company has, during the audit for the financial year ended on 31st March, 2018, complied with the statutory 
provisions listed hereunder and also that the Company has proper board-processes and compliance-mechanism 
in place to the extent, in the manner and subject to the reporting made hereinafter.

We have examined the books, papers, minute books, forms and returns filed and other records maintained by the 
Company for the financial year ended 31st March, 2018, in accordance to the provisions of:

I. The Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”) and the Rules made thereunder to the extent applicable;
II. The Securities Contracts (Regulation) Act, 1956 (‘SCRA’) and the Rules made thereunder;
III. The Depositories Act, 1996 and the Regulations and Bye-laws framed thereunder;
IV. Foreign Exchange Management Act, 1999 and the Rules and Regulations made thereunder to the extent of 

Foreign Direct Investment and Overseas Direct Investment;
V. The following Regulations and Guidelines prescribed under the Securities and Exchange Board of India 

Act, 1992 (‘SEBI Act’) to the extent applicable to the Company:-
a. The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Substantial Acquisition of Shares and Takeovers) 

Regulations, 2011;
b. The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Prohibition of Insider Trading) Regulations, 2015;
c. The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue of Capital and Disclosure Requirements) 

Regulations, 2009;
d. The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue and Listing of Debt Securities) Regulations, 2008; 

Not Applicable
e. The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Registrars to an Issue and Share Transfer Agents) 

Regulations, 1993 regarding the Companies Act and dealing with client;
f. The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) 

Regulations, 2015.
VI. Other Laws which are applicable to the Company:

• The Employees’ Provident Fund & Miscellaneous Provisions Act, 1952.
• The Employees State Insurance Act, 1948.
• The Payment of Gratuity Act, 1972.
• The Labour Laws and Law relating to Payment of Wages.
• Sexual Harassment of Women at Work Place (Prevention, Prohibition and Redressal) Act, 2013.
• Miscellaneous Acts:
a) The Water (Prevention and Control of Pollution) Act, 1974.
b) The Air (Prevention and Control of Pollution) Act, 1981.
c) The Environment (Protection) Act, 1986.
d) The Factories Act, 1948.

e) The Industries (Development & Regulation) Act, 1951.
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We have also examined compliance with the applicable clauses of the Secretarial Standard-1 and Secretarial
 Standard-2 formulated by The Institute of Company Secretaries of India and notified by Ministry of Corporate 
Affairs.

We further report that:

The Board of Directors of the Company is duly constituted with proper balance of Executive Directors, Non-
Executive Directors and Independent Directors. There was no change in the composition of the Board of Directors 
during the financial year under review.

Adequate notice is given to all Directors to schedule the Board Meetings, agenda and detailed notes on agenda 
were sent at least seven days in advance, and a system exists for seeking and obtaining further information and 
clarifications on the agenda items before the meeting and for meaningful participation at the meeting. During the 
period, all the decisions in the Board meetings were carried out unanimously.

We further report that there are adequate systems and processes in the Company commensurate with the size 
and operations of the Company to monitor and ensure compliance with applicable laws, rules, regulations and 
guidelines.

We further report that there has been no instance of following during the audit period:
• Public/ Rights/ Preferential issue of shares/ Debentures/ Sweat equity.
• Redemption/ Buy-Back of securities.
• Major Decision taken by the Members in pursuance to section 180 of the Companies Act, 2013.
• Merger/ Amalgamation/ Reconstruction etc.
• Foreign Technical Collaborations.

We also report that the compliances of other applicable laws, as listed in Para (VI) above, are based on the 
Management Certifications.

For Devesh Arora & Associates.,
Company Secretaries

Devesh Arora (Prop.)
ACS No.: 49034/ CP No. : 17860

Place: New Delhi
Date: 14/08/2018

Note: This report is to be read with our letter of even date which is annexed as Annexure –A and forms an integral 
part of this report.
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To,
The Members of GRM OVERSEAS LIMITED

Our report of even date is to be read along with this letter.

1. Maintenance of Secretarial records is the responsibility of the management of the Company. Our  
responsibility is to express an opinion on these secretarial records based on our audit.

2. We have followed the audit practices and processes as were appropriate to obtain reasonable  assurance 
about the correctness of the contents of the Secretarial records. The verification was done  on the test basis 
to ensure that correct facts are reflected in Secretarial records. We believe that the processes and 
practices, we followed provide a reasonable basis for our opinion.

3. We have not verified the correctness and appropriateness of financial records and Books of Accounts of  
the Company.

4. Where ever required, we have obtained the Management representation about compliance of laws,  rules 
and regulations and happenings of events etc. 

5. The compliance of provisions of Corporate and other applicable laws, rules, regulations, standards is the
 responsibility of the management. Our examination was limited to the verification of procedures on  test
 basis.

6. The Secretarial Audit Report is neither an assurance as to the future viability of the Company nor of efficacy 
or effectiveness with which the management has conducted the affairs of the Company.

For Devesh Arora & Associates.,
Company Secretaries

Devesh Arora (Prop.)
ACS No.: 49034/ CP No. : 17860

Place: Delhi
Date: 14.08.2018
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ANNEXURE 3 TO BOARDS REPORT

                          ANNUAL REPORT ON CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY (CSR) ACTIVITIES

1.  A brief outline of the company’s CSR policy, including overview of projects or programsproposed 
to be undertaken and a reference to the web-link to the CSR policy and projects or programs.

CSR policy is stated herein below:

                                                                                         CSR Policy

(Approved by the Board of Directors on 05.01.2015)

Our aim is to be one of the most respected companies in India delivering superior and everlasting value to 
allour customers, associates, shareholders, employees and Society at large.

The CSR initiatives focus on holistic development of host communities and create social, environmental 
andeconomic value to the society.

To pursue these objectives we will continue to:

1) Work actively in areas of eradication of hunger and poverty, provide opportunity and financial assistancefor 
the promotion of education, provide medical aid to the needy and down trodden.

2) Collaborate with likeminded bodies like Voluntary organizations, charitable trusts, governments 
andacademic institutes in pursuit of our goals.

3) Interact regularly with stakeholders, review and publicly report our CSR initiatives.

2.   Composition of CSR committee:

As required under section 135 of the Companies Act, 2013 the company has formed a CSR committee 
consisting of the following members:

S.No. Name of Director Designation

1.

2.

3.

Mr. Hukam Chand Garg

Mr. Atul Garg

Mrs. Kiran Dua

Chairman

Member

Member

3. Average net profit of the company for last three financial years:

Average net profit: Rs.7,05,13,673

4.  Prescribed CSR Expenditure ( Two percent of the amount as in item 3 above)

The company is required to spend Rs.14,10,273

5. Details of CSR spend for the financial year :

a) Total amount spent for the financial year: Rs.13,00,000/-

b) Amount unspent if any: 1,10,273

c) Justification for unspent money out of 2% of the average net profit of the last 3 (three) financial years: due 

to non identification of proper projects and agencies which may guide the company towards such 
philanthropic activities to serve and match the needs of the society.

 d) Manner in which the amount spent during the financial year is detailed below:
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S.No. Project/
Activities

Sector Location Amount outlay 
(budget) project 
or programme 
wise (Rs. 
Lakhs)

Amount 
spent on the 
project or    
programme 
(Rs. Lakhs)

Cumulative 
Expenditure 
upto 
reporting 
period (Rs. 
Lakhs)

Amount 
spent: Direct 
or through 
implementing 
agency*
Lakhs)

1 Promoting 
Health 
care

Health     
care 

Delhi 13.00 13.00 13.00 13.00

*Detail of Implementing Agency:  Shri Agrasen North Ex. Welfare Society.

Place: Delhi
Date:  14.08.2018

 For and on behalf of the Board

Sd/-
Rohit Garg

Chairman Cum Managing Director   
DIN:00673304

Atul Garg
Whole-Time-Director

DIN: 02380612
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ANNEXURE 4 TO THE DIRECTORS' REPORT
INFORMATION  AS  PER SECTION  134 (3) (m)  OF THE COMPANIES ACT, 2013, FORMING PART

OF THE DIRECTORS' REPORT FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST MARCH 2018

(1) Conservation of Engergy
Regular preventive maintenance of all Plant & Machinery is carried out to enhance productivity and efficiency 
of Machineries resulting in considerable power saving.

A. POWER AND FUEL CONSUMPTION
a) Purchase Units 7578841 7197864

Total Amount (Rs.) 62348780 60380055
Rate/Unit (Rs.) 8.23 8.39

b) Own Generation
Through Diesel Generator
Units (approx.) 831645 722630
Cost of Fuel 10223870 8134117
Cost/Units (Rs.) 12.29 11.26

B. CONSUMPTION PER UNIT (M.T.) OF PRODUCTION
Production Unit (M.T.) 50154 37192
Electricity 8410486 7920494

(ii) TECHNOLOGY ABSORPTION
RESEARCH AND DEVELOPMENT
Specific Areas in which R & D carried out by the company
Benefit derived as a result of the above R & D None None
Future plan of action None None
The Company would take R & D activities to improve quality and reduce cost by increasing cost
efficiency at all levels.

Current Year Previous Year
2017-2018 2016-2017

(iii) FOREIGN EXCHANGE EARNING AND OUTGO
Foreign Exchange Earning (in `) 8,478,819,222  5,345,623,761 
Foreign Exchange Outgo (in `) 13,586,613 13,617,713 

Particular
Previous Year

2016-17
Current Year 

2017-18

Place : New Delhi
Date  : 26th May, 2018

 Rohit Garg 
(Managing Director)
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ANNEXURE 5 TO THE DIRECTORS' REPORT
FORM NO. AOC -2

(Pursuant to clause (h) of sub-section (3) of section 134 of the Act and Rule 8(2) of the Companies (Accounts) 
Rules, 2014.

Form for Disclosure of particulars of contracts/arrangements entered into by the company with related parties 
referred to in sub section (1) of section 188 of the Companies Act, 2013 including certain arms length transaction 
under third proviso thereto.

1.    Details of contracts or arrangements or transactions not at Arm’s length basis.

SL. No. Particulars Details

a)      1 Name (s) of the related party & nature of relationship N.A.

b)      2 Nature of contracts/arrangements/transaction N.A.

c)      3 Duration of the contracts/arrangements/transaction N.A.

d)      4 Salient terms of the contracts or arrangements or 
transaction including the value, if any N.A.

e)      5 Justification for entering into such contracts or arrangements or transactions’ N.A.

f) 6 Date of approval by the Board N.A.

g)      7 Amount paid as advances, if any N.A.

h)      8 Date on which the special resolution was passed in General 
meeting as required under first 
proviso to section 188 N.A.

SL. No. Particulars Details

a)       1 Name (s) of the related party & nature of relationship N.A.

b)      2 Nature of contracts/arrangements/transaction N.A.

c)       3 Duration of the contracts/arrangements/transaction N.A.

d)      4 Salient terms of the contracts or arrangements or transaction including the value, if any N.A.

e)       5 Date of approval by the Board N.A.

f)        6 Amount paid as advances, if any N.A.

2.    Details of contracts or arrangements or transactions at Arm’s length basis.

For and on behalf of  Board of Directors

Sd/-
Rohit garg

Chairman & managing Director
DIN 00673304
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CERTIFICATE OF CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER AND CHIEF FINANCIAL OFFICER ON CORPORATE 
GOVERNANCE

The Board of Directors
M/s. GRM Overseas Limited,
128, First Floor, Shiva Market Pitampura 
North Delhi 110034

We, RohitGarg, Chairman & Managing Director and Rattan Lal Mittal, Chief Financial Officer, responsible 
for finance functioncertify that:

1.  We have reviewed financial statements and the cash flow statement for the year ended on March 31, 2018 
and that to the best of our knowledge and belief:

(a) These statements do not contain any materially untrue statement or omit any material fact or contain 
statements that might be misleading;

(b) These statements together present a true and fair view of the listed entity’s affairs and are in compliance 
with existing Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS), applicable laws and regulations.

2. There are, to the best of our knowledge and belief, no transactions entered into by the Company during the 
year ended on March 31, 2018 which are fraudulent, illegal or violative of the Company’s code of conduct.

3. We accept responsibility for establishing and maintaining internal controls for financial reporting and that 
we have evaluated the effectiveness of internal control systems of the listed entity pertaining to financial 
reporting and we have disclosed to the auditors and the audit committee, deficiencies in the design or 
operation of such internal controls, if any, of which we are aware and the steps we have taken or propose to 
take to rectify these deficiencies.

4. The Company’s other certifying officers and we have disclosed, based on our recent evaluation, wherever 
applicable, to the Company’s Auditors and through them to the Audit Committee of the Company’s Board of 
Directors:

i. significant changes in internal control over financial reporting during the year 2017 18;
ii. significant changes in accounting policies during the year 2017-18 and that the same have been disclosed 

in the notes tothe financial statements; and
iii. Instances of significant fraud of which we have become aware and the involvement therein, if any, of the 

management oran employee having a significant role in the Company’s internal control system over 
financial reporting.

Sd/-
Rattan Lal Mittal

Chief Financial Officer
PAN - AKSPM6152D

Sd/-
Rohit Garg

Chairman & Managing Director
DIN:00673304

Delhi
August 14, 2018

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors

ANNEXURE 6
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DECLARATION REGARDING AFFIRMATION OF CODE OF CONDUCT

In terms of the requirements of Listing Obligation and Disclosure Requirements) 2015 , this is to confirm that 
all the members of the Board and the Senior Management personnel have affirmed Compliance with the 
Code of Conduct for the year ended March 31, 2018.

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors

Sd/-
Rattan Lal Mittal

Chief Financial Officer
PAN - AKSPM6152D

Sd/-
ROHIT GARG

Chairman & Managing Director
DIN:00673304

Place :Delhi
Date : August 14, 2018
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT FOR THE YEAR 2017-18

1. CORPORATE GOVERNANCE AND COMPANY’S PHOLOSOPHY ON CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

Corporate Governance is about commitment to values and about ethical business conduct. It is about how an 
organization is managed. This includes its corporate and other structure, its culture, policies and the manner in 
which it deals with various stakeholders. Accordingly, timely and accurate disclosure of information regarding the 
financial performance, future plans and material development affecting the Company, is an integral part of 
Corporate Governance. The Adoption of good Corporate Governance practices helps to develop a good image of 
the organization, keeps stakeholders satisfied and attracts best talent. The Company has professional Directors 
on its Board.

Your Company,believes that sound Corporate Governance is critical to enhance and retain investors’ trust and 
recognizes the importance of transparency and integrity in dealings at all levels. Accordingly, your Company is 
always keen to ensure that the business is carried on with integrity, honesty and fairness. The Company’s 
philosophy is based on accountability, ethical conduct, compliance with statutes in true spirit, interest of all 
stakeholders, transparency and timely disclosure. The Company is in full compliance with all the mandatory 
requirements of SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 (hereinafter referred 
as “Listing Regulations”).

2. BOARD OF DIRECTORS:

A. SIZE AND COMPOSITION OF BOARD

The present policy of GRM Overseas Limited regarding size and compositionof the Board is to have an optimum 
combination of Executive and Non-Executive Directors along with Woman Director which clearly demarcate the 
functions of governance and management. As on March 31, 2018, your Company’s Board has a strength of 06 
(Six) Directors including 1 (One) Women Director. The Chairman of the Board is an Executive Director. The 
composition of the Board is given below: 

Category Number of Directors  % to Total No.of 
Directors

Executive Directors 2 33.33

Non Executive, Non Independent Director          1 16.67

Independent Non-Executive 3 50
Directors

As per Regulation 17(b) of the SEBI Listing Regulations, where the listed entity does not have a regular Non- 
Executive Chairperson, at least half of the Board of Directors shall comprise of Independent Directors. The 
Chairperson of GRM Overseas Board is an executive director and a promoter as well. Accordingly, at least half of 
the Board of GRM Overseas should comprise of Independent Non-Executive Directors. Further, at present there 
are 3 (three) independent Non- Executive directors on the Board of GRM Overseas Limited which is in compliance 
with the provisions of Composition of Board as per SEBI Listing Regulations.

None of the Directors on the Board is a member of more than 10 (ten) Committees or Chairman of more than 5 
(five) Committees as specified in Regulation 26 of Listing Regulations. The Directors have made necessary 
disclosures regarding committee positions in other Companies as at 31stMarch 2018.
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B. The names and categories of the Directors on the Board and the number of directorships and 
committee  memberships/ chairmanship held by them in other Companies as on 31st March 2018 
are given below:

Name of 
The Director

DIN Category 
of  Director 
Directorship

No. of  Directorship 
in other Public 

& Pvt. 
Ltd. Companies

Details of shares 
held by directors 
in the GRM 
Overseas Limited 
(Company)

Mr. Hukam 
Chand Garg 00673276 Non-Executive Director Nil 1000200

Mr. RohitGarg 00673304 Managing Director 
(Whole-Time-Director) Nil 858000

Mr.AtulGarg 02380612 Joint Managing Director 
(Whole-Time-Director) 5 858000

Mr.ChetanKapoor 00672045 Non-Executive 
(Independent Director) Nil NIL

Mr. Vikram Malik 00438494 Non-Executive 
(Independent Director) 1 (Under process of 

Voluntarily striking off) 6600

Ms.KiranDua 06951055 Non-Executive 
(Independent Director) Nil Nil

C. LIMIT ON THE NUMBER OF DIRECTORSHIPS

In compliance with Regulation 25 of the SEBI Listing Regulations, the Independent Directors on the Board 
of the Company does not serve as an Independent Directors in more than 7 (Seven) Listed Companies and 
in case he/she is serving as a Whole Time Director in any Listed Company, does not hold position of 
Independent Director in more than 3 (Three) Listed Companies.

D. FAMILIARIZATION PROGRAMME FOR INDEPENDENTDIRECTORS

In compliance with the provisions of Regulation 25 of the SEBI Listing Regulations, all Independent 
Directors are familiarized about the company, through various programs from time to time, including the 
following:

a. nature of the industry in which the company operates;
b. business model of the company;
c. roles, rights and responsibilities of Independent Directors; and
d. any other relevant information.

The policy on the familiarization programs for Independent Directors has been uploaded on the
Company’s website at www.grmrice.com.

E. SEPARATE MEETING OF THE INDEPENDENT DIRECTORS

During the reporting Financial Year, a separate Meeting of the Independent Directors of the Company was 
held on February 14, 2018, to discuss following items as enumerated under Schedule IV of the Companies 
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Act, 2013, read with Regulation 25 of the SEBI Listing Regulations were discussed:

• Review of Performance of Non-Independent Directorsand Board as a whole.
• Review of Performance of the Chairman of theCompany after taking into consideration the views 

ofExecutive and Non-Executive Directors.
• Assessment of the quality, quantity and timeliness offlow of information between the Company, 

Managementand the Board that is necessary for the Board toeffectively and reasonably perform their 
duties.

F. INTER-SE RELATIONSHIP AMONGST DIRECTORS

Mr. RohitGarg, Chairman & Managing Director, Mr. AtulGarg Joint Managing Directors, both are brothers 
and Mr. Hukam Chand Garg, Director is the Fatherof Mr. RohitGarg, Managing Director and Mr. AtulGarg 
Joint Managing Directors of the Company.

3. BOARD MEETINGS AND PROCEDURE

A. BOARD MEETINGS 
Company’s Corporate Governance Policy requires the Board to meet at least four times in a year. The 
maximum gap between two board meetings should not be more than 120 (One hundred and twenty) days 
as prescribed under Regulation 17 of the SEBI Listing Regulations. Additional board meetings may be 
convened to address the specific needs of the Company. 

B. BOARD PROCEDURE

The Board Meetings are governed by a structured agenda and agenda papers are supported by 
comprehensive background information to enable directors to take informed decisions. The Managing 
Director and Company Secretary in consultation with other directors and members of Senior Management, 
finalize the agenda papers for the Board Meetings.

Detailed Agenda and other explanatory statements in defined agenda format are circulated well in advance 
before the meeting amongst the board members for facilitating meaningful, informed and focused decisions 
at the meetings.In case of exigencies or urgency, resolutions are passed by circulation.

In addition to the above information, the Board is also kept informed of major events/items wherever 
necessary. The Managing Director at the Board Meetings keeps the Board apprised of the overall 
performance of the Company.

 Minutes of proceedings of Board Meetings are properly recorded. The draft Minutes are circulated amongst 
the members of Board for their comments in terms of applicable Secretarial Standards issued by the 
Institute of Company Secretaries of India. The final minutes of proceedings of meetings are entered in 
Minutes Book and signed by the Chairman of the Board within the prescribed timelines. The Company fully 
complies with the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013, Listing Regulations and Secretarial Standard on 
Meetings of the Board of Directors in this regard.

C. Number of Board Meetings

During the year ended March 31, 2018, NineBoard Meetings were held on 01May, 2017, 30 May, 2017, 
03June, 2017, 08 August 2017, 28August 2017, 14 November2017, 04 December 2017 , 15January 2018, 
14 February 2018
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D. Directors' attendance record:

Name of The Director and DIN Board Meetings Attended 
During The year Whether attended   

Last  AGM

Shri Hukam Chand Garg (DIN: 00673276) 09 Yes

Shri Rohit Garg(DIN: 00673304) 08 No

Shri Atul Garg (DIN:  02380612) 07 Yes

Shri Chetan Kapoor (DIN: 00672045) 06 Yes

Shri Vikram Malik (DIN: 00438494) 07 Yes

Smt. Kiran Dua (DIN: 06951055) 08 No

E. Review of Compliance Report:

The periodical reports submitted by the Internal Auditors andby the concerned department Heads of the 
Company with regards to compliance of Laws applicable to the Company as well as steps taken by the 
Company to rectify instances of non-compliances,if any, are being reviewed by Audit Committee and the 
Board of Directors as per Regulation 17 (3) of SEBI (LODR) Regulations, 2015.

Compliance Certificate signed by the Executive Director and Chief Financial Officer is placed before the 
Board of Directors as specifiedin Part B of Schedule II of SEBI (LODR) Regulations, 2015.

F. Disclosure Pursuant To Regulation 36 OfThe SEBI Listing Regulations Regarding Appointment Or Re-
Appointment Of Directors At The Forthcoming AGM

1. Mr. Hukam Chand Garg

Mr. Hukam Chand Garg, aged about 75 years, is a diploma holder in Engineering from Chandigarh 
University. He is one of the firstdirector of the Company, named in the Articles of Association and has been 
appointed as Director since January 1995.

Nature of his expertise in specific functional areas:

Mr. Hukam Chand Garg is having more than 40years of experience in the field of Rice Industry. The 
Visionary behind thesuccess of the Company, Mr. Hukam is the founder Chairman of GRM Overseas 
Limited. He has been instrumental, in turning the Company into a global brand and the leader in Indian 
Industry. He holds various eminent positions in various reputed organization. He plays a key role on the 
project implementation of the Company. He also formulates the marketing strategy of the Company and 
supervises the marketing functions.

Disclosure of relationship between directors inter-se:

Mr. Rohit Garg, Managing Director and Mr. Atul Garg,Joint Managing Directors are brothers and Mr. Hukam 
Chand Garg, Director is the Father of Mr. Rohit Garg and Mr. Atul Garg.
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Listed Entities (other than GRM Overseas Limited) in whichMr. Hukam Chand Gargholds directorship and 
membership in committeesare as follows:

Directorship:  Nil

Chairperson of Board Committees: Nil.

Member of Board Committees: Nil.

Shareholding in the Company: 10,00,200

2. Mr. Nipun Jain

Mr. Nipun Jain, aged about 52 years, is aChartered Accountant and commerce graduate..

Nature of his expertise in specific functional areas:

Mr. Nipun Jain has approximately 29 years of rich and versatile experience, which includes extensive 
experience in specialty. Mr. Nipun is also a Director with The Panipat Urban co-operative Bank Ltd. for 10 
years and associated with Youth Hostels Association of India since 15 years. Mr. Nipun have Expertise in 
Auditing, fund raising, corporate laws

Disclosure of relationship between directors inter-se:

Not related to any director of the Company.

Listed Entities (other than GRM Overseas Limited) in which Mr. Nipun Jain holds directorship and 
membership in committees are as follows:

Directorship: Nil

Chairperson of Board Committees: Nil.

Member of Board Committees: Nil.

Shareholding in the Company: Nil

3. Mr. Raj Kumar Garg

Mr. Raj kumar Garg, aged about 65 years, is a MBBS. Mr. Raj Kumar Garg has approximately 25 years of 
rich and versatile experience.

Nature of his expertise in specific functional areas:

Dr. Raj Kumar Garg is a MBBS and also holds MD degree. He has numerous senior positions as surgeon in 
various reputed private and government hospitals.

Disclosure of relationship between directors inter-se:

Not related to any director of the Company.
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Listed Entities (other than GRM Overseas Limited) in which Mr. Raj Kumar Garg holds directorship 
and membership in committees are as follows:

Directorship:  Nil
Chairperson of Board Committees: Nil.

Member of Board Committees: Nil.

Shareholding in the Company: Nil

4. Mr. PardeepKumar Singal

Mr. Pardeep Kumar Singal, aged about 50 years, is a graduate. Mr.PardeepKumar Singal has 
approximately 29 years of rich and versatile experience, which includes extensive experience in specialty.

Nature of his expertise in specific functional areas:

Mr.Pardeep Kumar Singal is Graduate and his core area is management. He has a vast experience of over 
29 years in import and export business. Mr. Pardeep Kumar Singalis Innovative Executive with Professional 
experience in Multi Unit Business Operations. 
The Board of Director considers that in view of the background and experience of Mr. Pardeep Kumar, it 
would be in the interest of the Company to appoint him as a Director of the Company.

Disclosure of relationship between directors inter-se:

Not related to any director of the Company.

Listed Entities (other than GRM Overseas Limited) in which Mr. Pradeep Kumar holds directorship and  
membership in committees are as follows:

Directorship: Nil

Chairperson of Board Committees: Nil.

Member of Board Committees: Nil.

Shareholding in the Company: Nil

5.   COMMITTEES OF THE BOARD

a. Audit Committee

The Audit Committee assists the Board in its responsibility for overseeing the quality and integrity of the 
accounting, auditing and reporting practices of the Company and its compliance with the legal and 
regulatory requirements. The Committee’s purpose is to oversee the accounting and financial reporting 
process of the Company, the audits of the Company’s financial statements, the appointment, independence 
and performance of the statutory auditors and the internal auditors and to meet out the requirements of 
Listing Regulations.

i) Terms of Reference:

The terms of reference of the Audit Committee covers all matters specified under Part C of Schedule II of the 
Listing Regulations and Section 177 of the Companies Act, 2013 which inter-alia includes the following:
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The Audit Committee has the following powers:

1. To investigate any activity within its terms of reference.
2. To seek information from any employee and from the records of the Company.
3.To obtain outside legal or other professional advice.
4.To secure attendance of outsiders with relevant expertise, if it considers necessary.

The role of the Audit Committee includes the following:

1) Oversight of the Company’s financial reporting process and the disclosure of its financial information to 
ensure that the financial statement is correct, sufficient and credible.

2) Recommending to the Board, the appointment, re-appointment and, if required, the replacement or 
removalof Statutory Auditors and the fixation of Audit Fees.

3) Review and monitor the auditor’s independence and performance, and effectiveness of audit process.
4) Approval of payment to statutory auditors for any other services rendered by the Statutory Auditors.
5) Reviewing, with the management, the annual financial statements before submission to the Board for 

approval, with particular reference to:

• Matters required to be included in the Directors’ Responsibility Statement to be included in the 
Directors’Report in terms of clause (c) of sub-section (3) of Section 134 of the Companies Act, 2013.

• Changes, if any, in accounting policies and practices and reasons for the same.
• Major accounting entries involving estimates based on the exercise of judgment by management.
• Significant adjustments made in the financial statements arising out of audit findings.
• Compliance with listing and other legal requirements relating to financial statements.
• Disclosure of any related party transactions.
• Modified opinion(s) in draft audit report.

6) Reviewing with the management, the quarterly financial statements before submission to the Board for 
approval.

7) Examination of the financial statement and the auditors’ report thereon.
8) Reviewing, with the management, the statement of uses/ application of funds raised through an issue 

(publicissue, rights issue, preferential issue, etc.), the statement of funds utilized for purposes other than 
thosestated in the offer document/prospectus/notice and the report submitted by the monitoring agency 
monitoringthe utilization of proceeds of a public or rights issue, and making appropriate recommendations 
to the Boardto take up steps in this matter.

9) Reviewing with the management, the performance of Statutory and Internal Auditors, adequacy of 
internalcontrol systems & to ensure compliance of internal control systems.

10) Reviewing the adequacy of internal audit function, if any, including the structure of the internal audit 
department,staffing and seniority of the official heading the department, reporting structure, coverage and 
frequency ofinternal audit.

11) Discussion with Internal Auditors, any significant findings and follow up thereon and scope of Internal Audit.
12) Reviewing the findings of any internal investigations by the Internal Auditors into matters where there 

issuspected fraud or irregularity or a failure of internal control systems of a material nature and reporting 
thematter to the Board.

13) Discussion with Statutory Auditor before the audit commences, about the nature and scope of audit as well 
aspost-audit discussion to ascertain areas of concern including observations of auditors.

14) To look into the reasons for substantial defaults in the payment to the depositors, debenture 
holders,shareholders (in case of non-payment of declared dividends) and creditors.

15) To review the functioning of the Whistle Blower Mechanism, if any.
16) Approval of Appointment of CFO (i.e. the whole time Finance Director or any other person heading the 

financefunction or discharging that function) after assessing the qualifications, experience and background 
etc. ofthe candidate.

17) Carrying out such other function(s) as may be specifically referred to the Committee by the Board of 
Directorsand/or other Committee(s) of Directors of the Company.
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18) To review the following information:

• The management’s discussion and analysis of financial condition and results of operations;
• Statement of significant related party transactions (as defined by the Audit Committee), submitted by 

management;
• All material individual transactions with related parties or others, which are not on an arm’s length basis, 

together with management’s justification for the same;
• Management letters / letters of internal control weaknesses issued by the Statutory Auditors;
• Internal audit reports relating to internal control weaknesses.

19) Approval or any subsequent modification of transactions of the Company with related parties.
20) Scrutiny of inter-corporate loans and investments
21) Valuation of undertakings or assets of the Company, wherever it is necessary.
22) The appointment, removal and terms of remuneration of the Chief Internal Auditor if any shall be subject to 

review by the Audit Committee.
23) To review and monitor management responsiveness to findings and recommendations of Internal Auditors.
24) Review the Company’s Compliance with employee’s benefits plans.
25) Oversee and review the Company policies regarding information technology and management information 

systems.

ii) Composition:

The Audit committee consists of three independent directors, Mr.Chetan Kapoor, Mr. Vikram Malik and Ms. 
Kiran Dua has been designated as chairman of the committee. The committee met 4 times during the 
financial year ended March 31, 2018. The attendance records of the members at the meeting were as 
follows:

Name of The Member     Designation No Meetings of Attended
Shri. ChetanKapoor        Chairman 4
Shri. Vikram Malik         Member 4
Smt. KiranDua         Member 4

b. Nomination& Remuneration Committee and policy:

i. Terms of reference:

1) It shall identify persons who are qualified to become directors and who may be appointed in senior 
management in accordance with the criteria laid down, recommend to the Board their appointment and 
removal and shall carry out evaluation of every director’s performance.

2)  It shall formulate the criteria for determining qualifications, positive attributes and independence of a 
director and recommend to the Board a policy, relating to the remuneration for the directors, key managerial 
personnel and other employees.

3) It shall, while formulating the remuneration policy ensure that –

a) the level and composition of remuneration is reasonable and sufficient to attract, retain and motivate 
directors of the quality required to run the Company successfully;

b) relationship of remuneration to performance is clear and meets appropriate performance benchmarks; and
c) remuneration to directors, key managerial personnel and senior management involves a balance between 

fixed and incentive pay reflecting short and long-term performance objectives appropriate to the working of 
the Company and its goals.

The above terms of reference are in line with the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 and Regulation 19 
of the Listing Regulations.
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ii. Remuneration Policy

The Remuneration policy of the Company is to lay down a framework in relation to remuneration of 
Directors, KMP, Senior Management Personnel and other Employees and directed towards rewarding 
performance, based on review of achievements on periodic basis.
The remuneration paid to Directors, Key Managerial Personnel (KMP) and Senior Management is 
recommended by the Remuneration Committee and approved by the Board of Directors in the Board 
Meeting, subject to the subsequent approval by the shareholders (for Directors only) at the General Meeting 
and such other authorities, as the case may be.

The Non-Executive Directors will be paid with the sitting fee, if any, subject to the approval of Board of 
Directors/ including any sub-committee thereof, upto the limit as specified under the Companies Act, 2013 
and also in Compliance with the SEBI Listing Regulations.

The Nomination and Remuneration policy is available on the website of the company atwww.grmrice.com

iii. Composition:

a) The appointment & remuneration committee comprises of three independent Directors.

Name of The Member Designation
Shri. ChetanKapoor        Chairman
Shri. Vikram Malik         Member
Smt. KiranDua         Member

The committee met 2 times during the financial year ended March 31, 2018.The attendance record of the 
members at the meeting were as follows:

Name of The Member     Designation No Meetings of Attended
Shri. ChetanKapoor        Chairman 2
Shri. Vikram Malik         Member 2
Smt. KiranDua         Member 2

The details of remuneration for the year ended March 31, 2018 to the Executive Directors are as follows:

Name Designation Remuneration
Mr. RohitGarg Whole-Time-Director 25,50,000
Mr. AtulGarg Whole-Time-Director 25,50,000

c. Stakeholder’s Relationship Committee:

i. Terms of Reference

The terms of reference and the ambit of powers of Stakeholders Relationship Committee are as per 
Regulation 20 and Part-D of Schedule II of SEBI Listing Regulations read with Section 178 of the 
Companies Act, 2013, and allied rules as may be notified from time to time.

ii. Composition:
a) The Committee consists of three independent directors, Shri. ChetanKapoor, Shri. VikramMalik, and 
Smt. KiranDua. has been designated as chairman of the committee. The committee met 2 times during the 
financial year ended March 31, 2018. The attendance record of the members at the meeting were as 
follows:

Name of The Member     Designation No Meetings of Attended
Shri. ChetanKapoor        Chairman 2
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Shri. Vikram Malik         Member 2
Smt. KiranDua         Member 2

TheCommitteespecificallylooksintoredressalofshareholders'andInvestors'complaintssuchastransferof 
shares,non-receiptofshares,non-receiptofdividenddeclared,toensureexpeditioussharetransferprocess 
andtoreviewthestatusofinvestors'grievances.

b) During the year 2017-18, complaints were received from shareholders and investors are as follows

Investor Grievance Redressal:

Pursuant to the Regulation 13 of SEBI Listing Regulations, GRM Overseas has duly filed with the 
recognized stock exchange(s) on a quarterly basis, within twenty one days from the end of each quarter, a 
statement giving the number of investor complaints pending at the beginning of the quarter, those received 
during the quarter, disposed off during the quarter and those remaining unresolved at the end of the quarter.

Complaints received from Investors/ shareholders are promptly attended to. 
Status of complaints received, resolved and pending during the Financial Year 2017-18 is as follows:

Opening Received Resolved Closing
0 0 0 0

As on March 31, 2018, no request for registration of transfer of shares/dematerialization was pending.

c)  Process of transfer of shares

All complete and valid requests for transfer/transmission of shares are given effect to within the time 
stipulated in the SEBI (LODR)Regulations, 2015.

d. CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILTY (CSR) COMMITTEE:

In accordance with provisions of Section 135 of the Companies Act, 2013, read with the Companies 
(Corporate Social Responsibility Policy) Rules, 2014, Company has a well-established Corporate Social 
Responsibility Committee, to formulate and recommend to the Board, CSR activities to be undertaken by 
the Company as specified in Schedule VII to the Companies Act, 2013, to recommend the amount of 
expenditure to be incurred on such activities and to monitor the Corporate Social Responsibility Policy of the 
company from time to time.

The Corporate Social Responsibility Committee of GRM Overseas is responsible for the functions which 
includes the following:

• Formulate and Recommend to the Board, a Corporate Social responsibility Policy which shall indicate 
the  activities to be under taken by the company as specified in Schedule VII of the Companies Act, 2013.

• To recommend the amount of expenditure to be incurred on the activities referred in policy.
• Monitoring Corporate Social Responsibility Policy of the company from time to time.
• Prepare transparent monitoring mechanism for ensuring implementation of the projects, programmes, 

activities proposed to be undertaken by the Company.

The Duties of the Corporate Social Responsibility Committee of GRM Overseas includes the following:

• Consider and formulate the Company’s value and strategy as regards to CSR.
• Develop and review the CSR policies relating to workplace quality, environmental protection, operating 

practices and community involvement.
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• Identify CSR issues, and related risks and opportunities that are relevant to the Company’s operations, 
and incorporate the issues or factors into the Company’s existing risk management.

• Monitor and oversee the implementation of the Company’s CSR policies and practices to ensure 
compliance with the applicable legal and regulatory requirements.

• Evaluate and enhance the Company’s CSR performance and make recommendation to the Board for 
improvement.

•  Review and endorse the Company’s Annual CSR Report for Board’s approval for public disclosure.
•  Contribute towards better society and a Cleaner Environment.
• Develop and review the CSR policies relating to workplace quality, Environmental Protection, Operating 

Practices and Community Involvement.
•  Identify CSR issues, and related risks and opportunities that are relevant to the Company’s operations, 

and incorporate the issues or factors into the Company’s existing Risk Management.
• Evaluate and enhance Company’s CSR performance and make recommendation to the Board for 

improvement.
•  Prepare Transparent monitoring mechanism for ensuring implementation of the projects, programs, 

activities proposed to be undertaken by GRM Overseas.
• Monitor Corporate Social Responsibility Policy of GRM Overseas from time to time.

The company has formulated the CSR Policy in line with Schedule VII of the Companies Act, 2013, which is 
available on the website of the Company at www.grmrice.com

Composition of the Committee

As required under section 135 of the Companies Act, 2013 the company has formed a CSR committee 
consisting of the following members:

S. No. Name of Director     Designation
1 Mr. Hukam Chand Garg Chairman
2 Mr. AtulGarg Member
3 Mrs. KiranDua Member

The committee met 1 time during the financial year ended March 31, 2018.The attendance record of the 
members at the meeting were as follows

Name of Members  Designation No Meetings of Attended
Mr. Hukam Chand Garg  Chairman 1
Mr. AtulGarg Member 1
Mrs. KiranDua Member 1

e) Risk Management Committee

The Board has voluntarily constituted a Risk Management Committee. The Risk Management Committee 
comprises ofMr. AtulGarg, Mrs. KiranDua, MrVikram Malikand Rattan lal Mittal
(CFO).The functions of the Risk Management Committee includesformulation of Risk Management Plan 
and to monitor and review the same and to report to the Board from time to time the risk assessment, 
minimization and mitigation procedures laid down. 

f) PERFORNAMCE EVALUATION COMMITTEE

The company has formed a performance evaluation committee consisting of the following members:

Name of Members        Designation
Shri. Vikram Malik        Chairman
Shri. ChetanKapoor         Member
ShriHukam Chand Garg         Member
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The committee met 1 times during the financial year ended March 31, 2018. The attendance record of the 
members at the meeting were as follows

Name of The Member     Designation No Meetings of Attended
Shri. Vikram Malik        Chairman 1
Shri. ChetanKapoor         Member 1
ShriHukam Chand Garg         Member 1

Pursuant to the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 and as per SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosures 
requirements) Regulations, 2015, the Board has carried out the annual performance evaluation of its own 
performance, the Directors individually as well as the evaluation of the working of its Audit, Appointment and 
Remuneration Committees. A structured questionnaire was prepared after taking into consideration inputs 
received from the Directors, covering various aspects of the Board’ functioning such as adequacy of the 
composition of the Board and its Committees, Board culture, execution and performance of specific duties, 
obligations and governance.
A separate exercise was carried out to evaluate the performance of individual Directors including the 
Chairman of the Board, who were evaluated on parameters such as level of engagement and contribution, 
independence of judgment, safeguarding the interest of the Company and its minority shareholders etc. The 
performance evaluation of the Independent Directors was carried out by the entire Board. The performance 
evaluation of the Chairman and the Non Independent Directors was carried out by the Independent 
Directors who also reviewed the performance of the Secretarial Department. The Directors expressed their 
satisfactionwith the evaluation process.

e)  Code of Conduct:

The Board of Directors of the Company has approved a ‘Code of Conduct’ for all Board members and Senior 
Management Personnel. The Code has been circulated to all the members of the Board
and Senior Management Personnel and they have affirmed the compliance of the same. A copy of the Code 
of Conduct is also posted on the website of the Company viz. www.grmrice.com.
A confirmation from the Executive Director/ Chief Executive Officer affirming Compliance of the Code of 
Conduct by the members ofthe Board/ Senior Management forms part of this report.

Subsidiary Monitoring Framework

GRM Overseas does not have any material subsidiary as defined under Regulation 16(1)(c) of the SEBI 
Listing Regulations. Material Subsidiary means a Subsidiary Company whose income or net worth (i.e. 
paid-up capital and free reserves) exceeds 20% of the consolidated income or net worth respectively, of the 
listed holding Company and its subsidiaries in the immediately preceding accounting year.

Subsidiary company of the GRM Overseas Limited is Board managed. The Board of Directors review and 
monitor the performance of its subsidiary companies by way of:

a) Approving, in principal, their capital expenditure plans, business expansion plans, investment / 
disinvestment plans;

b) Reviewing their operations vis-a-vis budgets, cash flows and Balance Sheets;
c) Reviewing all significant/ material transactions andarrangements;
d)  Minutes/ materially important decisions.

Disclosures:

(a) During the year, there were no transactions of material nature with the related parties that had potential 
conflictwith the interest of the Company at large.

(b) There were no instances of non-compliance by the Company, penalties, strictures imposed on the 
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Companyby Stock Exchanges or SEBI or any statutory authority on any matter related to capital markets, 
during the lastthree years.

(c) The Company has formulated Whistle Blower Policy and the same has been posted on website of the 
Company at www.grmrice.com. No employee of the Company has been denied access to the Audit 
Committee to make any representation

d) Company has complied with the mandatory requirements of Regulation 17 of SEBI (LODR) Regulations, 
2015.

(e) The Company has established a comprehensive Enterprise Risk Management (ERM) Policy that includes 
risk identification, risk assessment, risk mitigation and monitoring on a periodic basis. External and internal 
risk factors that could potentially affect performance of the Company vis-a-vis stated objectives are 
identified and reported in the business review meetings periodically. These are subsequently reported to the 
Board.

(f)  Directors’ Report has a detailed section on Management Discussion and Analysis covering inter-alia a 
separate section on Risk Management.

(g) Company files quarterly compliance report on Corporate Governance with Stock Exchanges pursuant to 
Regulation 27 of SEBI (LODR) Regulations, 2015 and copies thereofare placed before the next Board 
Meeting.

(h) As required by Regulation 36(3) of SEBI (LODR) Regulations, 2015, particulars of directors seeking 
appointment/ re-appointment are given in the Notice convening the ensuing Annual General Meeting.

(i)  Company has adopted discretionary requirements as specified in Para E to Schedule II to SEBI (LODR) 
Regulations, 2015 to the extent to maintenance of Chairperson’s office, having separate posts of 
Chairperson and Chief Executive Officer, moving towards a regime of Financial Statements with unmodified 
opinion and reporting of Internal Auditor directly to Audit Committee.

CEO/ CFO Certification (Compliance Certificate)

As required by Regulation 17(8) of SEBI (Listing Obligationsand Disclosure Requirements) Regulations 
2015, The CEO and CFO certification on the Financial Statements and the cash flow statement for the year 
is given at the end of the report on Corporate Governance

1. SHAREHOLDERS:

a. Means of Communication:

The Quarterly Un-Audited (Provisional) Results and the Annual Audited Financial results of the company 
are sent to the stock exchanges immediately after they are approved by the Board and are also published in 
one vernacular newspaperand one English newspaper. Also they are uploaded on the company’s website 
www.grmrice.com. The results are published in accordance with the guidelines of the Stock Exchanges.

b. Share Transfers Agents:

M/sABHIPRACAPITALLTD.
BM-1AbhipraComplex,DilkhushIndustrialEstate, A-387G.T.KarnalRoad,Azadpur, Delhi–110033.Email-
Id:rta@abhipra.com

c. Share Transfer System:
All physical share transfers are effected within 15days of lodgment, subject to the documents beingin order.
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d. General Body Meetings :

Details of last three Annual General Meetings are as under.

Financial Year  Date  Time  Venue

2016-2017 28-09-2017 10:30 A.M MH One Resort Hotel 
BakoliAlipur, Main G.T. 
KarnalRoad Delhi-110036

2015-2016 30-09-2016 10:30 A.M Lavanya resorts & motel,
 G.T Karnal Road,
 PallaBakhtavarpur MOD,
 Alipur, Delhi-110036

2014-2015 30-09-2015 12.30 P.M Lavanya resorts & motel,
G.T Karnal Road,
PallaBakhtavarpur MOD,
 Alipur, Delhi-110036

e. Postal Ballot:

For the year ended March 31, 2018 there have been no ordinary or special resolutions passed by the 
Company’s Shareholders through postal ballot.

2. Additional shareholders information:

a) Annual General Meeting

Date : September 29, 2018

Venue: MH One Resort Hotel BakoliAlipur, Main G.T. KarnalRoad  Delhi-110036

Time : 11:00 A.M

b)  Financial Calendar
Financial Year: April 01 to March 31 for the financial year 2018-19, the tentative dates for declaration of 
Quarterly unaudited results will be by Mid of August, 2018, Mid of November, 2018, Mid of February, 
2019 and Mid of may, 2019.

c) Book Closure:
The register of members and share transfer books of the company shall remain closed from September 
22, 2018 to September 30, 2018 (both days inclusive) for purpose of Annual General Meeting.

d) Dividend Payment Date:

Dividend, if declared by the Company, will be paid within 30 days of the approval of the same in the 
Annual General Meeting.

e) Listing in stock exchange and stock code

The names of stock exchanges at which the equity shares are listed, respective stock code and ISIN are 
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as under:

Name of the stock Exchange Stock Code No. ISIN
The Bombay stock Exchange 531449 INE192H01012

f) Stock data:

High/Low of Market price of Company's equity shares traded on the Bombay Stock Exchange Ltd. 
during the financial year ended on March 31, 2018 was as follows:

g)  Distribution of shareholding as on March 31, 2018.

Share Holding Pattern:

h)  Shares held in physical and dematerialized form:

The Company's Equity Shares have been allotted ISIN: INE192H01012bothbyNSDL&CDSL.36,44,850 

Month

Low

High

April 
2017

88.00

102.45

May 
2017

86.40

113.50

June 
2017

96.50

135.90

July 
2017

121.00  

135.90

Aug.
2017

125.05

191.60

Sep.
2017

191.60

191.60

Oct. 
2017

201.15

357.80

Nov.
2017

236.10

359.95

Dec.
2017

219.00

314.90

Jan. 
2018

253.45

324.90

Feb.
2018

225.00

311.00

March 
2018

236.70

297.00

No. of Share 

Holders

584

110

54

36

 06

05

03

17

15

830

NominalValueof

Shares

UptoRs.  2,500

2501 to 5000      

5001  to10000       

10001 to 20000     

20001 to 30000

30001 to 40000

40001 to 50000

50001 to 100000

100001 & above

   TOTAL

%of

Total

70.361 

13.253

6.506

4.337

0.723

0.602

0.361

2.048

1.807

100.00

Amount

345170

427210

439760

539720

144930

179420

124690

1301570

33392530

36895000

%of

Total

0.936

1.158

1.192

1.463

0.393

0.486

0.338

3.528

90.507

100.00
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Promoters

Banks/Financial institutions

Central/State Govt.

Indian Individuals/HUF

Indian Corporate Bodies/Trust

Investor Education and protection fund

NonResident Indians/Clearing Members

Total

1

2

3

4

5

6

7

2716200

124000

77192

504486

78030

166002

23590

36,89,500

73.62

3.36

2.09

13.68

  2.11

  4.50

  0.64

100.00

Sr.  No. Category No. of Shares %of Share holding
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Equity Shares representing 98.78%of the paid-up Equity Capital of the   Company have been dematerialized 
till 31.03.2018.

i) Outstanding GDR's/ADR's/Warrant’s/Convertible instruments and their impact on equity-NIL.

j)  Plant Location:

1. GRM OVERSEAS LIMITED,
GohanaRoad,(NearSugarMill), Panipat–132 103 (Haryana)

2. GRM OVERSEAS LIMITED,
GohanaRoad,VillageNaultha, Panipat–132103(Haryana)

k)  Address for correspondence:
GRM OVERSEAS LIMITED, 128,FirstFloor,ShivaMarket,Pitampura,Delhi-110034.
Website: www.grmrice.com, Email: investor.grm@gmail.com

Transfer of Unpaid/Unclaimed Dividend Amount to Investor Education and Protection Fund 
(IEPF)

As per the provisions of Section 124(5)& 124(6) of the Companies Act, 2013, the Company is required 
to transfer unpaid dividends remaining unclaimed and unpaid for a period of 7 years from the due 
date(s) to the IEPF set up by the Central Govt. Further in terms of the Ministry of Corporate Affairs 
(MCA) Circular dated May 10, 2012, the Company has filed necessary details with the office of the 
Registrar of Companies, NCT of Delhi & Haryana, New Delhi.

All Shareholders, whose dividend is unclaimed pertaining to FY 2009-10 onwards, are requested to 
lodge their claim with RTA/Company by submitting an application supported by an indemnity on or 
before their respective date of transfer to IEPF as subsequently no claim will lie against the Company, 
once this amount is deposited with IEPF. Given below are the details when the unclaimed dividend is 
due for transfer to IEPF by the Company:

*Indicative date, actual may vary

7. Disclosures:
The company has not entered into any transaction of a material nature with the Promoters, the 
Directors or the Management, their relatives etc. that may have any potential conflict with the interests 
of the company. 

The company has complied with the requirements of the stock exchanges, SEBI and other statutory 
authorities on all matters related to capital markets during the last three years. 

FinancialYear

2009-10

2010-11

2011-12

2012-13

2013-14

Date of Declaration

30.09.2010

30.09.2011

28.09.2012

30.09.2013

30.09.2014

Duedate of TransferofI EPF*

28.10.2017

28.10.2018

28.10.2019

30.10.2020

30.10.2021
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS REPORT

Your Directors have pleasure in presenting the management discussion and analysis report for the year 
ended on March 31, 2018.

Industry Structure & Developments: The year 2016 began with deceleration in economic growth all over the 
world and these phenomena prevailed almost the whole financial year, and were dominated by the recession 
in Indian market and political uncertainty. In spite of all the negative outlook, our Company' accelerate the 
growth and the gross realization and the profitability was improved significantly, despite the increased cost of 
production, high inflationary cost and other factors which were out of control of the Board.

Opportunities and Threats: Indian rice manufacturing companies continue to face stifling scenario, yet the 
capabilities and growth potential of your company are providing opportunities to acquire an increased market 
share. Despite an unfavorable business sentiment prevailing in the domestic as well as in the international 
market, the company has maintained its freshness, endurance and strength which are very much needed for 
sustainability and growth.

Performance of the Company: GRM Overseas Ltd is one of the leading rice suppliers. It has carved a special 
niche in the domestic as well as international marketWe are constantly updating our technology requirements 
We fully recognize our responsibility to the community we live in and our duty to give back to the society We 
are actively building opportunities for less fortunate to give them the chance to succeed in a competitive 
environment.

We deliver perfection in every grain. We deliver a quality that lets you taste perfection in every bite. We have 
covered many milestones and we will keep moving ahead until we make our way into every home and every 
heart. 

We have maintained world-class, state-of-the-art computerized plants, made by the internationally 
acclaimed firm Stake.

Internal Control System & their adequacy: The company has an adequate system of internal control 
implemented by the management towards achieving efficiency in operations, optimum utilization of 
resources and effective monitoring thereof and compliance with applicable laws. The system comprises as 
well-defined organization structure, predetermined authority levels and documented policy guidelines and 
manuals for delegation of authority. Aqualified and independent audit committee of the Board of Directors 
reviews the internal audit reports and the adequacy of internal controls statements in this management 
discussion and analysis report are based upon the data available with the company and on certain 
assumptions having regard to the economic conditions, government policies, political developments etc. 
within and outside the country. The management does not guarantee the accuracy of the assumptions and 
the projected performance of the company in future.

For and on be half of the board

Place:NewDelhi                                                                                                              

Sd/-
Rohit Garg

DIN: 00673304
Chairman cum ManagingDirectorDate  : August 14, 2018 
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AUDITORS’ CERTIFICATE ON CORPORATE GOVERNANCE 

To,

The Members,
M/s GRM OVERSEAS LIMITED
128, First Floor, Shiva Market Pitampura North Delhi-110034

We have examined the compliance of conditions of corporate governance by GRM Overseas Limited (‘the 
Company’) for the year ended March 31, 2018, as stipulated in regulations 17 to 27, and clause (b) to (i) of 
sub-regulation (2) of regulation 46 and paragraph C, D and E of Schedule V of the Securities Exchange Board 
of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 (“Listing Regulations”) with 
Stock Exchanges in India.

The compliance of conditions of Corporate Governance is the responsibility of the Company’s management. 
Our examination is limited to procedures and implementation thereof, adopted by the Company for ensuring 
the compliance of the conditions of the Corporate Governance. It is neither an audit nor an expression of 
opinion on the financial statements of the Company.

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, we certify that 
the Company has complied with the conditions of Corporate Governance as stipulated in SEBI (Listing 
Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015.

We further state that such compliance is neither an assurance as to the future viability of the Company nor the 
efficiency or effectiveness with which the management has conducted the affairs of the Company.

For Vishal Malhotra& Co.
Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration No. 012750N 
Sd/-
(CA. MiteshMalhotra)
Partner
Membership No.: 504338
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT

On the Standalone Financial Statements of GRM Overseas Limited

TO THE MEMBERS OF GRM OVERSEAS LIMITED

Report on the Standalone Financial Statements

We have audited the accompanying standalone financial statements of GRM OVERSEAS LIMITED (“the 
company”), which comprise the Balance Sheet as at March 31, 2018, the Statement of Profit and Loss, the Cash 
Flow Statement for the year then ended and a summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory 
information. 

Management’s Responsibility for the Standalone Financial Statements

The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in section 134(5) of the Companies Act, 
2013 (“the Act”) with respect to the preparation of these standalone financial statements that give a true and fair 
view of the financial position, financial performance and cash flows of the Company in accordance with the 
accounting principles generally accepted in India, including Accounting Standards prescribed under Section 133 
of the Act. 

This responsibility also includes the maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance with the 
provision of the Act for safeguarding the assets of the Company and for preventing and detecting frauds and other 
irregularities; selection and application of appropriate accounting policies; making judgments and estimates that 
are reasonable and prudent; and the design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial 
control, that were operating effectively for ensuring the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, 
relevant to the preparation and presentation of the standalone financial statements that give a true and fair view 
and are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

Auditor’s Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these standalone financial statements based on our audit.

We have taken into account the provisions of the Act, the accounting and auditing standards and matters which 
are required to be included in the audit report under the provisions of the Act and the Rules made thereunder.

We conducted our audit of the standalone financial statements in accordance with the Standards on Auditing 
specified under section 143(10) of the Act. Those Standards require that we comply with ethical requirements and 
plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the standalone financial statements are 
free from material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and the disclosures in the 
standalone financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgment, including the 
assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the standalone financial statements, whether due to fraud or 
error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal financial control relevant to the Company’s 
preparation of the standalone financial statements that give a true and fair view in order to design audit 
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of 
the accounting policies used and the reasonableness of the accounting estimates made by the Company’s 
Directors, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the standalone financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence obtained by us is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit 
opinion on the standalone financial statements.

Opinion 

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the aforesaid 
standalone financial statements give the information required by the Act in the manner so required and give a true 
and fair view in conformity with the accounting principles generally accepted in India, of the state of affairs of the 
Company as at March 31, 2018, its profit and its cash flows for the year ended on that date.

Report on other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

1. As required by Section 143(3) of the Act, we report that:

a)   We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our knowledge and 
belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit.
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b) In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the   Company so far as it 
appears from our examination of those books. 

c)  The Balance Sheet, the Statement of Profit and Loss, and the Cash Flow Statement dealt    with by this Report 
are in agreement with the books of account.

d)  In our opinion, the aforesaid standalone financial statements comply with the Accounting Standards 
prescribed under Section 133 of the Act.

e)  On the basis of the written representations received from the directors as on March 31, 2018, taken on record 
by the Board of Directors, none of the directors is disqualified as on March 31, 2018, from being appointed as a 
director in terms of Section 164(2) of the Act.

f)  With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls over financial reporting of the Company and the 
operating effectiveness of such controls, refer to our separate Report in “Annexure A”.

g)  With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’s Report in accordance with Rule 11 of the 
Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, in our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the 
explanations given to us:

 i. The Company does not have any pending litigations which would impact its financial position;

ii. The Company did not have any long-term contracts including derivatives contract for which there were any 
material foreseeable losses; 

iii.There has been no delay in transferring amounts, required to be transferred, to the  Investor Education and 
Protection Fund by the Company.

2. As required by the Companies (Auditor’s Report) Order, 2016 (“the Order”) issued by the Central 
Government of India in terms of sub-section (11) of section 143 of the Act, we give in “Annexure B” a statement on 
the matters Specified in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the Order, to the extent applicable.

(CA. Mitesh Malhotra)
Partner
Membership No. 504338 

For Vishal Malhotra & Co.
Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration No. 012750N

Place : Delhi 
Date :  26.05.2018
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Annexure “A”

to the Independent Auditors’ Report on the Standalone Financial Statements of GRM Overseas Limited

(Referred to in paragraph 1(f) under ‘Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements’ section of our Report 
of even date)

Report on the Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting under Clause (i) of Sub-section 3 of 
Section 143 of the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”)

We have audited the internal financial controls over financial reporting of GRM OVERSEAS LIMITED (“the 
Company”) as of March 31, 2018 in conjunction with our audit of the standalone financial statements of the 
Company for the year ended on that date.

Management’s Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls

The Company’s management is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal financial controls based on 
the internal control over financial reporting criteria established by the Company considering the essential 
components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls over Financial 
Reporting (the “Guidance Note”) issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India (‘ICAI’). These 
responsibilities include the design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls that 
were operating effectively for ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of its business, including adherence to 
Company’s policies, the safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and detection of frauds and errors, the 
accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, and the timely preparation of reliable financial information, 
as required under the Companies Act, 2013.

Auditors’ Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company's internal financial controls over financial reporting 
based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the Guidance Note and the Standards on Auditing 
prescribed under Section 143(10) of the Companies Act, 2013, to the extent applicable to an audit of internal 
financial controls. Those Standards and the Guidance Note require that we comply with ethical requirements and 
plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether adequate internal financial controls 
over financial reporting was established and maintained and if such controls operated effectively in all material 
respects.

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the internal financial 
controls system over financial reporting and their operating effectiveness. Our audit of internal financial controls 
over financial reporting included obtaining an understanding of internal financial controls over financial reporting, 
assessing the risk that a material weakness exists, and testing and evaluating the design and operating 
effectiveness of internal control based on the assessed risk. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s 
judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the standalone financial statements, 
whether due to fraud or error.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit 
opinion on the Company’s internal financial controls system over financial reporting.

Meaning of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting

A Company's internal financial control over financial reporting is a process designed to provide reasonable 
assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for external 
purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles. A Company's internal financial control 
over financial reporting includes those policies and procedures that (1) pertain to the maintenance of records that, 
in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and dispositions of the assets of the company;  
(2) provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of financial 
statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and payments of the 
Company are being made only in accordance with authorisations of management and directors of the company; 
and (3) provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorised acquisition, use 
or disposition of the company's assets that could have a material effect on the financial statements.

GRM OVERSEAS LIMITED
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(CA. Mitesh Malhotra)
Partner
Membership No. 504338 

For Vishal Malhotra & Co.
Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration No. 012750N

Place : Delhi 
Date :  26.05.2018

GRM GRM OVERSEAS LIMITED

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls over financial reporting, including the possibility of 
collusion or improper management override of controls, material misstatements due to error or fraud may occur 
and not be detected. Also, projections of any evaluation of the internal financial controls over financial reporting to 
future periods are subject to the risk that the internal financial control over financial reporting may become 
inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the policies or procedures 
may deteriorate.

Opinion

In our opinion, to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the Company has, in all 
material respects, an adequate internal financial controls system over financial reporting and such internal 
financial controls over financial reporting were operating effectively as at March 31, 2018, based on the internal 
control over financial reporting criteria established by the Company considering the essential components of 
internal control stated in the Guidance Note.
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Annexure “B”

to the Independent Auditors’ Report on the Standalone Financial Statements of GRM Overseas 
Limited

(Referred to in paragraph 2, under ‘Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements’ section of our Report of 
even date)

(i) In respect of its fixed assets:

(a) The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars including quantitative details and 
situation of fixed assets on the basis of available information.

(b) As explained to us, all the fixed assets have been physically verified by the management during the year in 
accordance with the phased programme of verification adopted by the management, which in our opinion 
provides for physical verification of all the fixed assets at reasonable intervals. According to the information 
and explanations given to us, no material discrepancies were noticed on such verification.

(c) As per the information and explanations provided to us, title deeds of immovable properties are generally in 
the name of the Company. 

(ii) In our opinion, the inventories have been physically verified during the year by the management at 
reasonable intervals and as explained to us no material discrepancies were noticed on physical verification.

(iii) In respect of loans, secured or unsecured, granted by the Company to companies, firms, limited liability 
partnerships or other parties covered in the register maintained under section 189 of the Companies Act, 
2013:

According to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has not granted any loans to 
companies, firms, limited liability partnerships or other parties covered in the register maintained under 
Section 189 of the Companies Act, 2013. Therefore, the provisions of Clause (iii) of paragraph 3 of the 
Order are not applicable to the Company.

(iv) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has complied 
with the provisions of Sections 185 and 186 of the Companies Act, 2013 in respect of grant of loans, making 
investments and providing guarantees and securities.

(v) According to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has not accepted any deposit from 
the public. Therefore, the provisions of Clause (v) of paragraph 3 of the Order are not applicable to the 
Company.

(vi) As informed to us, the Central Government has not prescribed maintenance of cost records   under sub-
section (1) of Section 148 of the Companies Act, 2013 in respect of the activities carried on by the Company. 

(vii) In respect of statutory dues:

(a)  According to the records of the Company, undisputed statutory dues including Provident Fund, Employees 
State Insurance (ESI), Income-tax, Sale Tax, Service Tax, Custom Duty, Excise Duty, Value Added Tax 
(VAT), Cess and other material statutory dues, applicable to it, have been generally regularly deposited with 
the appropriate authorities. According to the information and explanations given to us, no undisputed 
amounts payable in respect of the aforesaid dues were outstanding as at March 31, 2018 for a period of 
more than six months from the date of becoming payable.

(b) According to the information and explanations given to us, there are no dues of Income Tax or Sale Tax or 
Service Tax or Custom Duty or Excise Duty or Value Added Tax which have not been deposited on account 
of any dispute.   

(viii) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has not 
defaulted in the repayment of dues to banks. The Company has not taken any loan from financial institution 
and has not issued debentures. 

(ix) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, monies raised by way of term 
loans by the Company have been applied for the purpose for which they were raised.
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(x) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, no material fraud by the 
Company or on the Company by its officers or employees has been noticed or reported during the year. 

(xi) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has paid / 
provided managerial remuneration in accordance with the requisite approvals mandated by the provisions 
of section 197 read with Schedule V to the Companies Act, 2013.

(xii) The Company is not a Nidhi Company and hence reporting under Clause (xii) of Paragraph 3 of the Order is 
not applicable.

(xiii) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us the   Company’s transactions 
with its related parties are in compliance with Section 177 and 188 of the Companies Act, 2013, where 
applicable, and details of related party transactions have been disclosed in the standalone financial 
statements etc. as required by the applicable accounting standards.

(xiv) During the year the Company has not made any preferential allotment or private placement of shares or fully 
or partly convertible debentures and hence reporting under Clause (xiv) of Paragraph 3 of the Order is not 
applicable to the Company.

(xv) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, during the year, the Company 
has not entered into any non-cash transactions with its directors or persons connected with him and hence 
reporting under Clause (xv) of Paragraph 3 of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

(xvi) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company is not required to 
be registered under section 45-IA of the Reserve Bank of India Act, 1934.

(CA. Mitesh Malhotra)
Partner
Membership No. 504338 

For Vishal Malhotra & Co.
Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration No. 012750N

Place : Delhi 
Date :  26.05.2018
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Balance Sheet As at 31st March, 2018

Particulars Note As at
31st March, 2017

As at
31st March, 2018

ASSETS
Non-current assets
(a) Property, plant and equipment
(b) Financial assets

(i) Investments
(ii) Other financial assets

Total non-current assets
Current assets
(a) Inventories
(b) Financial assets

(i) Trade receivables
(ii) Cash and bank balances

(c) Other current assets
Total current assets
TOTAL ASSETS
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
Equity
(a) Equity share capital
(b) Other equity
Total equity
Non-current liabilities
(a) Financial liabilities

(i) Borrowings
(b) Defferred tax liability
Total non current liabilities
Current liabilities
(a) Financial liabilities

(i) Borrowings
(ii) Trade payable

(b) Other current liabilities
(c) Provisions
Total current liabilities
TOTAL EQUITY AND LIABILITIES

3

4
5

6

7
8
9

10
11

12
13

14
15
16
17

 207,753,011.55 

 14,217,974.00 
 7,483,882.00 

 229,454,867.55 

 1,942,581,160.00 

 1,868,895,640.15 
 4,476,577.65 

 50,524,063.45 
 3,866,477,441.25 
 4,095,932,308.80 

 36,895,000.00 
 478,941,073.92 
 515,836,073.92 

 583,394,341.37 
 23,215,245.00 

 606,609,586.37 

 2,334,840,734.79 
 514,526,101.95 

 89,040,597.77 
 35,079,214.00 

 2,973,486,648.51 
 4,095,932,308.80 

 212,170,566.94 

 2,438,774.00 
 7,464,793.00 

 222,074,133.94 

 1,999,390,189.00 

 741,280,116.60 
 15,968,831.31 
 11,791,100.82 

 2,768,430,237.73 
 2,990,504,371.67 

 36,895,000.00 
 383,857,449.18 
 420,752,449.18 

 484,235,816.67 
 22,543,303.00 

 506,779,119.67 

 1,496,167,744.48 
 241,891,668.47 
 324,913,389.87 

 Nil 
 2,062,972,802.82 
 2,990,504,371.67 

 211,467,641.94 

 Nil 
 6,925,431.00 

 218,393,072.94 

 628,018,760.00 

 823,811,489.60 
 155,260,783.02 

 9,137,197.07 
 1,616,228,229.69 
 1,834,621,302.63 

 36,895,000.00 
 327,948,201.29 
 364,843,201.29 

 413,585,290.00 
 22,594,440.00 

 436,179,730.00 

 908,603,180.27 
 112,670,280.07 

 12,324,911.00 
 Nil 

 1,033,598,371.34 
 1,834,621,302.63 

As at
01st April, 2016

Sd/-
 Rohit Garg

Managing Director
DIN : 00673304

As per our report of even date

For Vishal Malhotra & Co.
Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration No. 012750N

(CA. Mitesh Malhotra)
Partner
Membership No. 504338
Place : Delhi
Date : 26th May, 2018

Sd/-
Atul Garg
Director

DIN : 02380612

Rattan Lal Mittal
Cheif Financial Officer

Sumit Bajaj
Company Secretary

M. No. A45042
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Profit and loss statement for the year ended 31st March, 2018

Particulars Note No.
Year ended

31st March, 2018
Year ended

31st March, 2017

Income

Revenue from operation 18  9,249,603,327.77  5,911,507,500.40 

Other income 19  Nil  5,000.00 

Total income  9,249,603,327.77  5,911,512,500.40 

Expenses

Cost of material consumed 20  2,405,958,372.06  1,402,477,578.40 

Purchases traded goods 21  5,611,859,387.46  4,314,013,698.55 

Changes in inventories of finished goods  

& traded goods 22  (157,016,886.00)  (726,789,375.00)

Employee benefit expenses 23  29,360,956.00  21,774,128.00 

Finance cost 24  147,384,780.33  98,518,312.62 

Depreciation 25  20,260,505.39  19,279,304.13 

Other expenses 26  1,010,836,202.79  697,524,653.81 

Total Expenses  9,068,643,318.03  5,826,798,300.51 

Profit before tax  180,960,009.74  84,714,199.89 

Tax expense:

-Current tax  63,533,795.00  28,856,089.00 

-Deferred tax charge/(credit) 13  671,942.00  (51,137.00)

Profit for the year  116,754,272.74  55,909,247.89 

Earning per equity share of face value of `

 10 each 27

Basic & Diluted (`)  31.65  15.15 

Sd/-
 Rohit Garg

Managing Director
DIN : 00673304

As per our report of even date

For Vishal Malhotra & Co.
Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration No. 012750N

(CA. Mitesh Malhotra)
Partner
Membership No. 504338
Place : Delhi
Date : 26th May, 2018

Sd/-
Atul Garg
Director

DIN : 02380612

Rattan Lal Mittal
Cheif Financial Officer

Sumit Bajaj
Company Secretary

M. No. A45042
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Cash Flow Statement for the year ended 31st March, 2018

Particulars Year ended
31st March, 2018

Year ended
31st March, 2017

Cash flow from operating activities

Profit before taxation

Adjustment for :

Depreciation and amortisation

Finance cost

Loss on sale of Tangible Assets (Net)

Operating profit/(loss) before working capital changes

Adjustment for :

Increase/ (Decrease) in trade payables and other liabilities

Decrease/ (Increase) in inventories

Decrease/ (Increase) in trade receivables and other assets

Cash Generated from operations

Taxes paid (net)

Net cash flow from/(used in) operating activities (A)

Cash from investing activities

Purchase of property, plant and equipment

Sale of property, plant  and equipment

Purchase of Investments

Net cash used in investing activities (B)

Cash flow from financing activities

Proceeds from long-term borrowings

Proceeds from short-term borrowings

Finance cost paid

Net cash flow from financing activities (C )

Net increase/ (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents (A+B+C)

Cash and cash equivalents as at the beginning of the year

Cash and cash equivalents as at the end of the year

Component of cash and cash equivalents

Balance with banks

Cash in hand

Total

S.No

 180,960,009.74 

 20,260,505.39 

 147,384,780.33 

 NIL 

 348,605,295.46 

 36,761,641.38 

 56,809,029.00 

 (1,166,464,006.18)

 (724,288,040.34)

 (50,125,229.00)

 (774,413,269.34)

 (15,842,950.00)

 Nil 

 (11,779,200.00)

 (27,622,150.00)

 99,158,524.70 

 838,672,990.31 

 (147,384,780.33)

 790,446,734.68 

 (11,588,684.66)

 14,591,710.31 

 3,003,025.65 

 2,885,267.65 

 117,758.00 

 3,003,025.65 

 84,714,199.89 

 19,279,304.13 

 98,518,312.62 

 412,471.87 

 202,924,288.51 

 441,809,867.27 

 (1,371,371,429.00)

 87,842,868.25 

 (638,794,404.97)

 (28,856,089.00)

 (667,650,493.97)

 (22,229,701.00)

 1,835,000.00 

 (2,438,774.00)

 (22,833,475.00)

 70,650,526.67 

 587,564,564.21 

 (98,518,312.62)

 559,696,778.26 

 (130,787,190.71)

 145,378,901.02 

 14,591,710.31 

 14,033,974.47 

 557,735.84 

 14,591,710.31 

A.

B.

C.

D.

E.

F.

The cash flow statement has been prepared in accordance with 'Indirect method' as set out in the Ind AS 7 on 
'Cash Flow Statements', as specified in the Section 133 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Rule 7 of the 
Companies (Accounts) Rule, 2014.

Sd/-
 Rohit Garg

Managing Director
DIN : 00673304

As per our report of even date

For Vishal Malhotra & Co.
Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration No. 012750N

(CA. Mitesh Malhotra)
Partner
Membership No. 504338
Place : Delhi
Date : 26th May, 2018

Sd/-
Atul Garg
Director

DIN : 02380612

Rattan Lal Mittal
Cheif Financial Officer

Sumit Bajaj
Company Secretary

M. No. A45042
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GRM OVERSEAS LIMITED

Notes to the Standalone Financial Statements for the year ended 31st March, 2018

1. CORPORATE INFORMATION

GRM Overseas Limited (the ‘Company’) is a public limited company domiciled in India, incorporated under the 
provisions of the Companies Act and is listed on one stock exchange in India. The Company is engaged in the 
business of manufacturing and trading of Rice. 

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

2.01 Basis of preparation and presentation

The financial statements of the Company have been prepared under the historical cost convention on accrual 
basis and also to comply with the Indian Accounting Standards (‘Ind AS’) including the rules notified under the 
relevant provisions of the Companies Act, 2013.

Upto the year ended March 31, 2017 the Company has prepared its financial statements in accordance with the 
requirement of Indian General Accepted Accounting Policies, which includes Standards notified under the 
Companies (Accounting Standards) Rules, 2006 and considered as “Previous GAAP”.

These financial statements are the Company’s first Ind AS standalone financial statements.

Company’s financial statements are prepared in Indian Rupees (`), which is also its functional currency.

All assets and liabilities have been classified as current and non-current as per the Company’s normal operating 
cycle. Based on the nature of products and the time between the acquisition of assets for processing and their 
realisation in cash and cash equivalents, the Company has ascertained its operating cycle as 12 months for the 
purpose of classification of current and non-current assets and liabilities.

Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

2.02 Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment are stated at cost net of accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment 
losses, if any. The cost of Property, plant and equipment comprises cost of acquisition, construction and 
subsequent improvements thereto including taxes and duties (net of credits and draw backs), freight and other 
incidental cost directly attributable to bringing the asset to its working condition for its intended use and net 
charges on foreign exchange contracts and adjustments arising from exchange rate variations attributable to the 
assets.

Subsequent costs are included in the asset’s carrying amount or recognized as a separate asset, as appropriate, 
only when it is probable that future economic benefits associated with the item will flow to the entity and the cost 
can be measured reliably.

Depreciation on property, plant and equipment is provided based on useful life of the assets prescribed in 
Schedule II to the Companies Act, 2013.

An impairment loss, if any, is recognised whenever the carrying amount of the plant, property and equipment 
exceeds the recoverable amount i.e. the higher of the assets’ net selling price and value in use.

 2.03 Leases

Leases are classified as finance leases whenever the terms of the lease, transfer substantially all the risks and 
rewards of ownership to the lessee. All other leases are classified as operating leases.

2.04 Borrowing Cost

Borrowing Costs attributable to the acquisition and construction of qualifying assets, if any, are added to the cost 
up to the date when such assets are ready for their intended use. Other borrowing costs are recognised as 
expenses in the period in which these are incurred.

2.05 Inventories

Inventories other than scrap are valued at lower of cost and estimated net realisable value. Cost is determined on 
FIFO basis. Scrap is valued at net realisable value.

GRM

ANNUAL REPORT 2017-2018.......67



GRM

ANNUAL REPORT 2017-2018.......68

2.06 Impairment of non-financial assets-property, plant and equipment and intangible assets

The Company assesses at each reporting date as to whether there is any indication that any property, plant 
and equipment may be impaired. If any such indication exists the recoverable amount of an asset is estimated 
to determine the extent of impairment, if any.

2.07 Employees Benefits

(i) Short Term Employee Benefits

The undiscounted amount of short-term employee benefits expected to be paid in exchange for the services 
rendered by employee are recognized as an expense during the period when the employee renders the 
service. 

(ii) Post-Employment Benefits

The Company makes specified monthly contributions under Defined Contribution Plans towards Provident 
Fund. The Company’s contributions recognized as an expense in the Statement of Profit and Loss during the 
period in which the employee renders the related services.

2.08 Foreign currencies transaction and translation

(i) Initial Recognition

On initial recognition, all foreign currencies transactions are recorded at exchange rates prevailing on the 
date of the transaction.

(ii) Subsequent Recognition

At the reporting date, foreign currency non-monetary items carried in terms of historical cost are reported 
using the exchange rate at the date of transaction.

All monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are translated at the functional currency 
closing rates of exchange at the reporting date. Exchange differences arising on settlement or translation of 
monetary items are recognised in Statement of Profit and Loss except to the extent of exchange differences 
which are regarded as an adjustment to interest costs on foreign currency borrowings that are directly 
attributable to the acquisition or construction of qualifying assets, are capitalized as cost of assets.

2.09 Revenue Recognition

Sale of Goods : Sales are recognised when the substantial risks and rewards of ownership in the goods are 
transferred to the buyer as per the terms of the contract and are recognised net of trade discounts, rebates, 
sale taxes.

Sale of Services : Revenue from rendering of services is recognised when the performance of agreed 
contractual task has been completed.

Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration received or receivable, taking into account 
contractually defined terms of payment and excluding taxes or duties collected on behalf of the government.

Interest income : Interest income is generally recognized on a time proportion basis taking into account the 
amount outstanding and the rate applicable, when there is reasonable certainty as to realisation.

All other items are recognized on accrual basis.

2.10 Government Grants

(i)  Government grants of the nature of promoter’ contribution are credited to Capital Reserve.

(ii) Government grants related to specific fixed assets are deducted from gross values of related assets in 
arriving at their book values.

(iii) Government grants related to revenue are recognised on a systematic basis in the Statement of Profit and 
Loss over the period necessary to match them with their related costs.

2.11 Tax Expenses

The tax expense for the period comprises current and deferred tax. Tax is recognized in the Statement of 
Profit and Loss.
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(i) Current tax

Current tax assets and liabilities are measured at the amount expected to be recovered from or paid to the 
taxation authorities, based on tax rates and laws that are enacted or substantively enacted at the Balance 
Sheet date.

(ii) Deferred tax

Deferred tax is recognised subject to the consideration of prudence in respect of deferred tax assets, on 
timing differences, being the difference between taxable income and accounting income that originate in one 
period and are capable of reversal in one or more subsequent periods and is measured using tax rates and 
laws that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the Balance Sheet date. 

The carrying amount of deferred tax liabilities and assets are reviewed at the end of each reporting period.

2.12 Financial instruments

(i) Financial Assets

A. Initial recognition and measurement:

All financial assets and liabilities are initially recognised at fair value. Transaction costs that are directly 
attributable to the acquisition or issue of financial assets and financial liabilities, which are not at fair value 
through profit or loss, are adjusted to the fair value on initial recognition. Purchase and sale of financial assets 
are recognised using trade date accounting.

B. Subsequent measurement

a) Financial assets carried at amortised cost (AC) 

A financial asset is measured at amortised cost if it is held within a business model whose objective is to hold 
the asset in order to collect contractual cash flows and the contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on 
specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments of principal and interest on the principal amount 
outstanding.

c) Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss (FVTPL)

A financial asset which is not classified in any of the above categories are measured at fair value through profit 
or loss.

C. Investment in Subsidiary

The Company has accounted for its investments in subsidiary at cost.

D. Impairment of Financial Assets.

In accordance with Ind AS 109, the Company uses ‘Expected Credit Loss’ (ECL) model, for evaluating 
impairment of financial assets other than those measured at fair value through profit and loss (FVTPL). 
Expected credit losses are measured through a loss allowance at an amount equal to:

(1) The 12-months expected credit losses (expected credit losses that result from those default events on the 
financial instrument that are possible within 12 months after the reporting date); or

(2) Full life time expected credit losses (expected credit losses that result from all possible default events over 
the life of the financial instrument)

For trade receivables company applies ‘simplified approach’ which requires expected life time losses to be 
recognised from initial recognition of the receivables. Further the company uses historical default rates to 
determine impairment loss on the portfolio of trade receivables. At every reporting date these historical default 
rates are reviewed and changes in the forward looking estimates are analysed.

For other assets, the company uses 12 month ECL to provide for impairment loss where there is no significant 
increase in credit risk. If there is significant increase in credit risk full life time ECL is used.

(ii) Financial liabilities

A. Initial recognition and measurement:
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All financial liabilities are recognized initially at fair value and in case of loans net of directly attributable cost. 
Fees of recurring nature are directly recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss as finance cost.

B. Subsequent measurement:

Financial liabilities are carried at amortized cost using the effective interest method. For trade and other 
payables maturing within one year from the balance sheet date, the carrying amounts approximate fair value 
due to the short maturity of these instruments.

(iii) De-recognition of financial instruments

The Company derecognizes a financial asset when the contractual rights to the cash flows from the financial 
asset expire or it transfers the financial asset and the transfer qualifies for de-recognition under Ind AS 109. A 
financial liability (or a part of a financial liability) is derecognized from the company’s balance sheet when the 
obligation specified in the contract is discharged or cancelled or expires.

2.13 Cash and Cash Equivalent

In the Cash Flow Statement, cash and cash equivalents include cash on hand, demand deposits with banks, 
other short-term highly liquid investments, if any, with original maturities of three months or less from the date 
of acquisition.

2.14 Earning Per Share

Basic earning per share is calculated by dividing the net profit or loss for the period attributable to equity 
shareholders (numerator) by the weighted average number of equity shares outstanding (denominator) 
during the period. For the purpose of calculating diluted earnings per share, the net profit or loss for the period 
attributable to equity shareholders and the weighted average number of shares outstanding during the period 
are adjusted for the effects of all dilutive potential equity shares.

2.15 Critical Accounting Judgements and Key Sources of Estimation Certainty

The preparation of the Company’s financial statements requires management to make judgement, estimates 
and assumptions that affect the reported amount of revenue, expenses, assets and liabilities and the 
accompanying disclosures. Uncertainty about these assumptions and estimates could result in outcomes 
that require a material adjustment to the carrying amount of assets or liabilities affected in future periods.

2.16 Estimates and assumptions:

a) Depreciation  and  useful lives of property plant and equipment / intangible assets

Property, plant and equipment / intangible assets are depreciated / amortised over their estimated useful 
lives, after taking into account estimated residual value. Management reviews the estimated useful lives and 
residual values of the assets annually in order to determine the amount of depreciation / amortisation to be 
recorded during any reporting period. The useful lives and residual values are based on the Company’s 
historical experience with similar assets and take into account anticipated technological changes. The 
depreciation / amortisation for future periods is revised if there are significant changes from previous 
estimates.

b) Recoverability of trade receivable

Judgements are required in assessing the recoverability of overdue trade receivables and determining 
whether a provision against those receivables is required. Factors considered include the credit rating of the 
counter party, the amount and timing of anticipated future payments and any possible actions that can be 
taken to mitigate the risk of non-payment.

c) Provisions

The Company recognises a provision when there is a present obligation as a result of a past event that 
probably requires an outflow of resources and a reliable estimate can be made of the amount of the obligation. 
A disclosure for a contingent liability is made when there is a possible obligation or a present obligation that 
may, but probably will not, require an outflow of resources or there is a present obligation, reliable estimate of 
the amount of which cannot be made. Where there is a possible obligation or a present obligation and the 
likelihood of outflow of resources is remote, no provision or disclosure for contingent liability is made. 



GRM

ANNUAL REPORT 2017-2018.......71

The carrying amounts of provisions and liabilities are reviewed regularly and revised to take account of 
changing facts and circumstances.

d) Impairment of non- financial assets

The Company assesses at each reporting date whether there is an indication that an asset may be impaired. If 
any indication exists, the Company estimates the asset’s recoverable amount. An asset’s recoverable 
amount is the higher of an asset’s fair value less costs of disposal and its value in use. It is determined for an 
individual asset, unless the asset does not generate cash inflows that are largely independent of those from 
other assets or a group of assets. Where the carrying amount of an asset exceeds its recoverable amount, the 
asset is considered impaired and is written down to its recoverable amount.

In assessing value in use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present value using pre-tax 
discount rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific to the 
asset. In determining fair value less costs of disposal, recent market transaction are taken into account, if no 
such transactions can be identified, an appropriate valuation model is used.

e) Impairment of financial assets

The impairment provisions for financial assets are based on assumptions about risk of default and expected 
cash loss rates. The Company uses judgement in making these assumptions and selecting the inputs to the 
impairment calculation, based on Company’s past history, existing market conditions as well as forward 
looking estimates at the end of each reporting period.

2.16 First Time Adoption of Ind AS

The Company has adopted Ind AS with effect from 1st April 2017 with comparatives being restated. 
Accordingly the impact of transition, if any, has been provided in the Opening Reserves as at 1st April, 2016. 
The figures for the previous period have been restated, regrouped and reclassified wherever required to 
comply with the requirement of Ind AS and Schedule III.

Exemptions from retrospective application:

i) Fair value as deemed cost exemption:

Under the previous GAAP (erstwhile Indian GAAP), land was carried in the balance sheet at historical 
cost/revalued value and other property, plant and equipment were carried in balance sheet at historical cost 
less depreciation. The Company has elected to measure items of property, plant and equipment and 
intangible assets at its carrying value at the transition date.

ii) Investments in Associates

The Company has elected to measure investment in subsidiaries at cost.
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Investments (non current)

Unquoted investments in equity instruments of 
subsidiaries at Cost:

1,70,000 (Prev Year 5,000) Equity shares fully paid up

Investment in Share Application Money

Total

 14,217,974.00 

 NIL 

 14,217,974.00 

4. As at31st 
March, 2018

As at31st 
March, 2017

As at01st 
April, 2016

 405,600.00 

 2,033,174.00 

 2,438,774.00

 NIL 

 NIL 

 NIL

Other financial assets (non-current )

(Unsecured, considered good unless otherwise stated)

Security deposits

Long term deposits with bank with maturity period more 
than 12 months:

Margin money deposits

Interest accrued on fixed deposits

Total

 6,925,431.00 

 

526,224.00 

 32,227.00 

 7,483,882.00

5. As at31st 
March, 2018

As at31st 
March, 2017

As at01st 
April, 2016

 6,925,431.00 

 526,224.00 

 13,138.00 

 7,464,793.00 

 6,925,431.00 

 Nil 

 Nil 

 6,925,431.00

Raw Materials and components

Finished goods

Traded goods

Total

Inventories

 665,872,865.00 

 235,423,853.00 

 1,041,284,442.00 

 1,942,581,160.00

6. As at31st 
March, 2018

As at31st 
March, 2017

As at01st 
April, 2016

 879,698,780.00 

 518,161,239.00 

 601,530,170.00 

 1,999,390,189.00

 235,116,726.00 

 290,259,259.00 

 102,642,775.00 

 628,018,760.00

Unsecured, considered good unless stated otherwise

Outstanding for a period exceeding six months from

the date they became due for payment

Other Receivables

Total

Trade receivables

 1,125,176.00 

 1,867,770,464.15 

 1,868,895,640.15

7. As at31st 
March, 2018

As at31st 
March, 2017

As at01st 
April, 2016

 102,867,887.00 

 638,412,229.60 

 741,280,116.60

 8,615,795.00 

 815,195,694.60 

 823,811,489.60

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash in hand

Bank Balances

   on current accounts

Total

Other bank balances

Deposits with original maturity for more than 3

months but less than 12 months:

Margin money deposits

Bank deposits with more than 12 months maturity

Total

Total

Cash, cash equivalents and other bank balances

 117,758.00 

 2,885,267.65 

 3,003,025.65 

 1,334,282.00 

 139,270.00 

 1,473,552.00 

 4,476,577.65

8.
As at31st 

March, 2018
As at31st 

March, 2017
As at01st 

April, 2016

 557,735.84 

 14,033,974.47 

 14,591,710.31 

 1,251,185.00 

 125,936.00 

 1,377,121.00 

 15,968,831.31

 665,677.41 

 144,713,223.61 

 145,378,901.02 

 1,169,516.00 

 8,712,366.00 

 9,881,882.00 

 155,260,783.02
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Unsecured, considered good unless stated otherwise

Advances against procurement of goods, services etc.

Balance with revenue authority:

  Advance Taxes (Netted off provision for taxes)

  Income Tax Refundable

  Value Added Tax (VAT)

  Goods and Service Tax (GST)

Other Loans and Advances:

    Prepaid Insurance

    Interest accrued on deposits

Total

Other current assets

 500,000.00 

 Nil 

 33,140.00 

 Nil 

 47,998,978.45 

 1,943,316.00 

 48,629.00 

 50,524,063.45

9. As at31st 
March, 2018

As at31st 
March, 2017

As at01st 
April, 2016

 4,569,445.56 

 33,140.00 

 150,820.00 

 5,333,204.26 

 Nil 

 1,380,015.00 

 324,476.00 

 11,791,100.82

 95,754.00 

 45,730.00 

 105,090.00 

 5,984,715.07 

 Nil 

 1,134,031.00 

 1,771,877.00 

 9,137,197.07

Authorised share capital

Equity shares of Rs.10 each 

Total

Issued, subscribed and fully paid-up

Equity shares of Rs.10 each fully paid

Total

Share capital

 No. of Shares 

 7,000,000.00 

 7,000,000.00 

 3,689,500.00 

 3,689,500.00

10 As at 31st 
March, 2018

As at 31st 
March, 2017

As at 01st 
April, 2016

 70,000,000.00 

 70,000,000.00 

 36,895,000.00 

 36,895,000.00

 No. of Shares 

 7,000,000.00 

 7,000,000.00 

 3,689,500.00 

 3,689,500.00

 70,000,000.00 

 70,000,000.00 

 36,895,000.00 

 36,895,000.00

 No. of Shares 

 7,000,000.00 

 7,000,000.00 

 3,689,500.00 

 3,689,500.00

 Amount 

 70,000,000.00 

 70,000,000.00 

 36,895,000.00 

 36,895,000.00

Equity Shares

Shares at the beginning of the year

Add: further issued during the year

Total

a) Reconciliation of the number of shares outstanding is set out below:

 3,689,500.00 

 Nil 

 3,689,500.00

As at 31st 
March, 2018

As at 31st 
March, 2017

As at 01st 
April, 2016

 36,895,000.00 

 Nil 

 36,895,000.00

 3,689,500.00 

 Nil 

 3,689,500.00

 36,895,000.00 

 Nil 

 36,895,000.00

 3,689,500.00 

 Nil 

 3,689,500.00 

 36,895,000.00 

 Nil 

 36,895,000.00

Particulars

b) Terms/rights attached to equity shares
The Company has only one class of equity shares, having a par value of `10 per share. All shares rank pari 
passu with respect to dividend, voting rights and other terms. Each shareholder is entitled to one vote per 
share. The dividend proposed, if any, by the Board of  Directors is subject to approval of shareholders in the 
ensuing Annual General Meeting, except in case of interim dividend. The repayment of equity share capital  in 
the event of liquidation and buy back of shares are possible subject to prevalent regulations. In the event of 
liquidation, normally the equity shareholders are eligible to receive the remaining assets of the Company after 
distribution of all preferential amounts, in proportion to their shareholding.

Amount Amount 

Equity shares of Rs.10 each, fully 
paid up held by

C) Details of Equity shareholders holding more than 5% shares

 No. of 
Shares

As at 31st 
March, 2018

As at 31st 
March, 2017

As at 01st 
April, 2016

Particulars

1000200

858000

858000

27.110%

23.255%

23.255%

1000200

858000

858000

27.110%

23.255%

23.255%

1556200

1090000

Nil

42.180%

29.543%

0.000%

 % of shares 
held

 No. of 
Shares

 % of shares 
held

 No. of 
Shares

 % of shares 
held

Hukam Chand Garg

Rohit Garg

Atul Garg
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"Indian rupee loans  from bank includes (i) `13,40,004/- which carries interest @ 9.50% per annum. This loan is 
repayable in 36 equated monthly installments of `1,27,680/- each including interest from the date of loan. The 
loan is secured against hypothecation of Motor Car.(ii) ` 42,50,270/- which carries interest @ 9.52% per annum. 
This loan is  repayable in 36 equated monthly installments of ̀  2,54,320/- each including interest from the date of 
loan. The loan is secured against hypothecation of Motor Car. (Iii) ` 73,81,983/- which carries interest @ 8.24% 
per annum. This loan is repayable in 36 equated  monthly installments of ̀  2,51,651/- each including interest from 
the date of loan. The loan is secured against hypothecation of Motor Car. "

(iii) Indian rupee loans from corporates and related parties carries interest @ 9% per annum. Interest is payable 
on yearly basis.

Investment Allowance Reserve

As per Last Balance Sheet

Securities Premium Account

As per Last Balance Sheet

Forfieture Share Capital Reserve

As per Last Balance Sheet

Forfieture Share Premium Reserve

As per Last Balance Sheet

Revaluation Reserve

As per Last Balance Sheet

General Reserve

As per Last Balance Sheet

Surplus in Statement of Profit and Loss

Balance as at the beginning of the year

Profit for the year

Less : Appropriations:

           Dividend for the year

           Dividend Distribution Tax on Dividend

Balance as at the end of the year

Total

 Other Equity

 16,215.00 

 6,895,000.00 

 5,908,495.00 

 5,908,495.00 

 19,485,409.00 

 54,457,325.69 

 291,186,509.49 

 116,754,272.74 

 18,447,500.00 

 3,223,148.00 

 386,270,134.23 

 478,941,073.92

11. As at31st 
March, 2018

As at31st 
March, 2017

As at01st 
April, 2016

 16,215.00 

 6,895,000.00 

 5,908,495.00 

 5,908,495.00 

 19,485,409.00 

 54,457,325.69 

 235,277,261.60 

 55,909,247.89 

 Nil 

 Nil 

 291,186,509.49 

 383,857,449.18

 16,215.00 

 6,895,000.00 

 5,908,495.00 

 5,908,495.00 

 19,485,409.00 

 54,457,325.69 

 

 235,277,261.60 

 327,948,201.29

Secured Loan 

Indian rupee loan from bank

Unsecured Loan 

Inter-corporate loans (Indian rupee loans)

Loans from related parties (Indian rupee loans)

Total

Long Term Borrowings

 12,972,257.37 

 449,971,742.00 

 120,450,342.00 

 583,394,341.37

12. As at31st 
March, 2018

As at31st 
March, 2017

As at01st 
April, 2016

 9,441,096.67 

 385,522,812.00 

 89,271,908.00 

 484,235,816.67

 Nil 

 354,839,117.00 

 58,746,173.00 

 413,585,290.00
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Advance from parties

Employees Benefits payable

Book Overdrafts

Interest Accrued But Not Due

Statutory dues payable

  T.D.S. Payable

  Provident Fund

  E.S.I.

Other Payables:

  Electricity Expenses

  Audit & Legal Fees

  Telephone Expenses

Total

Other current liabilities

 3,621,837.29 

 1,510,239.00 

 71,015,526.62 

 95,133.86 

 7,003,806.00 

 71,184.00 

 35,563.00 

 5,579,308.00 

 108,000.00 

 Nil 

 89,040,597.77

16. As at31st 
March, 2018

As at31st 
March, 2017

As at01st 
April, 2016

 311,977,861.87 

 753,849.00 

 Nil 

 Nil 

 6,640,162.00 

 190,358.00 

 45,473.00 

 5,221,686.00 

 84,000.00 

 Nil 

 324,913,389.87

 Nil 

 952,714.00 

 Nil 

 Nil  

 4,915,297.00 

 62,651.00 

 10,309.00 

 6,283,799.00 

 67,500.00 

 32,641.00 

 12,324,911.00

The movment on the deferred tax account is 
as follows:

At the beginning of the year

Charge/(credit) to statement of Profit and Loss 

At the end of the year

 Deferred Tax Liabilities (Net)

 22,543,303.00 

 671,942.00 

 23,215,245.00

13. As at31st 
March, 2018

As at31st 
March, 2017

As at01st 
April, 2016

 22,594,440.00 

 (51,137.00)

 22,543,303.00  22,594,440.00

Deferred tax liabilities in relation to:

Property, plant and equipment

Total

Particulars

Component of Deferred Tax Liabilities

 22,543,303.00 

 22,543,303.00

As at 01st 
April 2017

 Changes/ (credit) 
to profit or loss

As at31st 
March, 2018

 671,942.00 

 671,942.00

 23,215,245.00 

 23,215,245.00

Loans repayable on demand (secured):

Borrowings from banks

Total

Borrowings (current)

 2,334,840,734.79 

 2,334,840,734.79

14. As at31st 
March, 2018

As at31st 
March, 2017

As at01st 
April, 2016

 1,496,167,744.48 

 1,496,167,744.48

 908,603,180.27 

 908,603,180.27

Cash credits from banks are secured by hypothecation of stocks of raw materials, stock in process, finished 
goods, stores, consumable stores and book debts etc; such credits from banks are also secured by charge on all 
the present and future asset of thee Company and futther guaranteed by Directors. The working capital loans are 
repayable on demand and carries interest @ 5% to 7% per annum.

Other Trade Payables

Total

Trade payables

 514,526,101.95 

 514,526,101.95

15. As at31st 
March, 2018

As at31st 
March, 2017

As at01st 
April, 2016

 241,891,668.47 

 241,891,668.47

 112,670,280.07 

 112,670,280.07
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Revenue from operations18. Year ended 
31st March, 2018

Year ended 
31st March, 2017

Sale of products

   Rice (Including Processed Rice)

   Others

Total

 9,147,841,681.39 

 101,761,646.38 

 9,249,603,327.77

 5,824,940,352.55 

 86,567,147.85 

 5,911,507,500.40

Other income19. Year ended 
31st March, 2018

Year ended 
31st March, 2017

Others

Total

 Nil 

 Nil

 5,000.00 

 5,000.00

Cost of materials consumed 20. Year ended 
31st March, 2018

Year ended 
31st March, 2017

Opening Stock

Add : Purchases

Total

Deduct : Closing Stock

Cost of materials consumed

 879,698,780.00 

 2,192,132,457.06 

 3,071,831,237.06 

 665,872,865.00 

 2,405,958,372.06

 235,116,726.00 

 2,047,059,632.40 

 2,282,176,358.40 

 879,698,780.00 

 1,402,477,578.40

Purchases of traded goods21. Year ended 
31st March, 2018

Year ended 
31st March, 2017

Rice (Unprocessed)

Total

 5,611,859,387.46 

 5,611,859,387.46

 4,314,013,698.55 

 4,314,013,698.55

Changes in inventory of finished goods & 
Traded Goods

22. Year ended 
31st March, 2018

Year ended 
31st March, 2017

Finished Goods

Opening Stock

Deduct : Closing Stock

Traded Goods

Opening Stock

Deduct : Closing Stock

(Increase) / Decrease in stocks

 518,161,239.00 

 235,423,853.00 

 282,737,386.00 

 601,530,170.00 

 1,041,284,442.00 

 (439,754,272.00)

 (157,016,886.00)

 290,259,259.00 

 518,161,239.00 

 (227,901,980.00)

 102,642,775.00 

 601,530,170.00 

 (498,887,395.00)

 (726,789,375.00)

Provision for taxation (Netted off towards 
advance taxes)

Dividend on Equity Shares

Dividend Distribution Tax thereon

Total

Current Provisions

 13,408,566.00 

 18,447,500.00 

 3,223,148.00 

 35,079,214.00

17. As at31st 
March, 2018

As at31st 
March, 2017

As at01st 
April, 2016

 Nil 

 Nil 

 Nil 

 Nil 

 Nil 

 Nil 

 Nil 

 Nil 
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Employee benefit expenses23. Year ended 
31st March, 2018

Year ended 
31st March, 2017

Salaries, wages and bonus

Contribution to provident and other 
funds

-Provident fund

-E.S.I. fund

Total

 27,862,626.00 

 1,060,058.00 

 438,272.00 

 29,360,956.00

 20,604,357.00 

 937,310.00 

 232,461.00 

 21,774,128.00

Finance costs24. Year ended 
31st March, 2018

Year ended 
31st March, 2017

Interest Charges

Bank Charges

Total

 128,063,241.39 

 19,321,538.94 

 147,384,780.33

 85,446,028.97 

 13,072,283.65 

 98,518,312.62

Depreciation25. Year ended 
31st March, 2018

Year ended 
31st March, 2017

Depreciation Property, plant and 
equipment/Tangible Assets

Total
 20,260,505.39 

 20,260,505.39

 19,279,304.13 

 19,279,304.13

Other expenses26. Year ended 
31st March, 2018

Year ended 
31st March, 2017

Power and Fuel
Repairs to Machinery
Consumption of Stores and Spare Parts
Electric Repairs
Repairs to Building
Rent
Export Promotion Expenses
Rates and Taxes
Insurance
Freight, Transport and Delivery
Shipping & Forwarding
Packing Expenses
Rebate & Discounts
Travelling Expenses
Entertainment Expenses
Conveyance Expenses
Printing & Stationery
Postage & Courier
Advertisement
Payment to auditor (Refer details below)
Professional Charges
Commission
Telephone Expenses
Vehicles Running Expenses
Income Tax / Wealth Tax
Loss on sale of tangible assets
Charity and Donation (CSR)
Miscellaneous Expenses
Total

 72,572,650.00 
 14,035,793.17 

 3,910,917.46 
 2,600,356.43 
 2,215,199.67 
 3,292,456.00 
 4,301,293.00 

 66,126,248.28 
 6,122,386.00 

 117,787,682.83 
 387,881,503.94 
 285,123,017.81 

 8,893,209.85 
 7,291,619.60 

 221,528.00 
 185,130.00 
 371,464.00 

 1,580,505.00 
 651,851.40 
 100,000.00 

 3,283,351.00 
 18,145,451.00 

 459,909.13 
 1,588,830.43 

 150,820.00 
 Nil 

 1,300,000.00 
 643,028.79 

 1,010,836,202.79

 68,514,172.00 
 13,545,565.18 

 5,354,670.09 
 1,671,301.77 
 1,215,796.00 
 4,917,788.86 

 Nil 
 64,698,004.50 

 4,187,287.25 
 129,413,093.04 
 234,099,945.16 
 138,985,894.13 

 2,168,088.71 
 3,674,154.00 

 254,700.00 
 287,745.00 
 223,186.00 

 1,250,031.00 
 50,975.00 
 92,000.00 

 1,418,706.00 
 17,840,869.00 

 423,233.00 
 1,036,195.44 

 180,488.00 
 412,471.87 

 1,200,000.00 
 408,292.81 

 697,524,653.81
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Payment to auditor Year ended 
31st March, 2018

Year ended 
31st March, 2017

As auditor:

Audit Fee

Tax Audit Fee

Other matters (Certificates, Tax etc.)

Total

 70,000.00 

 20,000.00 

 10,000.00 

 100,000.00

 50,000.00 

 20,000.00 

 22,000.00 

 92,000.00

Particulars

Earnings per share Year ended 
31st March, 2018

Year ended 
31st March, 2017

(i) Net Profit after tax as per Statement of Profit 
and Loss attributable to Equity Shareholders (`)

(ii) Weighted average number of equity shares 
used as denominator for calulationg EPS (`)

(iii) Basic and diluted earnings per share (`)

(iv) Nominal value per share (`)

 116,754,272.74 

3689500

 31.65 

 10.00

 55,909,247.89 

3689500

 15.15 

 10.00

27.

Earnings in Foreign Currency Year ended 
31st March, 2018

Year ended 
31st March, 2017

Revenue from Export of Goods

Total

 8,478,819,221.62 

 8,478,819,221.62

 5,345,623,760.71 

 5,345,623,760.71

28.

ANNUAL REPORT 2017-2018.......80



GRM

FIRST TIME ADOPTION OF IND AS RECONCILIATIONS STATEMENTS

Effect of Ind AS adoption on the Balance Sheet as at 31st March, 2017 and as at 01st April, 2016

As at 31st March, 2017

ASSETS

Property, plant and equipment

 Financial assets 

(i) Investment

(ii) Other financial assets

Total non-current assets

Current assets

Inventories

Financial assets

(i) Trade receivables

(ii) Cash and bank balances

Other current assets

Total current assets

TOTAL ASSETS

EQUITY AND LIABILITIES

Equity

(a) Equity share capital

(b) Other equity 

Total equity

Non-current liabilities

(a) Financial liabilities

(i)Borrowings

(b) Defferred tax liability

Total non current liabilities

Current liabilities

(a) Financial liabilities

(i)Borrowings

(ii)Trade payable

(b) Other current liabilities

(c) Provisions

Total current liabilities

TOTAL EQUITY AND LIABILITIES

3 

4 

5 

6 

7 

8 

9 

10 

11 

12 

13 

14 

15 

16 

17 

 212,170,566.94 

 2,438,774.00 

 7,464,793.00 

 222,074,133.94 

 1,999,390,189.00 

 741,280,116.60 

 15,968,831.31 

 11,791,100.82 

 2,768,430,237.73 

 2,990,504,371.67 

 36,895,000.00 

 383,857,449.18 

 420,752,449.18 

 484,235,816.67 

 22,543,303.00 

 506,779,119.67 

 1,496,167,744.48 

 241,891,668.47 

 324,913,389.87 

 Nil 

 2,062,972,802.82 

 2,990,504,371.67 

 Nil 

 Nil 

 Nil 

 Nil 

 Nil 

 Nil 

 Nil 

 Nil 

 Nil 

 Nil 

 Nil 

 Nil 

 Nil 

 Nil 

 Nil 

 Nil 

 Nil 

 Nil 

 Nil 

 Nil 

 Nil 

 Nil

 212,170,566.94 

 2,438,774.00 

 7,464,793.00 

 222,074,133.94 

 1,999,390,189.00 

 741,280,116.60 

 15,968,831.31 

 11,791,100.82 

 2,768,430,237.73 

 2,990,504,371.67 

 36,895,000.00 

 383,857,449.18 

 420,752,449.18 

 484,235,816.67 

 22,543,303.00 

 506,779,119.67 

 1,496,167,744.48 

 241,891,668.47 

 324,913,389.87 

 Nil 

 2,062,972,802.82 

 2,990,504,371.67

 211,467,641.94 

 Nil 

 6,925,431.00 

 218,393,072.94 

 628,018,760.00 

 823,811,489.60 

 155,260,783.02 

 9,137,197.07 

 1,616,228,229.69 

 1,834,621,302.63 

 36,895,000.00 

 327,948,201.29 

 364,843,201.29 

 413,585,290.00 

 22,594,440.00 

 436,179,730.00 

 908,603,180.27 

 112,670,280.07 

 12,324,911.00 

 Nil 

 1,033,598,371.34 

 1,834,621,302.63

 Nil 

 Nil 

 Nil 

 Nil 

 Nil 

 Nil 

 Nil 

 Nil 

 Nil 

 Nil 

 Nil 

 Nil 

 Nil 

 Nil 

 Nil 

 Nil 

 Nil 

 Nil 

 Nil 

 Nil 

 Nil 

 Nil

 211,467,641.94 

 Nil 

 6,925,431.00 

 218,393,072.94 

 628,018,760.00 

 823,811,489.60 

 155,260,783.02 

 9,137,197.07 

 1,616,228,229.69 

 1,834,621,302.63 

 36,895,000.00 

 327,948,201.29 

 364,843,201.29 

 413,585,290.00 

 22,594,440.00 

 436,179,730.00 

 908,603,180.27 

 112,670,280.07 

 12,324,911.00 

 Nil 

 1,033,598,371.34 

 1,834,621,302.63

As at 1st April, 2016

Notes Previous GAAP Effect of 
Transition 
to Ind AS

As per IND AS 
Balance Sheet

Effect of 
Transition 
to Ind ASPrevious GAAP

As per IND AS 
Balance Sheet

(in Rupees)

Particular

For Vishal Malhotra & Co.
Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration No. 012750N

Rohit Garg
Managing Director
DIN : 00673304

Atul Garg
Director
DIN : 02380612

(CA. Mitesh Malhotra)                                
Partner
Membership No. 504338
Delhi
26th May, 2018

Rattan Lal Mittal
Cheif Financial Offier

Sumit Bajaj
Company Secretary
M. No. A45042

As per our report of even date
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Reconciliation of profit and other equity between IndAS and Previous GAAP

 Net Profit 

As at 31st 
March, 2017

Net Profit/Other Equity as per Previous Indian GAAP

Fair Value adjustment of Non-Current Assets

Fair Value adjustment of Current Assets

Deferred Tax Impact on Fair Value adjustment of 
investment

Income Tax impact of above adjustment

Total

Net Profit before OCI/Other Equity as per Ind AS

11  92,670,939.69 

 Nil 

 Nil 

 Nil 

 Nil 

 92,670,939.69 

 92,670,939.69 

Particular  Notes
As at 31st 

March, 2017

Other Equity

 291,186,509.49 

 Nil 

 Nil 

 Nil 

 Nil 

 291,186,509.49 

 291,186,509.49

 92,670,939.69 

 Nil 

 Nil 

 Nil 

 Nil 

 92,670,939.69 

 92,670,939.69

As at 01st 
April, 2016

Effect of Ind AS adoption on the Statement of Profit and loss for the year ended 31st March, 2017

 Previous GAAP

Income

Income from Operation

Other Income

Total Revenue

Expenses

Cost of Material Consumed

Purchases of traded goods

Changes in inventories of finished goods & tradedgoods

Employee benefits expense

Finance cost

Depreciation and Amortisation

Other expenses

Total Expense

Profit Before Tax

Tax Expense

Income Tax

Deferred Tax (credit)

Profit for the Year

18

19

20

21

22

23

24

25

26

13

 Nil 

 Nil 

 Nil 

 Nil 

 Nil 

 Nil 

 Nil 

 Nil 

 Nil 

 Nil 

 Nil 

 Nil 

 Nil 

 Nil 

 Nil

27.

Particular  Notes  Effect of 
transition 
to Ind AS

 5,911,507,500.40 

 5,000.00 

 5,911,512,500.40 

 1,402,477,578.40 

 4,314,013,698.55 

 (726,789,375.00)

 21,774,128.00 

 98,518,312.62 

 19,279,304.13 

 697,524,653.81 

 5,826,798,300.51 

 84,714,199.89 

 28,856,089.00 

 (51,137.00)

 55,909,247.89

 5,911,507,500.40 

 5,000.00 

 5,911,512,500.40 

 1,402,477,578.40 

 4,314,013,698.55 

 (726,789,375.00)

 21,774,128.00 

 98,518,312.62 

 19,279,304.13 

 697,524,653.81 

 5,826,798,300.51 

 84,714,199.89 

 28,856,089.00 

 (51,137.00)

 55,909,247.89

 As per Ind 
AS

 Year Ended 31st March, 2017

For Vishal Malhotra & Co.
Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration No. 012750N

Rohit Garg
Managing Director
DIN : 00673304

Atul Garg
Director
DIN : 02380612

(CA. Mitesh Malhotra)                                
Partner
Membership No. 504338
Delhi
26th May, 2018

Rattan Lal Mittal
Cheif Financial Offier

Sumit Bajaj
Company Secretary
M. No. A45042

As per our report of even date

(in Rupees)
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29. Quantitative information:-

Current Year

Quantity

Opening Stock
Rice
Paddy
Rice Bran
Packing Materials
Others
Total
Production/Purchase
Rice (Produced)
Rice (Purchased)
Paddy (Purchased)
Sales
Rice
Raw Materials Consumed
Paddy (Milled)
Closing Stock
Rice
Paddy
Rice Bran
Packing Materials
Others
Total
Shortages:
Rice

Particular

Previous Year

   
  3,01,456.896
3,22,405.710
     2,814.100 

-
-
 

5,01,540.000
9,90,353.015
6,58,766.750

14,92,240.523

7,67,510.460

3,00,476.420
2,13,662.000

1,436.700
-
-

632.968

Stock, production, purchase and turnover (Quantities in Quintals and Values in Rupees)

     
  1,11,41,87,229.00 
   86,40,47,303.00 
        29,40,730.00 

       1,56,51,477.00 
         25,63,450.00 

  1,99,93,90,189.00 

 -
5,61,18,59,387.46
2,18,97,91,944.44

9,14,78,41,681.39

-

1,27,22,84,334.00
65,06,00,790.00

18,60,511.00
1,52,72,075.00

25,63,450.00
1,94,25,81,160.00

-

1,22,040.260
1,22,754.720

2,426.690
-
-

 3,71,918.000 
  9,53,378.015 
 7,71,547.030

 
11,45,320.379

   5,71,896.040
 

  3,01,456.896
3,22,405.710

       2,814.100 
-
-

559.000

    
38,78,60,931.00

   22,73,41,741.00
24,77,653.00         

       77,74,985.00 
25,63,450.00     

  62,80,18,760.00 

 -
4,31,40,13,698.55 
1,92,26,41,411.80 

5,82,49,40,352.55

 -

 1,11,41,87,229.00      
   86,40,47,303.00         
       29,40,730.00 

      1,56,51,477.00 
       25,63,450.00 

1,99,93,90,189.00

-

Value Quantity Value

30. Related party disclosures pursuant to Ind AS 24 prescribed under the Act.

a. Loans taken and repayment thereof

Hukam Chand Garg 6,02,00,000 10,80,77,427      66,45,790      1,36,07,486
Rohit Garg 6,89,00,000 2,98,00,000 44,03,194 6,46,18,415
Atul Garg 6,13,00,000 3,45,62,274 21,69,151 4,22,24,441

Companies in which
directors or their
relatives are interested:
Alfa Technobuild Pvt. Ltd. 2,90,00,000 3,00,11,780      28,49,960      4,83,82,867
HA Buildtech Pvt. Ltd. 2,51,30,000 1,32,30,000 19,12,256 3,81,16,002
Paras Infraprojects Pvt. Ltd. 1,35,50,000 3,42,69,858 38,17,046      4,58,71,324
Prestige Infraprojects Pvt. Ltd. 1,29,50,000 3,62,74,960      25,30,149      2,00,73,304
Samarth Technobuild Pvt. Ltd. 4,62,00,000 1,20,21,628      73,63,838    11,38,07,378
Eros Agro & Farms Pvt. Ltd. 2,13,00,000 53,34,349      62,83,692      9,60,71,744
Rohit Buildtech Pvt. Ltd. 1,55,00,000 97,90,000      27,00,128      4,72,90,988
Shine Technobuild Pvt. Ltd. 2,56,40,544 1,34,40,544      20,94,436      4,03,58,135

Key management
personnel or their 
relatives:

Particulars Loans taken Repayment Interest
Accrued

Amount owed 
by the Parties
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b. Remuneration to key management personnel

 
     Year ended               Year ended 

Particulars                     31st March, 2018       31st March, 2017

Mr. Hukam Chand Garg (Director)  9,00,000 21,60,000

Mr. Rohit Garg (Director) 25,50,000 19,20,000

Mr. Atul Garg (Director)  25,50,000  19,20,000

Mr. Ratan Lal Mittal (CFO)  3,00,000 3,00,000

Ms. Tanushree Aggarwal (Company Secretary)           30,000 60,000

Mr. Sumit Bajaj (Company Secretary)           10,000 Nil

Ms. Seena Suri (Company Secretary) 20,000 Nil

Total 63,60,000  63,60,000

31. No information has been received by the Company from the creditors whether they are covered under 
Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises Development Act, 2006.
 
32. Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR)
a) CSR amount required to be spent as per Section 135 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Schedule VII 
thereof by the Company during the year is `14.10 lakh (Previous Year `12 lakh).

b) Expenditure related to Corporate Social Responsibility is 13 lakh (Previous Year 12 lakh). 

33. Capital Management
The Company manages its capital to ensure that it will continue as going concern while maximizing the return 
to stakeholders. The Company manages its capital structure and make adjustment in light of changes in 
business condition. The overall strategy remains unchanged as compare to last year.

34. The Company is mainly engaged in ‘Rice Sheller’ activity. All the activities of the Company revolve around 
this main business. Accordingly, the Company has only one identifiable segment reportable under Ind AS 108 
“Operating Segment”. The Executive Director (the ‘Chief Operational Decision Maker as defined in Ind AS 

` `

c. Rent to key management personnel or their relatives
 

     Year ended               Year ended 
Particulars                     31st March, 2018       31st March, 2017

Hukam Chand Garg  6,00,000 6,00,000

Rohit Garg 2,70,000 2,70,000

Hukam Chand Garg HUF 4,50,000 4,50,000

Jugpati Devi 6,00,000 6,00,000

Total 19,20,000 19,20,000

                  

ANNUAL REPORT 2017-2018.......84



For Vishal Malhotra & Co.
Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration No. 012750N

(CA. Mitesh Malhotra)                                
Partner
Membership No. 504338
Delhi
26th May, 2018

Rohit Garg
Managing Director
DIN : 00673304

Rattan Lal Mittal
Cheif Financial Offier

Atul Garg
Director
DIN : 02380612

Sumit Bajaj
Company Secretary
M. No. A45042

GRM

108 – Operating Segments) monitors the operating results of the entity’s business for the purpose of making 
decisions about resource allocation and performance assessment.

35. The Board of Directors have recommended payment of dividend of `5/- per fully paid up equity share of 10/- 
each, aggregating 216.71 lakh including 32.23 lakh dividend distribution tax for the financial year 2017-18. 
Dividend has been provided subject to members approval at the ensuing 24th Annual General Meeting.

36. The financial statements were approved for issue by the Board of Directors at its meeting held on 26th May, 
2018

` `
` `
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT
On the Consolidated Financial Statements of GRM Overseas Limited

TO THE MEMBERS OF GRM OVERSEAS LIMITED

Report on the Consolidated Financial Statements

We have audited the accompanying consolidated financial statements of GRM OVERSEAS LIMITED (hereinafter 
referred to as “the Holding Company”) and its subsidiaries (the Holding Company and its subsidiaries together 
referred to as “the Group”), its associates and jointly controlled entities, comprising of the Consolidated Balance 
Sheet as at March 31, 2018, the Consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss (including Other Comprehensive 
Income), the Consolidated Cash Flow Statement for the year then ended and a summary of significant accounting 
policies and other explanatory information (hereinafter referred to as “the consolidated financial statements”). 

Management’s Responsibility for the Consolidated Financial Statements

The Holding Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in section 134(5) of the Companies 
Act, 2013 (“the Act”) with respect to the preparation of these consolidated financial statements that give a true and 
fair view of the consolidated financial position, consolidated financial performance including other comprehensive 
income and consolidated cash flows of the Company in accordance with the accounting principles generally 
accepted in India, including Accounting Standards prescribed under Section 133 of the Act. 

The respective Board of Directors of the companies included in the Group and its associates and jointly controlled 
entities are responsible for maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance with the provision of the Act 
for safeguarding the assets of the Group and for preventing and detecting frauds and other irregularities; selection 
and application of appropriate accounting policies; making judgments and estimates that are reasonable and 
prudent; and the design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial control, that were 
operating effectively for ensuring the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records,  relevant to the 
preparation and presentation of the financial statements that give a true and fair view and are free from material 
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, which have been used for the purpose of preparation of the 
consolidated financial statements by the Board of Directors of the Holding Company, as aforesaid.

Auditor’s Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated financial statements based on our audit.

While conducting the audit, we have taken into account the provisions of the Act, the accounting and auditing 
standards and matters which are required to be included in the audit report under the provisions of the Act and the 
Rules made thereunder.

We conducted our audit of consolidated financial statements in accordance with the Standards on Auditing 
specified under section 143(10) of the Act. Those Standards require that we comply with ethical requirements and 
plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated financial statements are 
free from material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and the disclosures in the 
consolidated financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgment, including the 
assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or 
error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal financial control relevant to the Holding 
Company’s preparation of the consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view in order to design 
audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness 
of the accounting policies used and the reasonableness of the accounting estimates made by the Company’s 
Directors, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the consolidated financial statements.
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We believe that the audit evidence obtained by us and by the other auditors in terms of their reports referred is 
sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion on the consolidated financial statements.

Opinion   

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, and based on the 
consideration of reports of other auditors, the aforesaid consolidated financial statements give the information 
required by the Act in the manner so required and give a true and fair view in conformity with the accounting 
principles generally accepted in India, of the consolidated state of affairs of the Group, its associates and jointly 
controlled entities as at March 31, 2018, and their consolidated profit and their consolidated cash flows for the year 
ended on that date.

Report on other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

1. As required by Section 143(3) of the Act, we report that:

a)   We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our knowledge and 
belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit of the aforesaid consolidated financial statements.

b)  In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law relating to preparation of the aforesaid consolidated 
financial statements have been kept so far as it appears from our examination of those books and the reports 
of the other auditor. 

c)  The Consolidated Balance Sheet, the Consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss (including Other 
Comprehensive Income) and Consolidated Cash Flow Statement dealt    with by this Report are in agreement 
with the relevant books of account maintained for the purpose of preparation of the consolidated financial 
statements.

d)  In our opinion, the aforesaid consolidated financial statements comply with the Accounting Standards 
prescribed under Section 133 of the Act.

e)  On the basis of the written representations received from the directors of the Holding Company as on March 
31, 2018, taken on record by the Board of Directors of the Holding Company and of its subsidiary companies, 
associate companies and jointly controlled companies, none of the directors is disqualified as on March 31, 
2018, from being appointed as a director in terms of Section 164(2) of the Act.

f)  With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls over financial reporting of the Company and the 
operating effectiveness of such controls, refer to our separate Report in “Annexure A”.

g) With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’s Report in accordance with Rule 11 of the 
Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, in our opinion and to the best of our information and according to 
the explanations given to us:

 i. The Holding Company and of its subsidiary companies, associate companies and jointly controlled entities, 
does not have any pending litigations which would impact its financial position;

ii. The Holding Company and of its subsidiary companies, associate companies and jointly controlled entities, 
did not have any long-term contracts including derivatives contract for which there were any material 
foreseeable losses; 

iii .There has been no delay in transferring amounts, required to be transferred, to the  Investor Education and 
Protection Fund by the Holding Company and its subsidiaries, associates and jointly controlled entities.

For Vishal Malhotra & Co.
Chartered Accountants

Firm Registration No. 012750N

(CA. Mitesh Malhotra)                                
Partner

Membership No. 504338
Delhi

26th May, 2018
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Annexure “A”

GRM

to the Independent Auditors’ Report on the Consolidated Financial Statements of GRM Overseas Limited

(Referred to in paragraph 1(f) under ‘Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements’ section of our Report of 
even date)

Report on the Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting under Clause (i) of Sub-section 3 of Section 143 
of the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”)

In conjunction with our audit of the consolidated financial statements of the Holding Company as of and for the year 
ended March 31, 2018, we have audited the internal financial controls over financial reporting of GRM OVERSEAS 
LIMITED (hereinafter referred to as “the Holding Company”) and its subsidiaries (the Holding Company and its 
subsidiaries together referred to as “the Group”), its associates and jointly controlled entities.

Management’s Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls

The respective Board of Directors of the Holding Company, its subsidiaries, associates, and jointly controlled 
entities are responsible for establishing and maintaining internal financial controls based on the internal control 
over financial reporting criteria established by these entities, considering the essential components of internal 
control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting (the “Guidance 
Note”) issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India (‘ICAI’). These responsibilities include the design, 
implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls that were operating effectively for ensuring 
the orderly and efficient conduct of its business, including adherence to respective company’s policies, the 
safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy and completeness of the 
accounting records, and the timely preparation of reliable financial information, as required under the Companies 
Act, 2013.

Auditors’ Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Holding Company, its subsidiaries, associates and jointly 
controlled entities, internal financial controls over financial reporting based on our audit. We conducted our audit in 
accordance with the Guidance Note and the Standards on Auditing prescribed under Section 143(10) of the 
Companies Act, 2013, to the extent applicable to an audit of internal financial controls. Those Standards and the 
Guidance Note require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain 
reasonable assurance about whether adequate internal financial controls over financial reporting was established 
and maintained and if such controls operated effectively in all material respects.

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the internal financial 
controls system over financial reporting and their operating effectiveness. Our audit of internal financial controls 
over financial reporting included obtaining an understanding of internal financial controls over financial reporting, 
assessing the risk that a material weakness exists, and testing and evaluating the design and operating 
effectiveness of internal control based on the assessed risk. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s 
judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated financial statements, 
whether due to fraud or error.

We believe that the audit evidence obtained by us and the other auditors in terms of their reports is sufficient and 
appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion on the Holding Company, its subsidiaries, associates and jointly 
controlled entities, internal financial controls system over financial reporting.

Meaning of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting

A Company's internal financial control over financial reporting is a process designed to provide reasonable 
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assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for external 
purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles. A Company's internal financial control over 
financial reporting includes those policies and procedures that (1) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in 
reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and dispositions of the assets of the company;  (2) 
provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of financial 
statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and payments of the 
Company are being made only in accordance with authorisations of management and directors of the company; 
and (3) provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorised acquisition, use or 
disposition of the Company's assets that could have a material effect on the financial statements.

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls over financial reporting, including the possibility of 
collusion or improper management override of controls, material misstatements due to error or fraud may occur and 
not be detected. Also, projections of any evaluation of the internal financial controls over financial reporting to future 
periods are subject to the risk that the internal financial control over financial reporting may become inadequate 
because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate.

Opinion

In our opinion, to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us and based on the 
consideration of reports of other auditors, the Holding Company its subsidiaries, associates and jointly controlled 
entities, have, in all material respects, an adequate internal financial controls system over financial reporting and 
such internal financial controls over financial reporting were operating effectively as at March 31, 2018, based on 
the internal control over financial reporting criteria established by the respective companies, considering the 
essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note.

For Vishal Malhotra & Co.
Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration No. 012750N

(CA. Mitesh Malhotra)                                
Partner
Membership No. 504338
Delhi
26th May, 2018
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Consolidated Balance Sheet as at 31st March, 2018

Particulars Note No.
 As at

31st March, 2018
 As at

31st March, 2017

ASSETS

Non-current assets

(a)Property, plant and equipment 3  207,837,006.55  212,170,566.94  211,467,641.94 
(b)Financial assets

(i)Other financial assets 4  7,483,882.00  7,464,793.00 6,925,431.00 
Total non-current assets  215,320,888.55  219,635,359.94  218,393,072.94
Current assets

(a) Inventories 5 2,267,503,230.00 2,010,350,686.00 628,018,760.00 
(b) Financial assets

(i) Trade receivables 6  1,905,159,587.15  741,280,116.60  823,811,489.60 

(ii) Cash and bank balances 7  10,746,850.65  17,593,049.31  155,260,783.02
 (c) Other current assets 8  57,677,609.45  11,791,100.82  9,137,197.07 
Total current assets 4,241,087,277.25  2,781,014,952.73  1,616,228,229.69
TOTAL ASSETS 4,456,408,165.80 3,000,650,312.67  1,834,621,302.63
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES

Equity

(a) Equity share capital 9  36,895,000.00  36,895,000.00  36,895,000.00 
(b) Other equity 10  480,692,582.92  383,816,553.18  327,948,201.29 
Total equity  517,587,582.92  420,711,553.18  364,843,201.29 
Non-current liabilities

(a) Financial liabilities

(i) Borrowings 11  583,394,341.37  484,235,816.67  413,585,290.00
Defferred tax liability 12  23,231,205.00  22,543,303.00  22,594,440.00 
Total non current liabilities  606,625,546.37  506,779,119.67  436,179,730.00 
Current liabilities

(a) Financial liabilities

(i) Borrowings 13  2,334,840,734.79  1,496,167,744.48  908,603,180.27 

(ii) Trade payable 14  857,080,324.95  251,733,745.47  112,670,280.07
 (b)Other current liabilities 15 105,096,266.77  325,258,149.87  12,324,911.00 
(c) Provisions 16  35,177,710.00  Nil  Nil 
Total current liabilities  3,332,195,036.51  2,073,159,639.82  1,033,598,371.34 
TOTAL EQUITY AND LIABILITIES  4,456,408,165.80  3,000,650,312.67  1,834,621,302.63     

As per our report of even date

For Vishal Malhotra & Co.

Chartered Accountants

Firm Registration No. 012750N Rohit Garg Atul Garg
Managing Director Director

DIN : 00673304 DIN : 02380612
(CA. Mitesh Malhotra)                                

Partner

Membership No. 504338

Delhi Rattan Lal Mittal Sumit Bajaj
26th May, 2018 Cheif Financial Offier Company Secretary

M. No. A45042

 As at
31st March, 2016

In Rupees
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Consolidated Profit and loss statement for the year ended 31st March, 2018

Particulars Note No.
Year ended

31st March, 2018
Year ended

31st March, 2017

Income

Revenue from operation 17  9,441,530,170.77  5,911,507,500.40

Other income 18  715,464.00  5,000.00 

Total income 9,442,245,634.77  5,911,512,500.40

Expenses

Cost of material consumed 19  2,405,958,372.06  1,402,477,578.40

Purchases traded goods 20  6,095,188,379.46  4,323,843,336.55

Changes in inventories of finished 

Goods  & traded goods 21  (470,978,459.00)  (737,749,872.00)

Employee benefit expenses 22  30,431,462.00  21,774,128.00

Finance cost 23  147,551,767.33  98,214,449.62

Depreciation 24  20,288,503.39  19,279,304.13

Other expenses 25  1,030,938,738.79  699,000,271.81 

Total Expenses  9,259,378,764.03  5,826,839,196.51

Profit before tax  182,866,870.74  84,673,303.89 

Tax expense:

-Current tax  63,632,291.00  28,856,089.00 

-Deferred tax charge/(credit) 12  687,902.00  (51,137.00)

Profit for the year  118,546,677.74  55,868,351.89 

Earning per equity share of face value of ` 

10 each 26

Basic & Diluted (`)  32.13  15.14 

As per our report of even date

For Vishal Malhotra & Co.

Chartered Accountants

Firm Registration No. 012750N Rohit Garg  Atul Garg 

Managing Director  Director 

DIN : 00673304  DIN : 02380612 

(CA. Mitesh Malhotra)                                

Partner Membership No. 504338 Rattan Lal Mittal Sumit Bajaj

Delhi Cheif Financial Offier Company Secretary

26th May, 2018 M. No. A45042
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Consolidated Cash Flow Statement for the year ended 31st March 2018

Particulars Year ended
31st March, 2018

Year ended
31st March, 2017

Cash flow from operating activities

Net profit before tax

Adjustment for :

Depreciation and amortisation

Finance cost

Loss on sale of Tangible Assets (Net)

Operating profit/(loss) before working capital changes

Adjustment for :

Increase/ (Decrease) in trade payables and other liabilities

Decrease/ (Increase) in inventories

Decrease/ (Increase) in trade receivables and other assets

Cash Generated from operations

Taxes paid (net)

Net cash flow from/(used in) operating activities (A)

Cash from investing activities

Purchase of property, plant and equipment

Sale of property, plant  and equipment

Net cash used in investing activities (B)

Cash flow from financing activities

Proceeds from long-term borrowings

Proceeds from short-term borrowings

Finance cost paid

Net cash flow from financing activities (C )

Net increase/ (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents (A+B+C)

Cash and cash equivalents as at the beginning of the year

Cash and cash equivalents as at the end of the year

Component of cash and cash equivalents

Balance with banks

Cash in hand

Total

S.No

As per our report of even date

For Vishal Malhotra & Co.
Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration No. 012750N

(CA. Mitesh Malhotra) 
Partner
Membership No. 504338

Place : Delhi
Date : 26th May, 2018

 182,866,870.74 

 20,288,503.39 

 147,551,767.33 

 NIL 

 350,707,141.46 

 385,184,696.38 

 (257,152,544.00)

 (1,209,881,499.18)

 (731,142,205.34)

 (50,125,229.00)

 (781,267,434.34)

 (15,954,943.00)

 Nil 

 (15,954,943.00)

 99,158,524.70 

 838,672,990.31 

 (147,551,767.33)

 790,279,747.68 

 (6,942,629.66)

 16,215,928.31 

 9,273,298.65 

 9,155,540.65 

 117,758.00 

 9,273,298.65 

 84,673,303.89 

 19,279,304.13 

 98,214,449.62 

 412,471.87 

 202,579,529.51 

 451,996,704.27 

 (1,382,331,926.00)

 87,842,868.25 

 (639,912,823.97)

 (28,856,089.00)

 (668,768,912.97)

 (22,229,701.00)

 1,835,000.00 

 (20,394,701.00)

 70,650,526.67 

 587,564,564.21 

 (98,214,449.62)

 560,000,641.26 

 (129,162,972.71)

 145,378,901.02 

 16,215,928.31 

 15,658,192.47 

 557,735.84 

 16,215,928.31 

A.

B.

C.

D.

E.

F.

The cash flow statement has been prepared in accordance with 'Indirect method' as set out in the Ind AS 7 on 
'Cash Flow Statements', as specified in the Section 133 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Rule 7 of the 
Companies (Accounts) Rule, 2014.

Rohit Garg 
Managing Director 
DIN : 00673304 

Atul Garg 
Managing Director 
DIN : 02380612

Rattan Lal Mittal
Chief Financial Officer

Atul Garg 
Company Secretary
M. No. A45042
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements for the year ended 31st March, 2018

1. CORPORATE INFORMATION

GRM Overseas Limited (the ‘Company’) is a public limited company domiciled in India, incorporated under the 
provisions of the Companies Act and is listed on one stock exchange in India. The Company is engaged in the 
business of manufacturing and trading of Rice. 

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

2.01 Basis of preparation and presentation

The consolidated financial statements of the Company have been prepared under the historical cost convention 
on accrual basis and also to comply with the Indian Accounting Standards (‘Ind AS’) including the rules notified 
under the relevant provisions of the Companies Act, 2013.

Upto the year ended March 31, 2017 the Company has prepared its consolidated financial statements in 
accordance with the requirement of Indian General Accepted Accounting Policies, which includes Standards 
notified under the Companies (Accounting Standards) Rules, 2006 and considered as “Previous GAAP”.

These consolidated financial statements are the Company’s first Ind AS consolidated financial statements. The 
Company has only one subsidiary.

Company’s Consolidated financial statements are prepared in Indian Rupees (`), which is also its functional 
currency.

All assets and liabilities have been classified as current and non-current as per the Company’s normal operating 
cycle. Based on the nature of products and the time between the acquisition of assets for processing and their 
realisation in cash and cash equivalents, the Company has ascertained its operating cycle as 12 months for the 
purpose of classification of current and non-current assets and liabilities.

2.02 Principles of Consolidation

The consolidated financial statements relate to GRM Overseas Limited (“the Company”) and its subsidiary 
companies, associates entities. The consolidated financial statements have been prepared on the following 
basis:

(a) The financial statements of the Company and its subsidiaries are combined on a line basis by adding 
together like items of assets, liabilities, income, expenses and cash flows, after fully eliminating intra-
group balances and intra-group transactions.

(b)  Profits or losses resulting from intra-group transactions that are recognized in assets, such as inventory 
and property are eliminated in full.

(c) In case of foreign subsidiaries, revenue items are consolidated at the average rate prevailing during the 
year. All assets and liabilities are converted at rates prevailing at the end of the year.

(d) Offset (eliminate) the carrying amount of the parent’s investment in each subsidiary and the parent’s 
portion of equity of each subsidiary.

Other Significant Accounting Policies:

These are set out under “Significant Accounting Policies” as given in the Company’s standalone financial 

statements.

GRM
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Notes to consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31st March, 2018

GRM

In Rupees

(Unsecured, considered good unless otherwise 

stated)

Security deposits 6,925,431.00 6,925,431.00  6,925,431.00 

Long term deposits with bank with maturity 

period more than 12 months:  

Margin money deposits  526,224.00  526,224.00  Nil 

Interest accrued on fixed deposits 32,227.00  13,138.00 Nil 

Total 7,483,882.00  7,464,793.00  6,925,431.00 

4 Other financial assets (non-current )
 As at

31st March, 2018
 As at

31st March, 2017
 As at

1st April, 2016

 As at
31st March, 2018

 As at
31st March, 2017

 As at
, 20161st April

 As at
31st March, 2018

 As at
31st March, 2017

 As at
, 20161st April

 As at
31st March, 2018

 As at
31st March, 2017

 As at
, 20161st April

Raw Materials and components  665,872,865.00  879,698,780.00  235,116,726.00

Finished goods 235,423,853.00  518,161,239.00  290,259,259.00

Traded goods 1,366,206,512.00  612,490,667.00  102,642,775.00 

Total 2,267,503,230.00  2,010,350,686.00  628,018,760.00 

5 Inventories

Unsecured, considered good unless stated 

otherwise Outstanding for a period exceeding 

six months from the date they became due for 

payment  1,125,176.00  102,867,887.00  8,615,795.00

Other Receivables 1,904,034,411.15  638,412,229.60  815,195,694.60 

Total 1,905,159,587.15  741,280,116.60  823,811,489.60 

6 Trade receivables

Cash and cash equivalents 

Cash in hand 117,758.00  557,735.84  665,677.41 

Bank Balances    

on current accounts  9,155,540.65  15,658,192.47 144,713,223.61

 Total  9,273,298.65  16,215,928.31  145,378,901.02 

Other bank balances

Deposits with original maturity for more than 3

months but less than 12 months:

Margin money deposits  1,334,282.00  1,251,185.00  1,169,516.00

Bank deposits with more than 12 months maturit 139,270.00  125,936.00  8,712,366.00

Total 1,473,552.00  1,377,121.00  9,881,882.00

Total 10,746,850.65  17,593,049.31  155,260,783.02 

7
Cash, cash equivalents and other 
bank balances
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Notes to consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31st March, 2018

GRM

In Rupees

Unsecured, considered good unless stated otherwise

Advances against procurement of goods, services etc. 500,000.00  4,569,445.56  95,754.00 

Balance with revenue authority:   

Advance Taxes (Netted off provision for taxes) Nil  33,140.00  45,730.00   

Income Tax Refundable 33,140.00  150,820.00  105,090.00   

Value Added Tax (VAT)  Nil  5,333,204.26  5,984,715.07   

Goods and Service Tax (GST) 47,998,978.45 Nil  Nil 

Other Loans and Advances:     

Other Assets  7,153,546.00  Nil  Nil     

Prepaid Insurance  1,943,316.00 1,380,015.00  1,134,031.00     

Interest accrued on deposits 48,629.00  324,476.00  1,771,877.00 

Total  57,677,609.45  11,791,100.82  9,137,197.07 

8 Other current assets
 As at

31st March, 2018
 As at

31st March, 2017
 As at
, 20161st April
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Notes to consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31st March, 2018

GRM

In Rupees

Investment Allowance Reserve

As per Last Balance Sheet 16,215.00  16,215.00  16,215.00

Securities Premium Account

As per Last Balance Sheet  6,895,000.00  6,895,000.00  6,895,000.00 

Forfieture Share Capital Reserve

As per Last Balance Sheet  5,908,495.00  5,908,495.00  5,908,495.00

Forfieture Share Premium Reserve

As per Last Balance Sheet  5,908,495.00  5,908,495.00  5,908,495.00

Revaluation Reserve

As per Last Balance Sheet 19,485,409.00  19,485,409.00  19,485,409.00

General Reserve

As per Last Balance Sheet 54,457,325.69  54,457,325.69  54,457,325.69

Surplus in Statement of Profit and Loss

Balance as at the beginning of the year  291,145,613.49  235,277,261.60  

Profit for the year 118,546,677.74  55,868,351.89 

Less : Appropriations:

Dividend for the year  18,447,500.00  Nil            

Dividend Distribution Tax on Dividend 3,223,148.00  Nil 

Balance as at the end of the year  388,021,643.23  291,145,613.49  235,277,261.60

Total 480,692,582.92  383,816,553.18  327,948,201.29 

10 Other Equity
 As at

31st March, 2018
 As at

31st March, 2017
 As at

31st March, 2016

In Rupees

Secured Loan 

Indian rupee loan from bank 12,972,257.37  9,441,096.67  Nil 

Unsecured Loan 

Inter-corporate loans (Indian rupee loans)  449,971,742.00  385,522,812.00  354,839,117.00

Loans from related parties (Indian rupee loans)  120,450,342.00  89,271,908.00  58,746,173.00

 Total  583,394,341.37  484,235,816.67  413,585,290.00 

11 Long Term Borrowings 
 As at

31st March, 2018
 As at

31st March, 2017
 As at

31st March, 2016

"Indian rupee loans  from bank includes 
(i) `13,40,004/- which carries interest @ 9.50% per annum. This loan is repayable in 36 equated monthly 
installments of 1,27,680/- each including interest from the date of loan. The loan is secured against 
hypothecation of Motor Car.
(ii)  42,50,270/- which carries interest @ 9.52% per annum. This loan is  repayable in 36 equated monthly 
installments of  2,54,320/- each including interest from the date of loan. The loan is secured against 
hypothecation of Motor Car. 
(Iii)  73,81,983/- which carries interest @ 8.24% per annum. This loan is repayable in 36 equated  monthly 
installments of  2,51,651/- each including interest from the date of loan. The loan is secured against 
hypothecation of Motor Car. "
(iv) Indian rupee loans from corporates and related parties carries interest @ 9% per annum. Interest is payable 
on yearly basis.

`

`
`

`
`
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Notes to consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31st March, 2018

GRM

In Rupees

The movment on the deferred tax account is 

as follows:

At the beginning of the year 22,543,303.00  22,594,440.00 

Charge/(credit) to statement of Profit and Loss  687,902.00  (51,137.00)

At the end of the year 23,231,205.00  22,543,303.00  22,594,440.00 

12  Deferred Tax Liabilities (Net)
 As at

31st March, 2018
 As at

31st March, 2017
 As at

1st April, 2016

Component of Deferred Tax Liabilities

 As at
31st March, 2018

 As at
31st March, 2017

 As at
 20161st April,Particulars

Deferred tax liabilities in relation to:

Property, plant and equipment  22,543,303.00  687,902.00  23,231,205.00 

Total 22,543,303.00  687,902.00  23,231,205.00 

Loans repayable on demand (secured):

Borrowings from banks  2,334,840,734.79  1,496,167,744.48  908,603,180.27 

Total 2,334,840,734.79  1,496,167,744.48  908,603,180.27 

13 Borrowings (current)
 As at

31st March, 2018
 As at

31st March, 2017
 As at
 20161st April,

Cash credits from bank are secured by hypothecation of stocks of raw materials, stock in process, finished 
goods, stores, consumable stores and book debts etc; such credits from bank are also secured by charge on all 
the present and future asset of thee Company and futther guaranteed by Directors. The working capital loans are 
repayable on demand and carries interest @ 5% to 7% per annum.

Other Trade Payables  857,080,324.95  251,733,745.47 112,670,280.07 

Total 857,080,324.95  251,733,745.47  112,670,280.07 

14 Trade payables
 As at

31st March, 2018
 As at

31st March, 2017
 As at
 20161st April,

Advance from parties  3,621,837.29  311,977,861.87  Nil 

Employees Benefits payable  1,510,239.00  753,849.00  952,714.00 

Book Overdrafts 71,015,526.62  Nil  Nil 

Interest Accrued But Not Due 95,133.86 Nil  Nil  

Statutory dues payable   

T.D.S. Payable 7,003,806.00  6,640,162.00  4,915,297.00  

 Provident Fund 71,184.00  190,358.00  62,651.00   

E.S.I. 35,563.00  45,473.00  10,309.00 

Other Payables:   

Electricity Expenses 5,579,308.00 5,221,686.00  6,283,799.00  

 Audit & Legal Fees 108,000.00  84,000.00  67,500.00  

 Telephone Expenses Nil  Nil  32,641.00   

Other Payable 16,055,669.00  344,760.00  Nil 

Total 105,096,266.77  325,258,149.87  12,324,911.00 

15 Other current liabilities
 As at

31st March, 2018
 As at

31st March, 2017
 As at
 20161st April,
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17 Revenue from operations
 Year ended 

31st March, 2018 
 Year ended 

31st March, 2017 

Sale of products   

 Rice (Including Processed Rice)  9,339,768,524.39  5,824,940,352.55    

Others  101,761,646.38  86,567,147.85 

Total 9,441,530,170.77  5,911,507,500.40 

18 Other income
 Year ended 

31st March, 2018 
 Year ended 

31st March, 2017 

Other Income  715,464.00  5,000.00 

Total  715,464.00  5,000.00 

19 Cost of materials  consumed
 Year ended 

31st March, 2018 
 Year ended 

31st March, 2017 

Opening Stock 879,698,780.00  235,116,726.00 

Add : Purchases  2,192,132,457.06  2,047,059,632.40 

Total  3,071,831,237.06  2,282,176,358.40 

Deduct : Closing Stock  665,872,865.00  879,698,780.00 

Cost of materials consumed  2,405,958,372.06  1,402,477,578.40 

20 Purchases of traded goods
 Year ended 

31st March, 2018 
 Year ended 

31st March, 2017 

Rice (Unprocessed)  6,095,188,379.46  4,323,843,336.55 

Total 6,095,188,379.46  4,323,843,336.55 

21 Changes in inventory of finished goods & Traded Goods
 Year ended 

31st March, 2018 
 Year ended 

31st March, 2017 

Finished Goods

Opening Stock 518,161,239.00  290,259,259.00 

Deduct : Closing Stock 235,423,853.00  518,161,239.00  

282,737,386.00  (227,901,980.00)

Traded Goods

Opening Stock 612,490,667.00  102,642,775.00 

Deduct : Closing Stock 1,366,206,512.00  612,490,667.00  

(753,715,845.00)  (509,847,892.00)

(Increase) / Decrease in stocks  (470,978,459.00)  (737,749,872.00)

GRM

Provision for taxation 

(Netted off towards advance taxes) 13,507,062.00  Nil  Nil 

Dividend on Equity Shares 18,447,500.00  Nil  Nil 

Dividend Distribution Tax thereon 3,223,148.00  Nil  Nil 

Total 35,177,710.00  Nil  Nil 

16 Current Provisions 
 As at

31st March, 2018
 As at

31st March, 2017
 As at
20161st April, 
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Notes to consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31st March, 2018

GRM

In Rupees

22 Employee benefit expenses
 Year ended 

31st March, 2018 
 Year ended 

31st March, 2017 

Salaries, wages and bonus 28,933,132.00  20,604,357.00 

Contribution to provident and other funds

-Provident fund 1,060,058.00  937,310.00 

-E.S.I. fund  438,272.00  232,461.00 

Total  30,431,462.00  21,774,128.00 

23 Finance costs
 Year ended 

31st March, 2018 
 Year ended 

31st March, 2017 

Interest Charges  128,063,241.39  85,446,028.97 

Bank Charges  19,488,525.94  12,768,420.65 

Total 147,551,767.33  98,214,449.62 

24 Depreciation
 Year ended 

31st March, 2018 
 Year ended 

31st March, 2017 

Depreciation Property, plant and equipment/Tangible 

Assets  20,288,503.39  19,279,304.13 

Total 20,288,503.39  19,279,304.13 

25 Other expenses
 Year ended 

31st March, 2018 
 Year ended 

31st March, 2017 

Power and Fuel  72,572,650.00  68,514,172.00 

Repairs to Machinery 14,035,793.17  13,545,565.18 

Consumption of Stores and Spare Parts 3,910,917.46  5,354,670.09 

Electric Repairs  2,600,356.43  1,671,301.77 

Repairs to Building 2,215,199.67  1,215,796.00 

Rent 3,469,658.00  4,917,788.86 

Export Promotion Expenses 4,301,293.00  Nil 

Rates and Taxes  66,194,557.28  65,066,794.50 

Insurance 6,632,376.00  4,187,287.25 

Freight, Transport and Delivery 126,472,202.83  130,175,161.04 

Shipping & Forwarding 387,881,503.94  234,099,945.16 

Packing Expenses 285,123,017.81  138,985,894.13 

Rebate & Discounts 8,893,209.85  2,168,088.71 

Travelling Expenses 7,291,619.60  3,674,154.00 

Entertainment Expenses 221,528.00  254,700.00 

Conveyance Expenses 185,130.00  287,745.00 

Printing & Stationery  420,256.00  223,186.00 

Postage & Courier 1,604,491.00  1,250,031.00 

Advertisement 2,777,085.40  50,975.00 

Payment to auditor (Refer details below)  100,000.00  92,000.00 

Professional Charges 11,418,847.00  1,763,466.00 
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Notes to consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31st March, 2018

GRM

Commission 18,145,451.00  17,840,869.00 

Telephone Expenses 465,199.13  423,233.00 

Vehicles Running Expenses 1,588,830.43  1,036,195.44 

Income Tax / Wealth Tax 150,820.00  180,488.00 

Loss on sale of tangible assets  Nil  412,471.87 

Charity and Donation (CSR) 1,300,000.00  1,200,000.00 

Miscellaneous Expenses 966,745.79  408,292.81 

Total 1,030,938,738.79  699,000,271.81 

Particulars
 Year ended 

31st March, 2018 
 Year ended 

31st March, 2017 

As auditor:

Audit Fee  70,000.00  50,000.00 

Tax Audit Fee 20,000.00  20,000.00 

Other matters (Certificates, Tax etc.) 10,000.00  22,000.00 

Total 100,000.00  92,000.00 

Payment to auditor

26 Earnings per share
 Year ended 

31st March, 2018 
 Year ended 

31st March, 2017 

(i) Net Profit after tax as per Statement of Profit and 

Loss attributable to Equity Shareholders (`) 118546677.74  55868351.89

(ii) Weighted average number of equity shares used 

as denominator for calulationg EPS (`) 3689500 3689500

(iii) Basic and diluted earnings per share (`)  32.13  15.14

(iv) Nominal value per share (`)  10.00  10.00 

27 Earnings in Foreign Currency (accrual basis)
 Year ended 

31st March, 2018 
 Year ended 

31st March, 2017 

Revenue from Export of Goods 8,478,819,221.62  5,345,623,760.71 

Total 8,478,819,221.62  5,345,623,760.71 

ANNUAL REPORT 2017-2018.......103



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements for the year ended 31st March, 2018

GRM

28. Quantitative In Rupees

Quantity Value
Current Year Previous Year

Stock, production, purchase and turnover (Quantities in Quintals and Values in Rupees)

Quantity Value
Particulars

Opening Stock     

Rice     3,03,015.096 1,12,51,47,726.00 1,22,040.260    38,78,60,931.00

Paddy 3,22,405.710       86,40,47,303.00 1,22,754.720    22,73,41,741.00

Rice Bran             2,814.100                29,40,730.00 2,426.690          24,77,653.00

Packing Materials -             1,56,51,477.00 -           77,74,985.00 

Others -                25,63,450.00 - 25,63,450.00

Total  2,01,03,50,686.00  62,80,18,760.00 

Production/Purchase 

Rice (Produced) 5,01,540.000 -   3,71,918.000 -

Rice (Purchased) 10,44,132.815 6,09,51,88,379.46   9,54,936.215 4,32,38,43,336.55 

Paddy (Purchased) 6,58,766.750 2,18,97,91,944.44  7,71,547.030 1,92,26,41,411.80

Sales

Rice 15,15,647.023 9,33,97,68,524.59 11,45,320.379 5,82,49,40,352.55

Raw Materials Consumed 

Paddy (Milled) 7,67,510.460 -   5,71,896.040 -

Closing Stock

Rice 3,32,407.920 1,59,72,06,404.00      3,03,015.096  1,12,51,47,726.00

 Paddy 2,13,662.000 65,06,00,790.00 3,22,405.710       86,40,47,303.00

 Rice Bran 1,436.700 18,60,511.00            2,814.100         29,40,730.00

 Packing Materials - 1,52,72,075.00 -        1,56,51,477.00

 Others - 25,63,450.00 -           25,63,450.00 

Total 2,26,75,03,230.00 2,01,03,50,686.00

Shortages: Rice 632.968 - 559.000 -
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements for the year ended 31st March, 2018

GRM

In Rupees

Loans taken Repayment

29. Related party disclosures pursuant to Ind AS 24 prescribed under the Act.

Interest
Accrued

Amount Owed by
the parties

Particulars

Key management

personnel or their relatives:

Hukam Chand Garg 6,02,00,000        10,80,77,427     66,45,790       1,36,07,486

Rohit Garg 6,89,00,000          2,98,00,000 44,03,194      6,46,18,415

Atul Garg 6,13,00,000          3,45,62,274     21,69,151       4,22,24,441

Companies in which

directors or their

relatives are interested:

Alfa Technobuild Pvt. Ltd.          2,90,00,000          3,00,11,780      28,49,960       4,83,82,867

HA Buildtech Pvt. Ltd. 2,51,30,000          1,32,30,000     19,12,256        3,81,16,002

Paras Infraprojects Pvt. Ltd. 1,35,50,000 3,42,69,858     38,17,046       4,58,71,324

Prestige Infraprojects Pvt. Ltd. 1,29,50,000          3,62,74,960      25,30,149       2,00,73,304

Samarth Technobuild Pvt. Ltd. 4,62,00,000          1,20,21,628      73,63,838     11,38,07,378

Eros Agro & Farms Pvt. Ltd. 2,13,00,000             53,34,349      62,83,692       9,60,71,744

Rohit Buildtech Pvt. Ltd. 1,55,00,000             97,90,000      27,00,128       4,72,90,988

Shine Technobuild Pvt. Ltd. 2,56,40,544     1,34,40,544      20,94,436       4,03,58,135

a. Loans taken and repayment thereof

b. Remuneration to key management personnel

As at 31st 
March, 2018

 As at 01st 
April, 2017

Mr. Hukam Chand Garg (Director)  9,00,000       21,60,000

Mr. Rohit Garg (Director) 25,50,000       19,20,000

Mr. Atul Garg (Director) 25,50,000       19,20,000

Mr. Ratan Lal Mittal (CFO) 3,00,000         3,00,000

Ms. Tanushree Aggarwal (Company Secretary)           30,000 60,000

Mr. Sumit Bajaj (Company Secretary)           10,000 Nil

Ms. Seena Suri (Company Secretary) 20,000 Nil

Total 63,60,000 63,60,000

Particulars
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements for the year ended 31st March, 2018

GRM

c. Rent to key management personnel or their relatives
As at 31st 

March, 2018
 As at 31st 

March, 2017

Hukam Chand Garg 6,00,000 6,00,000

Rohit Garg       2,70,000  2,70,000

Hukam Chand Garg HUF  4,50,000         4,50,000

Jugpati Devi 6,00,000  6,00,000

Total 19,20,000  19,20,000

Particulars

30. No information has been received by the Company from the creditors whether they are 
covered under Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises Development Act, 2006.

 
31. Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR)

a) CSR amount required to be spent as per Section 135 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with 
Schedule VII thereof by the Company during the year is ̀ 14.10  lakh (Previous Year ̀ 12 lakh).

b) Expenditure related to Corporate Social Responsibility is ̀ 13 lakh (Previous Year ̀ 12 lakh). 

32. Capital Management

The Company manages its capital to ensure that it will continue as going concern while 
maximizing the return to stakeholders. The Company manages its capital structure and make 
adjustment in light of changes in business condition. The overall strategy remains unchanged as 
compare to last year.

33. The Company is mainly engaged in ‘Rice Sheller’ activity. All the activities of the Company revolve 
around this main business. Accordingly, the Company has only one identifiable segment 
reportable under Ind AS 108 “Operating Segment”. The Executive Director (the ‘Chief Operational 
Decision Maker as defined in Ind AS 108 – Operating Segments) monitors the operating results of 
the entity’s business for the purpose of making decisions about resource allocation and 
performance assessment.

\
Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements for the year ended 31st March, 2018

34. The Board of Directors have recommended payment of dividend of `5/- per fully paid up equity 
share of 10/- each, aggregating 216.71 lakh including 32.23 lakh dividend distribution tax for 
the financial year 2017-18. Dividend has been provided subject to members approval at the 
ensuing 24th Annual General Meeting.

35. The financial statements were approved for issue by the Board of Directors at its meeting held on 
26th May, 2018.

` ` `

Signature to Note ‘1’ to ‘35’

For Vishal Malhotra & Co.
Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration No. 012750N

(CA. Mitesh Malhotra)                                
Partner
Membership No. 504338
Delhi
26th May, 2018

Atul Garg
Director
DIN : 02380612

Sumit Bajaj
Company Secretary
M. No. A45042

Rohit Garg
Managing Director
DIN : 00673304

Rattan Lal Mittal
Cheif Financial Offier
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Form AOC-1

(Pursuant to first proviso to sub-section (3) of Section 129 read with rule 5 of the Companies 
(Accounts) Rules, 2014)

Statement containing salient features of the financial statement of subsidiaries/
Associate companies/ joint ventures

Part “A”: Subsidiaries

Name of the subsidiary GRM INTERNATIONAL 
HOLDINGS LTD.

GRM INTERNATIONAL 
HOLDINGS LTD.

1. Reporting period for the subsidiary 
concerned, if different from the holding 
company’s reporting period

2. Reporting currency and Exchange rate as 
on the last date of the relevant Financial year in 
the case of foreign subsidiaries.

3. Share capital (Rs.)

4. Reserves & surplus

5. Total assets

6. Total Liabilities

7. Investments

8.  Turnover

9.  Profit before taxation

10. Provision for taxation

11. Profit after taxation

12. Proposed Dividend

13. % of shareholding

The following information shall be furnished:-
1. Names of subsidiaries which are yet to commence operations – NA
2. Names of subsidiaries which have been liquidated or sold during the year- NA
3. Part B of the Annexure is not applicable as there are no associate companies/ joint ventures of the Company as on March 

31, 2018.

2017-2018

Pound
91.20

1,55,04,000.00

4,65,483.00

37,46,93,831.00

37,46,93,831.00

Nil

19,26,42,307.00

6,20,835.00

1,14,456.00

5,06,379.00

Nil

100.00

2016-17

Pound
81.12

24,38,774.00

-40,896.00

1,25,84,715.00

1,25,84,715.00

Nil

Nil

-40,896.00

Nil

-40,896.00

Nil

100.00

For Vishal Malhotra & Co.
Chartered Accountants
F.R.No.:012750N

FOR AND ON BEHALF OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS
GRM OVERSEAS LIMITED

(CA. Mitesh Malhotra)                                
Partner
Membership No. 504338
Delhi
26th May, 2018

Atul Garg
Director
DIN : 02380612

Rohit Garg
Managing Director
DIN : 00673304
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Atul Garg
Director
DIN : 02380612

Sumit Bajaj
Company Secretary
M. No. A45042

FIRST TIME ADOPTION OF IND AS RECONCILIATIONS STATEMENTS
Effect of Ind AS adoption on the Consolidated Balance Sheet as at 31st March, 2017 and as at 01st 

In Rupees

As at 31st March, 2017 As at 1st April, 2016

Particular Notes

Previous 
GAAP

Effect of 
Transition 
to Ind AS

As per IND 
AS Balance 
Sheet

Previous 
GAAP

Effect of 
Transition 
to Ind AS

As per IND 
AS Balance 
Sheet

ASSETS

Property, plant and equipment

Financial assets 

(i) Other financial assets

Total non-current assets

Current assets

Inventories

Financial assets

(i) Trade receivables

(ii) Cash and bank balances

Other current assets

Total current assets

TOTAL ASSETS

EQUITY AND LIABILITIES

Equity

(a) Equity share capital

(b) Other equity

Total equity 

Non-current liabilities

(a) Financial liabilities

(i) Borrowings

(b) Defferred tax liability

Total non current liabilities

Current liabilities

(a) Financial liabilities

(i) Borrowings

(ii) Trade payable

(b) Other current liabilities

(c) Provisions

Total current liabilities

TOTAL EQUITY AND LIABILITIESTOTAL EQUITY AND LIABILITIES

For Vishal Malhotra & Co.
Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration No. 012750N

(CA. Mitesh Malhotra)                                
Partner
Membership No. 504338
Delhi
26th May, 2018

Rohit Garg
Managing Director
DIN : 00673304

Rattan Lal Mittal
Cheif Financial Offier

As per our report of even date

3 212,170,566.94 Nil  212,170,566.94  211,467,641.94  Nil  211,467,641.94 

4  7,464,793.00  Nil  7,464,793.00  6,925,431.00  Nil  6,925,431.00 

 219,635,359.94  Nil  219,635,359.94  218,393,072.94  Nil  218,393,072.94 

5  2,010,350,686.00  Nil  2,010,350,686.00  628,018,760.00  Nil  628,018,760.00 

6  741,280,116.60  Nil  741,280,116.60  823,811,489.60  Nil  823,811,489.60 

7  17,593,049.31  Nil  17,593,049.31  155,260,783.02  Nil  155,260,783.02 

8  11,791,100.82  Nil  11,791,100.82  9,137,197.07  Nil  9,137,197.07 

 2,781,014,952.73  Nil  2,781,014,952.73  1,616,228,229.69  Nil  1,616,228,229.69 

 3,000,650,312.67  Nil  3,000,650,312.67  1,834,621,302.63  Nil  1,834,621,302.63 

9  36,895,000.00  Nil  36,895,000.00  36,895,000.00  Nil  36,895,000.00 

10  383,816,553.18  Nil  383,816,553.18  327,948,201.29  Nil  327,948,201.29 

 420,711,553.18  Nil  420,711,553.18  364,843,201.29  Nil  364,843,201.29 

11  484,235,816.67  Nil  484,235,816.67  413,585,290.00  Nil  413,585,290.00 

12  22,543,303.00  Nil  22,543,303.00  22,594,440.00  Nil  22,594,440.00 

506,779,119.67  Nil  506,779,119.67  436,179,730.00  Nil  436,179,730.00 

13  1,496,167,744.48  Nil  1,496,167,744.48  908,603,180.27  Nil  908,603,180.27 

14  251,733,745.47  Nil  251,733,745.47  112,670,280.07  Nil  112,670,280.07 

15  325,258,149.87  Nil  325,258,149.87  12,324,911.00  Nil  12,324,911.00 

16  Nil Nil  Nil  Nil  Nil Nil 

2,073,159,639.82  Nil 2,073,159,639.82  1,033,598,371.34  Nil  1,033,598,371.34 

 3,000,650,312.67  Nil  3,000,650,312.67  1,834,621,302.63  Nil  1,834,621,302.63 
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Atul Garg
Director
DIN : 02380612

Sumit Bajaj
Company Secretary
M. No. A45042

For Vishal Malhotra & Co.
Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration No. 012750N

(CA. Mitesh Malhotra)                                
Partner
Membership No. 504338
Delhi
26th May, 2018

Rohit Garg
Managing Director
DIN : 00673304

Rattan Lal Mittal
Cheif Financial Offier

As per our report of even date

Reconciliation of consolidated profit and other equity between IndAS and Previous GAAP

GRM

In Rupees

 Net Profit Other Equity

Particular Notes

Notes to Consolidated Financial statement for the year ended 31st March, 2018

As at 31st 
March, 2017

As at 31st 
March, 2017

 As at 01st 
April, 2016

Net Profit/Other Equity as per Previous Indian 10  291,145,613.49  92,670,939.69 92,670,939.69 

Fair Value adjustment of Non-Current Assets  Nil  Nil  Nil 

Fair Value adjustment of Current Assets  Nil  Nil  Nil 

Deferred Tax Impact on Fair Value adjustment of 

investment  Nil  Nil  Nil 

Income Tax impact of above adjustment  Nil  Nil  Nil 

Total  291,145,613.49  92,670,939.69 92,670,939.69

Net Profit before OCI/Other Equity as per Ind AS 291,145,613.49  92,670,939.69 92,670,939.69 

Effect of Ind AS adoption on the Consolidated Statement of Profit and loss for the year ended 31st 

 Year Ended 31st March, 2017 

Particular Notes
 Previous GAAP  Effect 

of transition 
to Ind AS 

 As per Ind AS 

Income

Income from Operation 17  5,911,507,500.40  Nil  5,911,507,500.40 

ther Income 18  5,000.00  Nil  5,000.00 

Total Revenue  5,911,512,500.40  Nil 5,911,512,500.40

 Expenses Cost of Material Consumed 19  1,402,477,578.40  Nil  1,402,477,578.40

 Purchases of traded goods 20  4,323,843,336.55  Nil  4,323,843,336.55

 Changes in inventories of finished goods & 

traded goods 21  (737,749,872.00)  Nil  (737,749,872.00)

Employee benefits expense 22  21,774,128.00  Nil  21,774,128.00 

Finance cost 23  98,214,449.62  Nil  98,214,449.6

 Depreciation and Amortisation 24  19,279,304.13 Nil  19,279,304.13 

Other expenses 25  699,000,271.81 Nil  699,000,271.81 

Total Expense  5,826,839,196.51  Nil  5,826,839,196.51

Profit Before Tax 84,673,303.89  Nil  84,673,303.89 

Tax Expense Income Tax 28,856,089.00  Nil  28,856,089.00

Deferred Tax (credit) 12  (51,137.00)  Nil  (51,137.00)

Profit for the Year  55,868,351.89  Nil  55,868,351.89 
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GRM GRM OVERSEAS LIMITED

CIN L74899DL1995PLC064007

Name Of The Company GRM OVERSEAS LIMITED

Registered Office 128, First Floor, Shiva Market, Pitampura, New Delhi-110034.

Name of the member(s)

Registered Address

Folio No./Client ID/ DP ID

I/We, being the member(s) of___________________________________________shares of the above 
named company, hereby appoint:

1. Name

Address

E-mail ID

 Signature

or failing him

2. Name

Address

E-mail ID

 Signature

or failing him

3. Name

Address

E-mail ID

 Signature

 24thAnnual General Meeting
Saturday, 29th September 2018

Form No. MGT-11
Proxy Form

[Pursuant to Section 105(6) of the Companies Act, 2013 and
Rule 19(3) of the Companies (Management and Administration) Rules, 2014]
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GRM GRM OVERSEAS LIMITED

as my/our proxy to attend and vote (on a poll) for me/us and on my/our behalf at the 24th Annual General Meeting 
of the Company, to be held on Saturday, the 29th September, 2018 at 11.00 A.M. at MH One Resort Hotel 
BakoliAlipur, Main G.T. karnal Road Delhi-110036and at any adjournment thereof in respect of such Resolutions 
as are indicated below:

Ordinary Business

1 To receive, consider and adopt:

a) the Audited Standalone and  Consolidated Financial Statement of the Company for the financial 
year ended March 31, 2018 alongwith with the Reports of the Board of Directors and Auditors 
thereon; and

2 To declare a final dividend of Rs. 5/- per equity share for the financial year ended March 31, 2018

3 To Re-appointthe Retiring DirectorMr. Hukam Chand Garg (DIN: 00673276), Director of the 
Company.

4 To Appoint M/s. Vinod Kumar & Associates, Chartered Accountants (FRN- 002304N)the Statutory 
Auditor of the Company

Signed this _______________ day of ________________, 2018

Signature of Shareholder: _____________________________

Affix Re. 1/-
Revenue
Stamp

Note:

1. This form of proxy in order to be effective should be duly completed and deposited at the Registered Office 
of the Company, not less than 48 hours before the commencement of the Meeting.

2. For the Resolutions, Explanatory Statement and Notes, please refer to the Notice of the Thirty-Second 
Annual General Meeting

3. Please complete all the details including details of member(s) in above box before submission

5 To Appoint  Mr. Nipun Jain as a Director of the Company

6 To appoint Mr. Raj Kumar Garg as Independent Director of the Company

7 To appoint Mr. Pardeep Kumar Singal as Independent Director of the Company

8 To approve the payment of remuneration to Mr. Rohit Garg, (DIN : 00673304)

9 To approve the payment of remuneration to Mr. Atul Garg, (DIN : 02380612)

10 To approve the countinuation of Mr. Hukam Chand Garg as non-executive director on the Board of 
the Company

Special Business
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Notes:

a) Only Member/Proxy can attend the meeting. No minors would be allowed at the meeting.
b) Member / Proxy wish to attend the meeting must bring this attendance slip to the meeting and 

handover at the entrance duly filled in and signed

GRM OVERSEAS LIMITED
 

ELECTRONIC VOTING PARTICULARS

EVEN (e-voting Event No.) User ID Password/PIN No. of Shares

-----------------------------------------------------------------TEAR HERE--------------------------------------------------------------

ATTENDANCE SLIP

Regd. Folio No. / DP ID - Client ID : ____________________________________

Name & Address of First/Sole Shareholder : ____________________________________

No. of Shares held : ____________________________________

I hereby record my presence at the 24th Annual General Meeting of the Company to be held on Saturday, the 29th 
September, 2018 at 11.00 A.M. at  MH One Resort Hotel BakoliAlipur, Main G.T.karnal Road Delhi-110036.

Signature of Member/Proxy
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GRM GRM OVERSEAS LIMITED

Route Map of MH One Resort Hotel Bakoli Alipur, Main G.T. karnal Road Delhi-110036
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